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“Fresh Thinking Quality Living”
AR mEZER

Headquartered in Shanghai, SPG Land (Holdings) Limited (Hong Kong Stock Code: 337) is a reputable property
developer that is principally engaged in the development of quality residential and hotel properties, (“SPG Land” or the
“Group”). Since the incorporation of the Group, it has successfully developed three exemplar large-scale trophy projects
in Shanghai, namely, Cambridge Forest Newtown, Cambridge Waters (“Tiffany”) and Cambridge Watertown (“Oriental
Garden”). These trophy projects have enhanced the Group’s brand name and reputation. With exquisite residential
design, unique living environment, innovative architectural style and outstanding sales performance, the Group is
awarded as “Shanghai Top Ten Foreign Property Developers in 18 Years”, “Star of the Top 100 Developers” amongst
the top real estate developers in China. “Most Influential Brand Enterprise” and various other awards. The listing of the
Group on the Main Board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange in October 2006 has further reinforced the Group’s profile
in the international capital market. In March 2007, the Group is elected as a constituent stock of the 200-Stock Hang
Seng Composite Index Series and Hang Seng Freeflow Index Series.

Since the listing of SPG Land in 2006, the Group has expanded its development projects geographically and strategically
to cities in Yangtze River Delta, such as Wuxi, Changshu, Suzhou, Huangshan and also various provincial capital cities
that are emerging and developing with high-potential such as, Kunming Haikou and Taiyuan. The rapid growth
sustained in the China’s economy has accelerated the progress of urbanization. This results in an increase of disposable
income from the urban population, in particular the middle-to-high income sector. The Group is committed to
providing high-quality products and distinctive services to enhance the standard of living to its customers. To achieve
this objective, the Group works with world renowned design and architectual teams in the development of their
projects. As for the land bank, the Group adopts a proactive yet prudent approach in their selection of projects to
ensure the land bank is replenished with quality and high-growth potential land. The management team firmly
believes that the healthy and sustainable development of the Group, in the long run, depends on the provision of
quality products and projects with good growth potential.

The excellent track record of the Group’s in property development and active co-operation with leading hotel
management groups in the investment and development of hotel properties has brought promising outcomes and
recurring income for the Group. The current hotel projects include the crown-jewel Shanghai Peninsula Hotel, the
Shanghai Cambridge Holiday Inn, and the Crowne Plaza Resort Hotel located in the world-renowned scenic Huangshan.
These projects under the Group’s hotel business development will benefit greatly from the prosperous tourism industry
in China and the upcoming 2010 World Expo in Shanghai. This increase in recurrent income from hotel operations and
investment properties will strengthen the business foundation of SPG Land in the long run.

“Fresh Thinking, Quality Living” is the corporate creed of SPG Land. This, along with the international and professional
background of the Group, enables SPG Land to stand out in the real estate market in China. With professional
management skills, excellent quality products and prudent financial operation, SPG Land look towards to building
a better future for cities in China, creating a comfortable and harmonious society and maximizing returns for the
stakeholders of the Group.
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Financial Highlights
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RESULTS HIGHLIGHTS (& #H =
For the year ended 31 December &=+ - A=+—HItEEH
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Revenue ¥ # 3,065 1,395 +120%

Gross Profit & 7| 914 542 +69%
Profit from Operating Activities & B #&& & /& i 7 693 478 +45%
Net Profit ;5 F| 830 188 +341%
Attributable to: JA T~ A+ fE(L
— Equity Holders of the Company — AR A ERH A A 679 151 +350%
— Minority Interests — 2> Bt i% 58 4% 75 151 37 +308%
Earnings Per Share (RMB) &z & F (AR IT)
— Basic —HE K 0.660 0.146 +352%
— Diluted — #3% 0.537 0.146 +268%
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2009 REVENUE ANALYSIS —Z2Z W FE W HE 947

2009
=3 L X

RMB Million
ARMBER

Sales of Property ¥ % #4 & 2,926.6

2008
—EENEF
RMB Million

ARBEETT

Lease of Property ¥) ¥ & 27.3 26.9 +1%
Property Management & Others 1 % & 18 & E #h 111.5 99.0 +13%
Total & &t 3,065.4 1,395.0 +120%

As at 31 December A+ - A=+—H
2009
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RMB Million
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Total Assets & 4858 16,968.5

Total Liabilities & & 4248 12,862.0
Total Equity # 23 #2 %8 4,106.5

2008
—EENF
RMB Million

AREBETT

9,224.1
5,375.8
3,848.3

+84%
+139%
+7%
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Key Events of the Year

2010

In January, Xi Shui Dong in Wuxi launched its second phase,
receiving again overwhelming market response and all units
were sold out within a day. This demonstrates that our brand
brings in strong influence and impact to the market.

In February, acquired two pieces of land in Wuxi located at Taihu
New Town and along Taihu Avenue, through public listing. This
is the first land bank replenishment in the year 2010 and the
volume of our YRD land bank has increased by 1.46 million sqg m
and our overall land bank now reaches 5.2 million sq m.

In February, entered into an agreement with Industrial and
Commercial Bank of China for available loan facilities of RMB10
billion.

On March 18th, the grand opening of the Shanghai Peninsula
Hotel, symbolizing a grand welcome to top-of-the-line hotel
services into Shanghai and another showcase of the successful
implementation of the Group’s product strategy. The Shanghai
Peninsula becomes the new landmark amongst the buildings on
the Shanghai Bund.

2009

In April, signed an agreement with Fraser Hospitality to bring
their services into our luxurious serviced apartments in Global
188 in Suzhou.

In July, acquired land with a site area of approximately 476,608
sg m and gross floor area ('GFA’) of approximately 352,900 sq m
in Xiaodian District, Taiyuan City, Shanxi Province.

In July, the La Casa in Changshu, which faces the national park,
officially launched its first phase and received popular demands
from the local customers due to good location and exquisite
design. The first phase was sold out within the year.

In August, the launch of Global 188 in Suzhou attracted over
500 potential customers and received overwhelming responses
from the market.

20105

TR -mYRe -AKRIERE RS-
mMERERIN - FAEEMR -RAE
HEB BARREENRBEEIM
EEWHERTE N -

A LB ESES T AHHTR
MABREMBEABE N L EH
ot X IBREENFEENE X
+THERFEE R = A R E
#1468 F 5 K 2 L R HE B #1520
BEAHK-

28 - Hh B TR iR 1T %R AT BB 1 AR
FETHRTEERTSAERERE
AR®100B T -

3A1IBAE EBFBEEEAME %
BERREXER EBBEEZXRE &S K
FRUERANRF EEEBEmEK
METRE-RE XA LBINE
BREBTHNMER-

2009 F

4R RBEERERERAAEE
EXER G BREREAEEE
12 {3 B # M #0 5 7% - 3R 518878 B
MEERBRAE -

7A - BB —@BURWLAESE KRS D
JEE A i R H o & T S 4 B476,608
T KK EEMIEA A352,900F F K e

TH BHBERABEBMNERAES AR
B-HEARR - ANZEBMWEN
ERH ARFABE ERAES-BR
B-KHEHNAXEHEP D
HE-—HRFAECKEE-

SH 'HME S -IRIK1881H B M & ©
BE HWIBAS00ZERE R ERL
MHREET -



In August, the serviced apartment portion of the Shanghai
Cambridge Holiday Inn successfully launched and sold out within
the year. This development is located at the Pudong Cambridge
district, close to the airport and the site of the 2010 Shanghai
EXPO. The portion launched, includes 1-to-3 bedroom types of
units that are within the GFA of 70 to 130 sg m.

In September, Xi Shui Dong in Wuxi sets record-breaking single-
day sales in terms of average selling price per unit and the GFA
sold. The property was sold out within 4 hours with a transaction
value of RMB560 million.

In October, the Group’s trophy asset, the Peninsula Shanghai
Hotel, had a successful soft opening. This development is
located in Shanghai on the famous Bund, being the only
new development along the Bund since 1930s. With this
development, SPG Land revived the look and feel of Shanghai’s
glamorous era of the 1920s and 1930s and also demonstrates
Asia’s top-notch luxury to the world.

In November, completed an acquisition of the 40% issued share
capital of Global 188 in Suzhou owned by a fund managed by
Harvest Capital Partners in a joint-venture project.

In December, signed a strategic cooperation agreement with the
Agriculture Bank of China for available loan facilities of RMB8
billion.

In December, entered into an agreement with the Huangpu
District Government for the management and lease of the
properties at No. 33 on the Bund. This demonstrates trust and
recognition by the local Government towards SPG Land’s quality
project management capabilities.

For the year 2009, contracted sales reached RMB5,544,000,000,
far exceeded the original target of RMB2-3 billion.
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Awards and Accolades

2010
SPG Land is awarded “China Top 100 Real Estate Developers
Award-Top 10 Growth” (China Index Academy)

2009
1. Global 188 is awarded “Property with High Investment Value in
the Yangtze River Delta” (365 Website)

2. Global 188 is awarded "Top 10 New Landmark in China” (“Asia
International Real Estate Investment and Trading Meeting and
2009-2010 Seminar on the Achievements in Urban
Constructions and New Landmarks in China” organized by
Industry and Market Research Committee of China Real Estate
Association and the China Index Research Institute)

3. Tiffany is awarded “The Most Attention Drawing Property of
Home Buyers” (Soufan)

4. SPG Landis awarded “Popular Enterprise” (Soufan)

5. Global 188 is awarded “Commercial Property with Highest
Investment Potential” (Soufan)

6.  Oriental Garden is awarded “Shanghai Classical Villa” (Soufan)

7. Kunming Metropolitan is rated as the “Recommended Urban
Living Residential Project” by China Real Estate Index System in
2009 (Soufan)

8.  Global 188 is awarded the “Leading Commercial Real Estate in
2009" (Shanghai Property Market)

9.  SPG Land is awarded “The Most Influencing Urban Operator” in
2009 Annual China Real Estate Conference -Shanghai (Oriental
Morning News)
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2008

2007

SPG Land is awarded the “Most Influential Brand Enterprise” by
SouFun.com

Tiffany (Cambridge Waters Phase Ill) is awarded the “Landmark
Property Project” by SouFun.com

Oriental Garden (Cambridge Watertown) is awarded the
“Distinguished Villas in Yangtze River Delta” by SouFun.com

Oriental Garden (Cambridge Watertown) is awarded the “Heroic
Villas” by ‘Shanghai Loushi’ of Shanghai Real Estate Trading
Center

SPG Land is recognized as one of the “Top 100 Property
Developers in China in 2007”

SPG Land is recognized as “China’s Brand Real Estate Enterprise”

Cambridge Watertown is recognized as a “Top Twenty Classic
Real Estate Developments in China”

SPG Land is recognized as one of the “Top Ten Real Estate
Developers in Shanghai in 2007

Oriental Garden (Cambridge Watertown) is recognized as one of
the “Top Ten Best Living Property of China Municipal Classic
Property Index System Sample Project”

Kunming Metropolitan won “Residential Housing Classic Award
2007 China Real Estate Golden Brick Award”

Kunming Metropolitan won “Show Flat Award” at “the 90 m?
Housing Unit Creative Design Competition in Kunming”
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Awards and Accolades

2006

o SPG Land is recognized as a “National Trustworthy Property
Developer in 2006” by the China Property Trustworthiness
Research Centre

o SPG Land is recognized as a “2006 Star Property Developer” by
four major Chinese media (Xinmin Wanbao, Wen Wei Pao,
Beijing Wanbao, Dongfang Zaobao)

o Cambridge Watertown accredited “BusinessWeek Architectural
Record China Award” and “Tsingpu Region Model Project” and
"The Best Community for the White Collar in Shanghai” awards,
by four major Chinese media (Xinmin Wanbao, Wen Wei Pao,
Beijing Wanbao, Dongfang Zaobao)

o Shanghai New Independence House Property Management Co.,
Ltd. is given “Shanghai Best Estate Property Management
Award”

° Shanghai New Independence House Property Management Co.,
Ltd. is awarded as the First Class Property Management
Enterprise Award

° Shanghai New Independence House Property Management Co.,
Ltd. passed the ISO14001:2004, OHSAS18001:1999 Three-In-
One Management System

2005
o SPG Land is recognized as one of the “Top 10 Foreign Property
Developers in Shanghaiin 18 Years”

o SPG Land is accredited as the Top Bank Credit Rating Enterprise
in Shanghai: AAA

2004
J Cambridge Watertown is recognized as “Innovative
Demonstration Project as Champion of New Chinese Resident”

o Cambridge Forest Newtown is recognized to have first class
quality in its development
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2003
o Cambridge Forest Newtown received “Shanghai Top Grade Villa
Development Model” and “Best Potential Residence Award”

o Cambridge Waters is awarded “China Residence Innovation
Award”

° Shanghai New Independence House Property Management Co.,
Ltd. passed the ISO9001:2000 Management System

2002
o Cambridge Forest Newtown received Gold Awards in “National
Landscape” and “Technology Advancement”

2001

o Cambridge Forest Newtown received “Most Stylish Residence of
the Century Award”, “Shanghai’s 10 Most Classic Urban
Residence Award”, and “China’s 10 Most Classic Residence
Award”

2000

o Cambridge Forest Newtown received “2000 China House
Design Award” and “Shanghai House Design Award” by the
Ministry of Construction
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Chairman Statement

While the global economy was undergoing a drastic rise and fall in the
year 2009, SPG Land rose to face the challenges and achieved
remarkable record-breaking results in all areas, thus reaching new
heights in terms of recognized sales and areas, contracted sales and
areas and areas for work commencement and under construction. This
is the year where 24X’ development strategy is executed. This is an
important year where SPG Land has succeeded in its strategic
transformation, reaping its rewards, and marching into the Billion
Dollar Club; nonetheless, this is just the beginning.

SPG Land has accumulated over ten years of experience in developing
large-scale and high quality residential projects. Such experiences
enable the Group to be in the leading position and specialize in niche
project development, acquisition and development of quality land,
partnership with world-renowned design and architectural teams and
building a sound and stable financial structure. In year 2009, SPG Land
successfully transformed from a pure residential developer to
encompassing mixed-use development into its projects. SPG Land has
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also successfully extended its corporate strategies into the
economically-strong, populous and affluent Yangtze River Delta where
we have established strong market presence. In particular, our
outstanding sales results made us the price-leaders in cities like Suzhou
and Wuxi.

ADHERANCE TO HIGH- QUALITY PRODUCT STRATEGY
We believe our persistence in developing high-quality product is the
winning move to overcome any crisis ahead and the key to ensure
excellence. Last year, SPG Land several projects in prime locations
within the major cities of the Yangtze River Delta which received
overwhelming market responses and achieved outstanding sales
result. Our products have become benchmark developments and this
boosts the brand image of SPG Land. Imminently, such cities have
benefited from our commitment for project quality as it increases the
value of their land and facilitates urbanization.

We are proud to soft-launch the Shanghai Peninsula Hotel in October
2009. This mixed-use development took seven years to develop and is
the newest landmark building on the Bund since the 1930s. The
Shanghai Peninsula shall be the benchmark for the service industry in
Shanghai, particularly, a role model to the hotel service industry. The
up-coming serviced apartments, the Peninsula Residence, will be
launched shortly and shall dazzle the world with Asia’s top-notch
lifestyle and luxury living.

Expanding our horizon to the affluent YRD, SPG Land has created
some other landmark projects, leading the way for mixed-use
development projects. Xi Shui Dong is a masterpiece of mixed-use
development in Wuxi. This development carefully preserves the
historical elements of Wuxi and infuses this with modern living. The
project sets new sales record of Wuxi in a single day, in terms of unit-
selling price and GFA sold. The apartments were sold out within 4
hours upon launch and achieved a transactional value of RMB 560
million.

Being titled as the tallest building in Suzhou, Global 188 has received
most attention in CBD area of Suzhou Industrial Park. Notwithstanding
that the selling price of the project was doubled in comparison with
the properties in the same area, Global 188 has been ranked 1st for its
residential sales since its launch in August 2009 for consecutive
months.
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Chairman Statement

ADHERANCE TO HIGH- QUALITY PRODUCT STRATEGY
(Continued)

We see the importance to be steadfast in our product strategy, to
continuously maintain leading sales results for our properties, to retain
talents and to ensure good branding image. We foresee in the next
two decades that there will be a growing number of high quality
exquisite developments from SPG Land that will spread across the
urban areas of China.

ENSURING SUFFICIENT PRIME LAND FOR
DEVELOPMENT AND BUSINESS SUSTAINABILITY
Most land in our land bank are situated in prime urban locations such
as the Bund of Shanghai, the city centre of Wuxi, the heart of CBD of
Suzhou Industrial Park, etc. Due to our commitment to our strategy,
our properties are left relatively unscathed albeit numerous property
crisis. This clear strategy is to, first, establish headquarter in Shanghai
and develop into the YRD and provincial capital cities and, second, to
ensure a prudent and rational approach in acquiring prime land sites.
Moving forward, we will stay vigilant to all upcoming economic trends
and remain competitive in the bidding of prime land in first-tier cities,
while placing more emphasis on developing and banking in premium
land sites in the second-tier cities.

SPG Land is in good standing among its peers in the sourcing,
preservation and development of quality land. With regards to our
leisure and resort projects, our projects located in well-known tourist
destination such as Haikou and Changshu have outperformed other
luxurious residential properties in the same area. Our Huangshan
Taiping Lake project will be launched by SPG Land in 2010. Huangshan
Hidden Tiger Golf Club will commence operations in 2010, along with
international hotels and luxurious properties that are currently under
construction. Since ancient China, the Chinese has a tradition of
manifesting their feelings for beautiful scenic landscapes into literature
and for habitation. Besides sharing our emotional attachment to such
strong Chinese heritage, it is also a trend for the noveau riche in
modern China to collect properties located in such precious land filled
with natural resources. Hence, SPG Land believes that our
developments on such precious land must proceed with careful
protection and preservation. Amidst the world climate change, SPG
Land is determined to uphold our social obligation to maintain green
and sustainable development.
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DEVELOPMENT AND RETENTION OF TALENTS IN THE
LONG-RUN

In the pursuance of high-quality land and the precise execution of
strategic moves for premium products, SPG Land recognizes that our
most important asset is people and to create an elite SPG working
team. During difficult times, it is crucial to have the right people
onboard, people who are dedicated in helping to manage the
vicissitude of turbulent times, to seek out right market opportunities
and to have the ability to adopt a balanced approach for both good
and bad times. Our credo of “Fresh Thinking, Quality Living”
emphasizes uniqueness, innovation and originality, and these are the
qualities of the persons we look for in our working team. We offer
competitive remuneration to recruit and retain talents and we provide
an excellent platform for the career development of our staff and to
ensure that our people have a sense of achievement and satisfaction.
We strongly believe in “Putting Efforts with Hearts, Reaping Rewards
with Happiness” in our day-to-day work. This is SPG Land’s human
capital philosophy and this is an integrated part of our corporate
culture.

PRUDENT AND STABLE FINANCIAL STRATEGY

Looking ahead for the year 2010, the global economy has not fully
recovered from the impact suffered during the crisis and the China real
estate market is filled with challenges and uncertainties. In order to
address to such ever-changing market dynamics and intense market
competition, SPG Land will fully capture any up-coming opportunities,
adhere closely to our prudent and stable financial strategy, stay focus
on sound cash control, and reinforce our project planning and
execution abilities. We aspire to deliver more robust financial results,
and achieve more stable, sustainable and rapid growth.

In conclusion, on behalf of the board of directors, | would like to thank
all shareholders, investors, strategic and business partners for their
understanding, trust and support for the Group during the year.
Though the financial crisis has yet to come to an end and 2010
remains to be a challenging and uncertain year, we are set to steer
through the storm and scale new heights. We put in effort to build a
more solid business foundation for SPG Land and to create maximum
returns for our shareholders.
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Chief Executive's Review

I have much pleasure in presenting the operating results of SPG Land
(Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
known as the “Group”) for the financial year ended 31 December
2009 (“FY2009").

We set some goals for ourselves in the beginning of FY2009. We
projected our annual contracted sales in the range of RMB2 billion to
RMB3 billion. We anticipated the timely delivery of our first set of
projects acquired after IPO. We also targeted to add quality land in
Yangtze River Delta (“YRD") and provincial capital cities into our land
bank.

Here, | am delighted to report that we achieved our goals despite
uncertainties that arose from global economic conditions. In fact, our
Group proudly surpassed these goals and completed our best year
ever in the Group's development history with record results on almost
all fronts. We attribute much of our accomplishments to high sales
volume and elevated selling prices, aggressive yet strategic geographic
expansion, our consistent adherence to the Group's “2+X" product
strategy, responsible and prudent financial management, and high
degree of cooperation and teamwork among our diligent workforce.
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OPERATIONAL REVIEW

FY2009 set a new stage for the solid and sustainable business growth
of the Group. Our Group's business soared to greater heights with our
record results in both contracted and recognized sales. In FY2009, the
Group generated a total revenue of RMB3,065 million, rose by 120%
against the RMB 1,395 million achieved in FY2008. Net profit of the
Group, amounted to RMB830 million, experienced a significant gain
of 341%, primarily due to our robust growth in sales volume and
selling prices, both for existing projects and new launches. The Group
has also benefited from fair value gains on its investment portfolio.

In our gratitude to the faith and support from our shareholders, the
Board of Directors recommended the payment of a final dividend of
RMB5.5 cents per share for FY2009. Together with the interim
dividend of RMB2.95 cents per share, the total dividend for the full
year will be RMB8.45 cents. Besides, the Board of Directors also
recommended a bonus issue of 1 share for every 40 existing shares
held.

Sales Performance

The residential market in China has recovered rapidly and significantly
out of the global financial turmoil starting in late 2008. The recovery
was brought forward by a series of monetary easing and supportive
measures introduced by the central government for the economy at
large. With a bundle of stimulus measures introduced by the central
government, the confidence in the real estate market started to
recover in the second quarter of 2009. Since then, revival of market
demand has been well evidenced and the property market has
maintained a steady momentum with notable increases in residential
sales. The Group has been well-positioned and responded swiftly and
decisively, taking advantage of the early recovery stage of the market
by pre-selling units in existing and new projects at increased prices and
faster rates. As a result, we achieved contracted sales of RMB5.544
billion, far-exceeding the goal we set in the beginning of the year.
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Chief Executive's Review

OPERATIONAL REVIEW (Continued)

Sales Performance (Continued)

We marked 2009 as a year of sterling achievements in terms of
executing our geographic strategy. Our residential projects in
Shanghai, namely, ‘Cambridge Forest New Town’, ‘Cambridge
Waters' (‘Tiffany’), ‘Cambridge Watertown’ (‘Oriental Garden’) and
‘Shanghai Holiday Inn Apartments’, gained tremendous market
popularity. FY 2009 is the time to reap the harvest for our post-IPO
projects outside Shanghai where great success was revealed through
overwhelming market responses received in our inaugural and
subsequent sales launches. Such projects include the ‘Metropolitan” in
Kunming, ‘Florea” in Haikou, ‘La Casa’ in Changshu (1st launch in July
2009), ‘Global 188" in Suzhou (1st launch in August 2009), and
"XiShuiDong’ in Wuxi (1st launch in September 2009). Our fervent
determination and persistence in ensuring innovative designs, product
quality and precise market positioning, differentiate us from our
competitors. Our projects command premium prices and are sold
faster than our peers. It is evident that our strategy of expanding
projects to affluent cities in YRD and various provincial capital cities
with fast-growing potential is a well-thought strategic move in the
right direction.

Development Progress

We are also pleased to report that the development for all of our
projects is in satisfactory progress. For FY2009, the GFA for the
projects completed and delivered stood at a record level of
306,885 sg.m, which mostly falls within the cities of Shanghai,
Kunming and Haikou.
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OPERATIONAL REVIEW (Continued)

Development Progress (Continued)

Large-scale Residential Community Projects

As for the Group’s residential projects, all of those undertaken by the
Group are large-scale residential community developments. These
include our projects in Shanghai, Kunming and Changshu.

By end of FY2009, the Group successfully delivered the first major
post-IPO project on time — Phases | and Il of ‘Metropolitan’ in
Kunming. The ‘Metropolitan’ is one of the largest and upscale
residential projects in Kunming, having a total buildable GFA of over
600,000 sq.m. The project is located along Dianchi Road, close to the
municipal offices. This is a good combination of city-centre
convenience with mature living environment and exquisite scenery
view.

Our three exemplary large-scale residential communities in Shanghai
(Cambridge Forest Newtown, Cambridge Waters — Tiffany and
Cambridge Watertown — Oriental Garden) have all been progressing
well. Completion and delivery of units were executed in FY2009
according to our planned schedule.

City-centre Integrated Projects

Our trophy asset on the Bund, The Peninsula Shanghai, had its hotel
completed and soft-opened in mid-October. It has been rapidly
gaining popularity in the marketplace due to its unrivalled location and
luxury with elegance, and has also been well recognized as a landmark
development in Shanghai. This complex is the first new development
fronting on the Bund since 1930s and also marks the Group’s first
success in developing a city-centre integrated project. Currently, the
other components of this project, The Peninsula Residences and The
Peninsula Arcade, are undergoing interior fit-out works which are
expected to be finished by mid-2010.
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Chief Executive's Review

OPERATIONAL REVIEW (Continued)

Development Progress (Continued)

City-centre Integrated Projects (Continued)

One of our important landmark projects in YRD is ‘XiShuiDong’ in
Wuxi, for which the construction commenced in December 2008. The
project is currently the largest city-core development in Wuxi and is
located strategically along China’s Grand Canal which has historically
been the cradle of Wuxi’s cultural and business hub. Possessing a site
area of approximately 248,000 sq.m and a buildable GFA of
approximately 700,000 sg.m, the project is designed as a multi-phase
and large-scale city-centre integrated development.

Another of our city-centre integrated projects is Global 188 in Suzhou
which has been topped out and target for completion by end of 2010.
The development is located in the CBD of Suzhou Industrial Park,
comprising of approximately 149,270 square metres premium
apartments (“Frasers Suites”), office and retail spaces. The complex is
currently the tallest development in the area and commands a scenic
view over Jin Ji Lake. Upon completion, it will serve as a landmark in
Suzhou Industrial Park.

Leisure and Resort Projects

Our leisure and resort project in Haikou, ‘Florea’, sits on a site with an
area of approximately 292,435 sq.m and a total buildable GFA of
approximately 250,886 sq.m. The construction works for this multi-
phase project are proceeding smoothly. The site is adjacent to seashore
and national park, ideal for being developed into resort-type
residences. The project is designed in Spanish style with dense
vegetation and recreational facilities.

Our first golf practice facility, ‘'The Hidden Tiger Golf Club’ in
Huangshan, designed by Gary Player, is of world-class standards and
now is in its completion stage. The facility will have its grand opening
in mid 2010 and is aimed to become one of the most prestige golf
facilities in China.

The ‘Cambridge Holiday Inn in Shanghai’ and the ‘Crowne Plaza
Resort’ in Taiping Lake, Huangshan, were both under active
construction in FY2009. We look forward to the soft opening of
‘Cambridge Holiday Inn" by end of 2010 and ‘Crowne Plaza Resort’ in
2011.
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OPERATIONAL REVIEW (Continued)

Land Bank Replenishment

The Group is strategic and yet prudent in its quest for expansion to
replenish its land bank. In July 2009, the Group acquired a piece of
land in Xiaodian District, Taiyuan, the capital city of Shangxi Province,
with a site area of approximately 429,447 sq.m and buildable GFA of
approximately 352,900 sg.m. The site is located in an area with
enormous potential as the local government intends to develop the
area into a multi-functional residential, commercial and leisure new
town center. This is our first land acquisition in FY2009 since the
market rebound, which reflects the Group’s capability of capturing
good opportunities as soon as they arise.

In February 2010, the Group successfully enlarged its investment in
YRD by adding two pieces of quality land in its Wuxi portfolio through
public listing. One parcel of land is located at Taihu New Town, with
site area of approximately 272,375 sq.m and buildable GFA of
approximately 778,383 sgq.m. The land was jointly acquired with our
local partner. According to the latest town planning, Taihu New Town
is one of the local government’s utmost priorities under the urban
development strategy of Wuxi. The acquired site is next to the Wuxi
government headquarters and situated on the intersections of future
subway lines. The other parcel of land sits right on Wuxi’s main road:
Taihu Avenue with a site area of approximately 263,000 sq.m and
buildable GFA of approximately 682,000 sq.m. The land is located at
Xishan District and is surrounded by a comprehensive transportation
network including the proposed High Speed Rail which is currently
under construction.

The above acquisitions align with our geographic focus to further
penetrating into the fast-growing YRD and the provincial capital cities.
The new projects also fit well into our product strategy of developing
large-scale residential communities. The Group’s current land bank
now stands at approximately 5.32 million sq.m and will cater to the
Group’s continued business growth for the next 4 to 5 years.
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Chief Executive's Review

OPERATIONAL REVIEW (Continued)

Responsible and Prudent Financial Management

The Group implemented a proactive and sensible financial
management policy which has been well-tested during the financial
crisis. We are proud to say that we maintained as one of the lowest net
gearing and best interest coverage ratios amongst all the listed
developers through FY 2009. Also, our Group has kept healthy cash
position throughout. Because of our reliable track record and strong
financial position, we have received very positive responses from our
banking partners to the Group’s funding requirements. Despite
volatility of the credit market during the period, in December 2009 the
Group successfully signed an agreement with Agricultural Bank of
China for an available loan facility up to RMB 8 billion. In February
2010, the Group further entered into an agreement with Industrial
and Commercial Bank of China for another available loan facility up to
RMB 10 billion. Throughout the year, we recognized that it is crucial to
maintain healthy financials as this helps in safeguarding our
continuous business expansion.

In addition, we captured the precious market opportunity to buy back
our convertible bonds at a price much lower than its face value and
were able to lock in early profit. We also bought 40% of project equity
shares from our fund partner of the 'Global 188" project in Suzhou,
with full confidence that our earnings from this project will be greatly
enhanced in the years to come.

FUTURE OUTLOOK: 2010 AND BEYOND

The global economic environment is considered to be on track with
gradual improvement in response to the implementation of policies
from governments of various countries, but the pace of recovery
remains less certain. With the macro stimulus and the carefully
adopted policy by the central government, it is anticipated that the
economy of China will maintain a reasonable level of growth in the
coming years. Our industry is closely aligned with the long-term
economic growth in China, notwithstanding numerous short-term
factors. Amidst the unprecedented turbulent times, we made great
strides in FY2009 and were able to capitalize the emerging
opportunities. We have consistently leveraged on our product and
geographic strategies which, together with a healthy cash flow,
helped us survive in bad times, while still have the capacity of seizing
any opportunities that arise in the early recovery of the market.
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FUTURE OUTLOOK: 2010 AND BEYOND (Continued)

The Group has been on high growth trajectory, primarily driven by the
fact that more projects in the pipeline are entering into mature phases.
We are putting extra efforts in rolling out new projects and
accelerating the development of existing projects, preparing them
more quickly in time for sale, thereby providing flexibility in the timing
to release into the market. In 2010 and beyond, we envisage that the
projects outside Shanghai, particularly those in YRD, will have an
increasing share in the revenue contributions to the Group.

Looking at the long term prospect, we see a promising real estate
market in China. Despite the short-term fluctuations, we will take
advantage of our professional expertise, fresh thinking ability,
innovative design, reputable brand name and financial strength to
pitch premium pricing and better development returns. Going
forward, we are excited at the prospect of achieving even better
results in 2010 and the years ahead. We will continue to execute our
‘24X’ strategy effectively and maintain a disciplined strategy in
managing our cash flow. We will make inroads into the existing and
new markets by replenishing fresh land bank which is in line with our
geographic and product strategies. We also look towards any
challenges that come forth, as 2008 has further proved that we are a
resilient company, and everything we experienced and learnt over the
past decade and everything we intend to do in the future will place the
Group on a stronger footing and enable us to increase value for our
shareholders in the years to come.

FY2009 is a challenging yet rewarding year for us. | would like to
express my appreciation to our shareholders for their support and
patience, our capital providers for their confidence in us, our
customers for making us their preferred choice, our business associates
for productive relationships, and last but not the least, my gratitude
towards our colleagues for the rough times we have gone through
together. We look forward to an even more exciting new chapter for
the Group in the year 2010.

ARRE ZZ-—ZFFRURE
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Property Projects Portfolio
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Shanghai Projects Li81E B
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Large-scale Residential Community Projects K& {FEIEH

1. Cambridge Forest Newtown FEi§ ¥ &

600Z Hoday |enuuy




2.Shanghai Cambridge Holiday Inn B2 &5-EE &R BEE

Brief Introduction & B &/ :

Yk EE—

Brief Introduction & B &/ :
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Brief Introduction EHB & :

Brief Introduction & B /) :

Property Projects Portfolio

4, Oriental Garden (Cambridge Watertown) B2 & - R 75 Rz (BB /K 48)

Site area (sq.m) A& EFE (F752K) : 304,001
GFA (sq.m) #8325Em1E (F72K) : 202,629

- Thelargest Chinese-style, lakeside villa development in Shanghai
EEsARRORE R E R

- The project has approximately 700 houses; Located in Qingpu
District; 25km from Honggjiao Airport
IR EESBE - mAI7008REEAK - IEREIB#%525
nE

- Adjacent to ancient water town Zhujiajiao; 1,700-year history
and a famous tourist site; excellent ecological area
HWERAKAERDHEERA  KRRAK/EHE1, 70009 E L
B R IR - DAELBSE A ARt [ T it 2

- Lot -VIl have been completed; Lot VIil'is planned to commence
construction and start to presale in 2010
—ERMRELTET - N\ EN2010FHILE
WIEE

City Center Integrated Projects S T 4 & 8 E B

5. The Shanghai Peninsula L£i§¥ 85#/E

Site area (sq.m) #AREE (F52K) : 13,898
GFA (sq.m) #325EmME (FF7K) ¢ 92,520

includes:
B
Peninsula Hotel, Peninsula Residences and Peninsula Arcade

FEBE - DEFREEABRERES

Peninsula Hotel has a total of 235 rooms; Peninsula Residences
has a total of 39 units.

FBBEHEE235 EEMHE - DEFEREABEE39EEM

- The Peninsula Hotel has full facilities including the signature
Peninsula lobby lounge, jazz bar, Peninsula Aqua Treatment
Centre, swimming pool and 5 restaurants
FEHERERETE  BEELANFERENRCE @ B

TEGRIE - L ERERL R ZES RNTARER

- The signature development was completed in 2009 and the
hotel soft launched in October 2009 and grand opening in
March 2010. Peninsula Residences will be available for sale in
the year of 2010
FISEH IR AH2000 SRR - DB EBIER2009910
AR ELN2010F3 A ERFE : DEFSBERASH
20105 £ TEHE




Yangtze River Delta Projects R’ I =AMIEE

Wuxi Projects #§518 H
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City CenterIntegrated Projects i 1 #x & B 78 H

1. Xi Shui Dong B & - FA/KER

Brief Introduction & B & :
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2. Taihu New Town Project X ¥ %7 5 & B

600Z Hoday |enuuy




Large-scale Residential Community Projects KB {X=E1HE

3. Taihu Avenue Project X AEEE

Site area (sq.m) HA&EITE (F75K) : 263,300
GFA (sq.m) xEEEmEE (FK) 681,690

Brief Introduction EB i/ :

The site is in close proximity to the Management Committee of Xishan Economic Development Zone and is along the key artery of Wuxi city —
Taihu Avenue

HofRf B 2AG LR EI NS EHREBE MAPKEZ R

Well-covered by comprehensive transportation network, the district is close to the YRD High Speed Rail - one of the biggest stimulating factor for
the future development of the district, which will gradually become the preferred choice for home buyers from urban area

Aig3sEERE - AR AR ZSBEZHRCE LI EXHEIERNRERE - WIEERSKATRBEENE®

Commencement of construction in 2011 and expected to
presale in 2012
#&P2011 SFRTIFE2012 FRRTRE

Suzhou Project & 18 B

City Center Integrated Projects 3

Suzhou Global 188 2 5 - I:R%k188

Site area (sq.m) & EFE (F52K) © 14,896
GFA (sq.m) #83E5Em1E (F52K) : 149,308

Brief Introduction E B & :

Located in the CBD of Suzhou Industrial Park, near Jinji Lake,
underground connected to the subway
A S EN e ER N TEE T REHR - SRR

uh

A landmark project consisting of serviced apartment (Frasers
Suites),hotel (Chedi Hotel), grade A office tower and retail
podium, the tallest building under construction in vicinity
HRBAAE (BRERE)  BJE (Chedi BJE) - FRBETE
N EEIEPTAERR RS REE - RE AR R=EE

The project is currently under development and presale started
in 2009; Overall project will be completed by 2010
EHEDEEESR - BAAR2009 FHRIATES @ BEER
201057

BEHUEssE—
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Property Projects Portfolio

Changshu Projects & #4758 B

Large-scale Residential Community Projects X & {¥ =& 4 & 18 H

LaCasa® 5 a5 &

Site area (sq.m) AR ETE (F75K) : 119,769

GFA (sq.m) #E325EmEE (FAK) - 86,728

Brief Introduction EB i/ :

Situated at the fringe of Yu Mountain, facing the national park
and with established amenities and infrastructures

R ELES  BERERAR - #ETSHSULRERE
TR b

A prestigious project in the area consisting of townhouses and
duplexes units
REEERIE R BRI E KB E EEER

The first phase of the project started presale in 2009 and phase
Il will be ready for presale in 201 0
18 H —HiR2009 SFRRTEE - E_HIM2010 FRATEE

Leisure and Resort Projects /K [l & E & 12 H

EmeraldBay 2% 5 - 35 2 &

Site area (sq.m) HAAE & (F75K) : 107,391
GFA (sq.m) #E32&mE (FAK) 121,325

Brief Introduction B &) :

Situated at the unique location and is adjoining the scenic
Shang lake to the north along with impressive lake views
ZIEB R RS BRIl - WSS AR SBIEN
ik

Will commence the construction and start to presalein 2010

1702010 SFRA T A ENE FRATRE
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Kunming Project & B8 1 B

=

Large-scale Residential Community Projects X & X £t E 1§ B

The Metropolitan & & - X i

Site area (sq.m) AR EFE (F£75K) : 170,806
GFA (sq.m) #E32EmiE (FAK) 614,994

=) WE

==
):‘a
at
=
B
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Brief Introduction EB i/ :

- Located along Dianchi Road in the metropolitan area of
Kunming, where the Provincial Central Administration Offices
are located, is a high quality multi-phase residential and
commercial project
R E BT LR AR O - AR RS R RITBIRA
[ - /O PBEEROALBEEETNHEFSER

- Designated as the recommended urban living residential project
by China Real Estate Index System in 2009
152009 FHREERHBAGAHEE "HTEEESE
HA"

- Phase | & lll are completed and Phase Il commenced the
construction in 2009 and planned to presale in 2010
—HIE = HIE AR - — H3R02009 FRITIATER2010 F
FRTEE
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Property Projects Portfolio

Haikou Project J8 018 H

Leisure and Resort Projects {kE & ER1EH

The Florea /&0 - 815

Site area (sq.m) HAREFE (F52K) : 292,174
GFA (sq.m) #E325&mEE (FAK) : 252,759

Brief Introduction EB i/ :

Located at the first-tier waterfront in the northern part of
Haikou, the Florea enjoys an unobstructed ocean view,
comprising Spanish-style residential development
URNBEEEASWTERILE &S - RiFLE—EE
BERUES - RIS MEEIRE

Phase | is completed, Phase Il is under construction and expected
to presalein 2010
—HIEEK - —HERIHN2010 FEE

Adjacent to on the National Tourism Island planning, the project
has a great potential of appreciation

KRERRIRESRE  THEENEXR

Large-scale Residential Community Projects X B X £ E1EH

Andaluz Taiyuan 825 - BRI

Site area (sq.m) #1E&EIFE (F752K) © 429,000
GFA (sq.m) #8E&EmE (F52K) 352,900

Brief Introduction EB & :

Acquired in July 2009, located in Xiaodian District, southeast of
Taiyuan City, the capital of Shanxi Province, an area with
enormous potential as the local government intends to develop
the area into a multi-functional residential, commercial and
leisure new town center

HEZFA20095F 7 RS - RILFRE @ ARRmEAY/NER o
ZIBAE BEEE N - REMBTMHERNZIEE
£ BEIKREFTRO

Planned to be a low-rise residential community with leisure,

sports and retail facilities. The topography of the land is raised so

the development will overlook the whole of Taiyuan City

%EiJP%/E:ﬁﬁ(ﬁaﬁ ﬁ@a EEERENREEETHLR - I8
B REAR - =

The project is under planning and is expected to presale in 2010
THH RPN EIBE RISt E /2010 FETIEE




Huangshan Project & |L18 B

=)

Leisure and Resort Projects Kk & E & B

=) WE

Huangshan Resort Project || E R EEH

Site area (sq.m) HIAREIFE ((F5K) : 2,283,733

e (X

GFA (sq.m) #E32&mEE (FAK) 1141867

Brief Introduction EB i :

- Located in the northern part of Huangshan, close to the
legendary scenic Taiping Lake
AR EILIEER - AT E R B RSB 8

- Multi-phase resort development comprising five-star hotels, golf
course, resort villas and apartments
REPBROARIER - BEAERBE  SERS -
ERAZERAS

- A golf practicing facility designed by world-renowned Gary
Player was trial to run by the end of 2009 as scheduled.
Bttt RIBR A =B RETATGary Player & EME) = B RBRIZ R
2009 FFIEANEA IR SES

- Construction of resort housing will start at 2010 and presale in
2011
BHIERETEE R 572010 FRATIN2011 FHHRTES
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW

Results, Dividends and Bonus Issue of Shares

During the year under review, the Group achieved a total revenue of
approximately RMB3,065,441,000 (2008: RMB1,394,993,000),
representing an increase of 120%. Net profit surged 341% to
RMB829,747,000 (2008: RMB188,005,000) and the portion
attributable to equity holders of the Company was approximately
RMB678,520,000 (2008: RMB151,499,000), representing a rise of
348%. Basic and diluted earnings per share attributable to equity
holders of the Group amounted to RMB0.660 and RMB0.537 (2008:
RMBO0.146 and RMBO.146) respectively for the twelve months ended
31 December 2009. The Board has recommended the payment of a
final dividend of RMB5.5 cents per share and a bonus issue of 1 bonus
share for every 40 existing shares held (interim dividend for the period
ended 30 June 2009 was RMB2.95 cents per share). The final dividend
will be paid to the shareholders in Hong Kong dollars and will be
converted from RMB using the average exchange rate for the five
business days immediately preceding Monday, 10 May 2010 quoted
by the State Administration of Foreign Exchange, PRC.

For the year ended 31 December 2009, the Group conducted its
business activities in the following major business segments, namely
property development, hotel development and property management
and other businesses. During the year under review, property
development remains the core business and key revenue driver of the
Group.

The surge in revenue was largely driven by overwhelming responses to
the sales of the Group’s nine projects launched during the year under
review, coupled with the recovery of property market since beginning
of the year.

Revenue booked from property sales amounted to RMB2,926,572,000
(2008: RMB1,269,102,000). The revenue from property sales was
satisfactory as a result of the generally positive market environment in
2009 when the sales took place.

X% 0k

XBEB - RERBITAR

REBFE AEEHEFBHRENOAR
#3,065,441,000( Z E T N\ F: AR ¥
1,394,993,0007T ) * & H1120% ° #F F £ F
341% % A R %829,747,000t( = T & N
& A R #188,005,0007T) + M A A &) K& RE
BHEAEWGI DO A AR®G678,520,0007T
(ZZZ )\ F: AR #¥151,499,0007T) * 1 f1
348% - B E_TZETNAF+_A=+—A Lt
TZHEA AEEREFBEABLGERE
AREEBERF S A AARK060T AR
0537 (ZZEZENF : ARBO1467T KA
R¥O146m) EETSLEEINRERE
BRARKESSHO RBEEBRHBIORRERD
BTIRABREEZE_ZEZTALFA=1+H
IFHEOPHRERERARK299)-
REABREBEUB TN TRE - WLAHEH
NEEEBRNREE_ZT—ZTFRAT+HE
AR ABEIERZ ARBE T HREER -

HEeE_ZTZZThE+_A=+—BILtEE"
AEEBRTINFEEBS> B - IWEZR -
BEEREEEEMEMER  ETH
¥%EH-ROBEFE MEBRDAR
SEZLEBREZREZRIR -

WHEERTERAAEERNEEFE#L
MAERBHEERBERUMEMETS B
FHIRRERERTE -

Y EHE RS RE A AR 2926572,000
T(ZEENF: AR #1,269,102,0007T) °
MEFEERZEE DTHR-_ZEZLF#
THERN EREBEGNMBREMK-



MARKET REVIEW

In the first quarter of 2009, the global economic condition continued
to remain sluggish and the government of various countries adopted
proactive bailout policies against the financial tsunami to ease the
economic downturn. With the stimulus package introduced by the
China’s Central Government in effect, confidence in the real-estate
market was being restored gradually in the second quarter of 2009.
Since then, the market has staged a robust comeback with residential
property prices rising to a new height, which indicated the revival of
property market in China.

Property Development

During the year, the Group adhered closely to its schedules of
completions and deliveries as originally planned. Details of completed
and delivered projects, aggregating a total GFA of 306,885 sq.m.
(2008: 115,134 sq.m.) representing a growth of 167% when
compared with the corresponding period of last year are highlighted as
follows:

Projects Completed and Delivered in 2009

™ % @ 8

RZEBETNFF—F 2XLBEREDA
e MZERTRREGNEZ M E
BMENESRER UWFEEETENTE-
BEETEARRFELOR BT RER
FHEMSER _ZTTANFE_FTEEER
EL-Bl THEHARIRE EEWE
BREITHS RRPEYEMSER-

MEZR
FAXAEBEERFRAGERENERIRR
NEBER-ERIRERNEBERNAREE
A 75 £ 306,885 F 77 K(ZZFZE )\ F : 115,134
FHK) BREAFRBEMIET%  FEHT
R~

Approximate

Approximate

GFA GFA Sold &

Completed Delivered

[ER=33:: 153

ERIEMY A HA

EEME EEMEE

Cambridge Forset Newtown — Phase VC FE 1% B-% VCH - 970
Cambridge Forset Newtown — Phase VD FZ 1% ¥ B-% VD Hf - 194
Cambridge Forset Newtown — Phase VE FEB¥E-FVEH - 490
Cambridge Forset Newtown — The Hampton ~ FE# ¥ &-+ L & - 3,459
Cambridge Waters — Phase | FZ 18 7K & -2 1 - 267
Cambridge Waters — Phase Il A FE 1B /K #-% 11 AEf - 5,083
Cambridge Waters — Phase Il - Tiffany B KEB-FNE-F & & 39,347 30,352
Cambridge Watertown — Villas B8 K 8- Rl 22 28,865 66,240
Cambridge Watertown — Townhouses R 18 7K 48— o Rl 22 7,618 15,786
Haikou Florea — Phase | - A BAKE-FI-AH - 1,285
Haikou Florea — Phase | - B g0 -5 1—BE] - 4,253
Haikou Florea — Phase | - C BOERE—FI-CH 25,614 24,732
Haikou Florea — Phase | - D B AKE—FI-DH 27,145 25,789
Kunming Metropolitan — Phase | BHESAMR-%15 97,472 85,822
Kunming Metropolitan — Phase |ll BB & K- 48,940 42,163
Total #Et 275,001 306,885
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWR DN

MARKET REVIEW (Continued) ™ 5 B B (#)
Property Sales Performance MEFHERR
Benefitting from the favorable macroeconomic environment in China, XERFEAMNEFOZELCERE  RER

capitalizing our capability to offer high quality products, and HELEERNENEZZRI2+XIERKE
harvesting from our “2+X" product strategy, the Group achieved our AREBREEFEABRSEL I s E
record property sales performance during the year under review. The HEXRBR - AEBEBRFRANTEHEEER
main sales growth drivers of the Group during the year were in BAORBEBRER W RNEFT-o
Shanghai and Kunming, as highlighted in the following table.
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Approximate

areasold Approximate
and sales Average
delivered recognized  selling price
in 2009 in2009 (RMB/sq.m.)
“ETAE -—BENEFE  FPHEME
EERRXRNY BINELY (NR®

R RS & T 5 K)

Cambridge Forset Newtown — Phase VC F1E+ &-BVCH 970 6,397 6,593

Cambridge Forset Newtown — Phase VD 18 3 & -5 VD Hf 194 3,291 16,950

5 Cambridge Forset Newtown — Phase VE = 15 3 & — 5 VE £f 490 11,553 23,597
gj—’o Cambridge Forset Newtown EB¥E-TLE

§ — The Hampton 3,459 92,433 26,720

g Cambridge Waters — Phase | B 1% 7K & — 55 | Bf 267 2,401 9,000

] Cambridge Waters — Phase Il A &K #—E 1A 5,083 48,464 9,534

Cambridge Waters — Phase Il — Tiffany ~ BE 48 /K #-F | Hi-F 1% /& 30,352 277,079 9,129

Cambridge Watertown — Villas BB K E-p 22 66,240 1,148,100 17,332

Cambridge Watertown — Townhouses & & 7K 4 - 38 #F 5l 22 15,786 187,747 11,894

Haikou Florea — Phase | — A GO &5 1—AH 1,285 9,527 7,414

Haikou Florea — Phase | — B B0 -5 1-BH 4,253 32,238 7,580

Haikou Florea — Phase | — C BORE-51-CH 24,732 168,740 6,823

Haikou Florea — Phase | — D H O —F1—DHA 25,789 181,979 7,057

Kunming Metropolitan — Phase | B RS KHM-%F15 85,822 528,570 6,159

Kunming Metropolitan — Phase |ll BEE S K- 115 42,163 228,053 5,409

Total et 306,885 2,926,572 9,536




MARKET REVIEW (Continued)

Property Sales Performance (Continued)

As at 31 December 2009, the total contracted sales area of the Group
amounted to approximately 476,995 sq.m. (2008: 187,099 sg.m.),
while total contracted sales value amounted to RMB5,544,000,000
(2008: RMB 1,829,771,000), representing an increase of 203%,
exceeding our original target of RMB2 to 3 billion.

Among the Group's projects available for sale during the year, our
large-scale, multi-phase residential community projects, including
Tiffany (Cambridge Waters) and Oriental Garden (Cambridge
Watertown) in Shanghai and The Metropolitan in Kunming were the
key revenue contributors to this segment. The corresponding revenue
accounted for the largest portion of the Group's recognized revenue
in the fiscal year. The upscale residential community in Kunming,
Phase I and Il of the Metropolitan also reached delivery stage and the
respective revenue was recognized in the year under review. Apart
from that, the classic Spanish style resort project, the Florea in Haikou,
achieved steady contracted sales on a monthly basis.

Meanwhile, another four more projects, namely, LaCasa in Changshu,
Global 188 in Suzhou, Xi Shui Dong in Wuxi and Holiday Inn
Apartments in Shanghai have reached the stage of presale in the
second half of 2009 with overwhelming success in their respective
launches. Nine out of the Group's thirteen projects have now been
launched.

Strategic Cooperation

In December 2009, the Group signed a strategic cooperation
agreement with Agricultural Bank of China (“ABC"). According to the
agreement, ABC will provide SPG Land with an available loan facilities
of RMB8 billion. In addition, ABC will cooperate with SPG Land to
provide financial services to target customers. In February 2010, the
Group further entered into an agreement with the Industrial and
Commercial Bank of China for an available loan facility of RMB10
billion. The alliances bolster the Group's rapid and sustainable business
growth to offer our customers value-added products and services.

™ 3% [B] B8 (4)

MEHEEXREE)
R-ZZETAFE+_AZ+—RH A£EEH
BAE K EEEN476995F 5 K(ZEE
JUE D 187009F 5 K) MAKNBERE T
# A R ¥5,544,000,00070( — 2 F JLF: A
R ¥1,829,771,0007T ) + & hN203% -+ #B = A
REBETEIETHRERKRBEZ-

ERASERAFEAHEENERH &K
MO RERZHELTRIER 8 80
HmE(ERBKE) RAERERBKE R
EAMNEs AN HALEBNEEZ WE=

KR BEMHBEOKRROAEBER KRG HEF
EEB#RUREHNEARES LAREHABIE
BEEEBRS AHEBIRNAITE E AN
B - mMEMBBERZIRBBEFERNER-
0 AN NI v s W = 28 Ui 11 7 | =<2
BHEXRHEADNGRERENGRNHEE-

R ZIMEEE BEANKESE &
M E)IRER188H L - EH AT KR M BB
ﬁi BBEE ER_ZZAFTH+FEAR

ERBR HMEURIBREBAXKE - EX
KIE’U‘T—:{IIEE\EQJ'EH'J@HTIIEEE

FHE A E

RZZZANF+_A AEEEPEHEE
RITTHERERITDEITRR VET%%E%’
REZBZE TEREXERTESARE
WwREATBHBERRBEARBSORT- Jtt
S FEREERTSEEBRSEWS F-
SREEEFPFREVERB R _FT—FTF
“AASEE-SEPBEIHRITHA
RE1W00ETHASAERB BT LIHE-
ZEBBERNEPRHBEEEA LIRS X
FAKBESERAFENERER-
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Management Discussion and Analysis

MARKET REVIEW (Continued)

Hotel Development

The Group continues to develop its hotel business as a long-term
recurring income stream. The Group has maintained a good
cooperative relationship with such reputable operators as the
Peninsula Group and the InterContinental Hotel Group.

The Peninsula Shanghai, being the only new complex in the past 70
years with its frontage directly on the historic Bund, consists of hotel,
shopping arcade and apartments, had its hotel successfully soft
opened on 18th October 2009. As for Huangshan project, the
construction work of Crowne Plaza Hotel located in the world-
renowned scenic area of Tai Ping Lake was in progress. The
construction of this international standard golf practicing facility was
practically completed in the year of 2009. The Holiday Inn Hotel in
Shanghai was also under active construction during the year under
review.

Investment Properties and Ancillary Services

To generate stable and recurrent income, the Group also holds some
of its properties for leasing. As at 31 December 2009, the Group
leased an aggregate GFA of approximately 88,742 sq.m. (2008:
92,035 sg.m.).

During the year under review, the shopping arcade of Shanghai
Peninsula Hotel on the Bund has become an additional trophy
investment property of the Group.

The Group operates a post-secondary college (Shanghai Sipo
Polytechnic) and a training centre (Shanghai Sipo Vocational Technical
Training Centre). The Group also operated one of the most prestigious
kindergartens in Shanghai (The China Welfare Institute Kindergarten).
Such investment properties and ancillary educational business
constitutes a minor but stable operation of the Group, representing
approximately 3.3% of the Group's total revenue.

During the year under review, the Company completed the acquisition
of 40% issued share capital of its joint-venture project, Global 188 in
Suzhou, from the fund under management by Harvest Capital
Partners, an international property fund in November 2009.

™ % B B (&)

BIEERRE

AEBEEBEEREBEXRB FARAK
FHRARR REBETANGEER
MEEEEEBERMNEEEEB RS R
EREEE

FPEFEBEERBETOFIANRKE — —E 2
REELMERNIMNENFTHRAERER  £BE -
BHERABR B HBEER_ZZThF
TATNABRIAEX -TILEBE @ EE
75/\1@5‘1%1% " BRAFHNEBTRBEEZ
ETRVEETH  MEKERETBHKR
BRENEETIRIENR -_ZTTENFTK -
REBEFEAR R LEBNMKRAMEEINE
B BESP -

REMERBMERK
BEDBERSEMHEZBA AEEITF
EETHERBEZA- RZZETLF+
—RE+-—HB AEEHLELNEEEES
HA88TNRF HK(ZTZ)\F :92,035F 75
K)o

REBFEARN LRIINENHLEBXESAE
MASKASASENEINEEREYE-

AEETEE-—MeEFhR(LEBERERE
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MARKET REVIEW (Continued)

Land Bank Replenishment

The Group's strategy is to maintain a portfolio of land bank that is
sufficient to support the Group’s development pipeline for the next
four to five years. The Group continues to adhere to the "2+X"
product strategy to develop quality large-scale residential
communities, city-center integrated projects and leisure and resort
development with focus on Shanghai, the Yangtze River Delta and
other provincial capital cities with regional economic importance.

Up to the date of this annual report, the Group has a quality land bank
amounting to a total GFA of approximately 5.32 million sg.m., of
which approximately 77% of the land bank will be used for the
development of mid to high end residential projects, approximately
18% for commercial property development, and the remaining 5%
for hotel and resort development.

The Group has successfully expanded its land bank through various
acquisitions during the year under review as well as in the beginning
of 2010:

e  Xiaodian District, Taiyuan City, Shanxi Province

In July 2009, the Group acquired a total site area of
approximately 476,608 sg.m. and a GFA of approximately
352,900 sg.m. at a total consideration of approximately
RMB275 million to cope with the Group'’s large-scale residential
community development plan in provincial capital cities. The
area has immense potential in its location where it is in close
proximity with the commercial and business city core of Taiyuan
City and Taiyuan airport, The Municipal Government plans to
design this area into a multi-functional residential, commercial
and recreational new town centre.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

MARKET REVIEW (Continued)

Land Bank Replenishment (Continued)

e Wuxi new projects
In February 2010, the Group acquired two parcels of land
situated in Taihu New Town and Taihu Avenue.

The land situated in Taihu New Town has a total site area of
approximately 272,375 sg.m. and a gross floor area of
approximately 778,383 sg.m. with a total consideration of
RMB3.53 billion. The joint venture formed by the Group (holding
60% of the joint venture) and Wuxi Taihu New City Construction
Investment & Management Co., Ltd (holding 40% of the joint
venture) acquired this land.

The Land at Taihu Avenue acquired by the Group on the same
day has a total site area of approximately 263,000 sq.m. and a
gross floor area of approximately 263,000 sg.m. with a total
consideration of RMB1.42 billion.

The two land parcels will be used for the purpose of mixed-use
development comprising residential and commercial
components. The acquisitions will enrich the Group’s quality
land bank and will bring forth development opportunity and
commercial benefits to the Group in the long run.

Property Management and Related Services

During the year under review, Shanghai New Independence House, a
subsidiary of the Group providing property management services,
generated property management and related services income, after
intra-group elimination, amounted to approximately RMB26,113,000,
representing an increase of 11% as compared with the previous year.
As at 31 December 2009, the Group managed a total floor area of
around 1,393,000 sg.m.
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MARKET REVIEW (Continued)

Property Management and Related Services (Continued)

To further enhance the value of Peninsula development, the associated
company of the Group, Peninsula Shanghai Waitan, signed a leasing
and management agreement with the government to operate and
manage No. 33 on the Bund in October. This includes 10-year Exclusive
Management Contract of #1 Building Bund 33 and 20-year Leasing
Contract of #2 & #3 Building.

Outlook

The Chinese Government has recently implemented various measures
to tame the liquidity in the system. It is expected that the sentiment of
the property market may be affected in the short-run. However, in the
long-run, we remain optimistic toward the prospect of the property
market in China. The Central Economic Work conference emphasises
the real estate industry being one of the nation’s economic pillars,
especially when the outlook of export remains uncertain amid the
unstable global economic conditions. Together with rapid urbanization
and increasing housing demand in China, the Group is well-positioned
to capture business opportunities, and to target at upper-middle to
high end customer segments with well-received and high quality
products.

On the aspect of hotel operation, the Chinese Government announced
its policy of boosting the tourism industry by easing the visitors’ entry
to cities in China. It is expected that such policy will benefit the
tourism, property and hotel sectors on the whole. With the launch of
the World Expo in 2010, numerous visitors from all over the world will
come to Shanghai and China, and this will stimulate the hotel
occupancy rate.
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MARKET REVIEW (Continued)

Outlook (Continued)

We will continue to follow our “2+X" product strategy and maintain
focus on the development of large-scale residential communities, city-
center integrated projects and leisure and resort developments. We
will solidify our presence in Shanghai where we have well-established
local market knowledge and a reputable brand name with proven
track record. At the same time, we will further strengthen our
presence in other affluent cities in the Yangtze River Delta where the
property demand is strong and there is high potential in achieving
good property prices. The successful sales launch and rise in average
selling price in these projects have built a solid foundation for the
Group's operating results in 2010. In parallel, we will continue to seek
for business opportunities in other cities with regional economic
importance and high growth potentials.

Looking ahead, the Group is to adhere to its credo of “Fresh Thinking,
Quality Living” through top quality products, flexible marketing
strategies, and strategic alliance to maximize the Group's profits as
well as our shareholders’ returns.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

Revenue

The total revenue for the Group for the year 2009 was RMB3,065
million. In terms of the overall unit selling price and volume of
transactions, a table of analysis on the sales of properties is provided as

follows:
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GFA sold & Average
delivered selling price

EERXM
W2 EE R FIHEE
Villas Bl 22 70,190 17,839
Apartments and townhouses NE REYRE 236,695 7,074
Total @5 306,885 9,536

In 2009, the Group successfully completed the development and
delivered residential units in Cambridge Watertown, Kunming
Metropolitan Phase | & Ill, Haikou Florea — Phase |, Cambridge Forest
Newtown and Cambridge Waters. Therefore, the total GFA delivered
reached 306,885 sg.m. (2008: 115,134 sg.m.).

RZEZhF AEBRNITREREX
NEBKS  EEES KB EIRINE - FA
R FIH - BRYEREBKEBOETEENML -
E bt B R R 42 S E B B E $/306,885
FHAR(ZZEZT)NF 115134F 5 K)o



FINANCIAL ANALYSIS (Continued)

Segmental Information

The Group's business is currently categorized into four operating
segments — sales of property, lease of property, property management
and other related services, and education. An analysis of the Group’s
revenue is as follows:

Revenue Stream

Bt % 2 M ()

7 E
AEENEBRE SRRSO ELE D HB—
MEHE MEHE MEBTENE ﬁﬂ*
MRBEEHBRE -AEBENRESTOT

Year ended 31 December
BE+t-ZA=1+t—HLEFE
2009 2008

Change

—ETNEFE s
RMB'000 RMB'000

AR TT ARBTIT

—ETNF
RMB’000
ARBT

Sales of property X R 2,926,572 1,269,102 1,657,470
Rental income e WA 27,271 26,920 351
Property management income MEEEKRAR

& other related service H fh 48 78 PR 75 36,850 38,499 (1,649)
Education HE 74,748 60,472 14,276
Total 4BET 3,065,441 1,394,993 1,670,448

Sales of property remains the Group’s core business activity
representing 95% of the total revenue in 2009. Rental income and
education increased by 1.3% and 24 % respectively, while the revenue
from property management and other related service was down by
4%.

Cost of Sales
Total cost of sales in 2009 increased by 152% from RMB853 million to
RMB2,151 million, being in line with the increase in revenue.

Gross Profit and Margin

Gross profit increased by 69% from RMB542 million in 2008 to
RMB914 million in 2009. After deduction of one-off valuation
premium in cost of sales, the gross profit margin for the full year in
2009 was 33%.

Other Operating Income
In 2009, other operating income increased from RMB3,289,000 in
2008 to RMB5,020,000.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS (Continued)

Operating Expenses

In 2009, the selling and marketing costs increased to RMB117 million
from RMB69 million in 2008 as a result of the significant increase of
contracted sales occurred during the year by launching effective
marketing campaigns.

Administrative expenses decreased from RMB158 million in 2008 to
RMB154 million in 2009, representing a decline of 2.5%, mainly
because of the Group's cost-control policy adopted in this year.

Other operating expenses decreased from RMB7 million in 2008 to
RMB5 million in 2009.

Net Finance Expenses

The net finance expenses of RMB20 million in 2009 compared to net
finance expenses of RMB130 million in 2008. This significant decline
over the previous year was mainly attributable to fair value gain on
convertible bonds of RMB50 million in 2009, while it was a loss of
RMB42 million in 2008.

Share of Gain of Associates

The Group enjoyed a net gain from share of operating results of
associates in 2009 that amounted to approximately RMB66.6 million as
compared to a net loss of RMB12.7 million in 2008.

Revaluation Gain on Investment Properties

The Group recorded a revaluation gain of approximately RMB517
million in 2009. The increase by about RMB492 million as compared
with last year was mainly due to the general appreciation of market
prices of the Group’s investment properties during the year under
review, and the change of accounting policies by recognizing the
revaluation of investment properties under development.
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FINANCIAL ANALYSIS (Continued)

Income Tax

Income tax increased by 148.8% from RMB172 million in 2008 to
RMB428 million in 2009, while the effective tax rate decreased to
19% in 2009 which was resulted from Kunming project company
whose income tax rate is 15% began to contribute profit from 2009.
The increase in tax amount was mainly attributable to the increase of
sales volume.

Profit Attributable to Equity Holders of the Company

The Group achieved a profit attributable to equity holders of RMB679
million (2008: RMB151 million), up RMB528 million or 350% over the
previous year. Earnings per share rose by 352% to RMB0.660 from
RMBO0.146 in 2008.

Net profit margin for the year under review increased from 13% in
2008 t0 27% in 2009.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

The long-term funding and working capital required by the Group
primarily comes from income generated from core business
operations, bank borrowings and cash proceeds raised from the
issuance of the convertible bonds in late April 2007, which were used
to finance its business operations and investment in development
projects. The Group's liquidity position was well-managed in 2009 and
net gearing (total borrowings less cash and cash equivalents including
restricted cash over total equity) stood at a healthy level of 18% as at
31 December 2009. The Group had total cash and cash equivalents of
RMB5,448 million, total borrowings of RMB6,190 million and the
stronger equity base of RMB4,107 million as at 31 December 2009
(2008: RMB3,848 million).

Of the total borrowings, RMB2,135,747,000 was repayable within
one year while RMB4,053,934,000 was repayable after more than one
year. The effective interest rate for 2009 was 5.03% (2008: 6.93%).
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FINANCIAL ANALYSIS (Continued)

Treasury Policy

The business transactions of the Group were mainly denominated in
Renminbi. Except for fund raising transactions in capital market, there
is limited exposure in foreign exchange risk.

The Group has established a treasury policy with the objective of better
controlling of treasury functions and lowering cost of funds. In
providing funds to all its operations, funding terms have been centrally
reviewed and monitored at Group level.

In accomplishing the aim of minimizing interest risk, it is the policy of
the Group to continue to closely monitor and manage the Group'’s
loan portfolio by its existing agreements’ interest margin spread with
market interest rates and offers from banks.

Credit Policy

Trade receivables mainly arose from sales and lease of properties.
Receivables in respect of sales and lease of properties are settled in
accordance with the terms stipulated in the sales and purchase
agreements or lease agreements.

Pledge of Assets
As at 31 December 2009, the Group pledged properties and land use
rights with carrying amount of RMB4,650,925,000 to secure bank
facilities granted to the Group. The total secured loan balance
outstanding as at 31 December 2009 amounted to
RMB4,487,039,000.

Financial Guarantees
As at 31 December 2009, the Group provided guarantees to banks
for:

Mortgage facilities granted to purchasers

RHUEEER

of property units
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FINANCIAL ANALYSIS (Continued)
Capital Commitment

MEBREH:

Property development activities:
— Contracted but not provided for
— Authorized but not contracted for

— 2R EREE
—EREBRITY
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2009 2008
—2ThE

R-FEZENF
RMB’000
ARB T

RMB’000
ARBT T

2,607,856 3,281,935
2,841,889 4,369,492
5,449,745 7,651,427

Management of proceeds from the 2007 Convertible
Bond issuance

In April 2007 the Group raised net proceeds of approximately
RMB1,158 million from a convertible bond issuance. The Company
had applied the proceeds in the existing as well as new development
projects, land acquisitions as well as repayment of borrowings. The
issue will mature and due for redemption in 2012.

On 25 February 2009, the Company repurchased Convertible Bonds
with total nominal value of RMB54,000,000 at a total consideration of
RMB27,864,000. On 19 May 2009, the Company further repurchased
Convertible Bonds with total nominal value of RMB114,400,000
through tender offer at a total consideration of RMB97,084,000.
These bonds had been cancelled upon completion of the repurchases
and the remaining aggregate principal amount of outstanding Bonds
as of 31 December 2009 amounted to RMB889,600,000. The above
transactions helped the Group reduce its debt in favorable terms and
generated a gain of approximately RMB49 million.

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2009, the Group employed a total of 913
employees (2008: 868 employees). The Group has adopted a
performance-based rewarding system to motivate its staff. In addition
to a basic salary, year-end bonuses are offered to those staff with
outstanding performance. Share option schemes were adopted to
attract and retain talents to contribute to the Group. In relation to staff
training, the Group also provides different types of programs for its
staff to improve their skills and develop their respective expertise.
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Corporate Governance Report

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board and the management of the Company treasure the
shareholders’ confidence and trust in the ability and vision of the
management team and have pledged to maintain an open and
responsive attitude in shareholders’ communications that are on par
with other leading coporations in the industry. The Board has been
adamant in upholding best practice in corporate governance to ensure
the timeliness, transparency and fairness of disclosure to maximize the
Group's corporate values and will continue to enhance its disclosure
practices to display an exemplary corporate governance practice.

It is the Board’s belief that a sound corporate governance system has
been and will remain as an instrumental element to the healthy
growth of the Group.

Compliance with the CG Code

The Company has complied with the Code on Corporate Governance
Practices (the “CG Code"”) and the rules on the Corporate Governance
Report (the “CG Rules”) as set out respectively in Appendices 14 and
23 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”)
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the ”Stock Exchange”)
for the year ended 31 December 2009, except for code provisions
A.1.1 and A.4.2 with respect to the holding of at least 4 regular Board
meetings a year and the re-election by shareholders of all directors
appointed to fill a casual vacancy at the first general meeting after
their appointment, as explained in paragraphs A.1.1 and A.4.2
respectively below.
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BFIrEERESRATA
ARRBE-_TZTAF+=ZA=+—HL
FERN —HEETHRNERBEEHRER S
FTERAR(BAZMADES EmANT LR
BMAD W 814K M 82230 D EE A E 8 T
A X ERFMRATADRECEE RS
BMANEEESRRERA]  EEHEGFRER
el rETecHeaz kB ARER
TR MEZTNEZTERESZTED
BABRRAE LEIRRAEEZFHAHEAL
fE RAA2ME=F RIESCRBIBR N BEEFFE D
FIEHNATXEAITTER RAL2E -



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES (Continued) TEERERE
Compliance with the CG Code (Continued) BFhEERERTAE)

=4

The following outlines how the Company has adopted and complied TEBAARARNB WA RAREBETLEE R Im
with the CG Code and the CG Rules to achieve good corporate BHRSTAEMGEESRERNERR HQE;
governance. PEEBNFE- =
at
A DIRECTORS A EE S
A.1 The board Al BEEg =
Principle of Good Governance: The board should assume R ERRAN - EECREAEEEN
responsibility for leadership and control of the company and be RHARMER TERBEBERER
collectively responsible for promoting the success of the AIMERD - EFEERFE AR &=
company. The directors should take decisions objectively in the RATIE TERL BREIRTE -

interests of the company.

Code Provisions Compliance ? Compliance by the Company in 2009

SF AR 2EET? RRBAR-BZNFNETHE

A1

Board meetings should be Deviation explained The Board held two meetings in 2009. Individual

held at least four times ayear. = fEH BB R BE F I8 attendance of each director on a named basis is set out
ExgeREELERF below:

BATHIR o EFEN _TTENFETTRASZ -SLE

Fhat A ARHNEARSBRFI DT

Executive directors: #17T&E % :

Mr. WANG Weixian 2/2
TEREBEXLE

Mr. TSE Sai Tung, Stones 2/2
HHEREE

Ms. WANG Xuling 2/2
TMREL L

Non-executive director: JE7TEE -
Mr. LAl Kin, Jerome 2/2
B2k &
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ffa

> >

EERRE

DIRECTORS (Continued)
The board (Continued)

Code Provisions

FRIRX

A.1.1 (Continued)

Compliance ?

=RESF?

A EE®H
Al EEg2(£E)

Compliance by the Company in 2009
ARBAR-BFENFNETHE

A1 (&)

Independent non-executive directors: & IEHTTEE

Mr. CHEONG Ying Chew, Henry 2/2
9k 5 OH kA

Mr. FONG Wo, Felix, JP 2/2
FTMEERF L)

Mr. JJANG Simon X. 2/2
B /NBR S A

Mr. KWAN Kai Cheong 2/2
N =

In addition to obtaining Board approval through the
circulation of written resolutions of the directors, two
regular Board meetings were held by the directors during
the year ended 31 December 2009. The directors
consider that such arrangements are appropriate and
adequate for addressing all the Company’s affairs which
require the Board'’s direction and supervision during the
past year.

RERBHEFZEAREZRMERESS#
BN RBE-_FTFTAF+_A=+—HLHF
EREFRETTMATRUEETFS SR i%
RAREBLHIRBE - FROEARAMER
EEeRTNEEBEZEHME - B FEI’”*&E;G



DIRECTORS (Continued)
The board (Continued)

Code Provisions

Compliance ?

SFRIER ST = RESF?
A1.2
All directors should be given v

opportunity to include matters
in the agenda for regular
board meetings.
MEEFEHAKEIR
BN EFRINATRE

FEegdaiE-
A13

Notice of at least 14 days v
should be given of a regular

board meeting.s

BROFEHREFEERARA
ZELORAMUARBELBA -

A4

All directors should have v
access to the advice and

services of the Company

Secretary.

FMEESTEHAESA
AMENERRRE-

A15

Minutes of board meetings v
and meetings of board
committees should be kept by
a duly appointed secretary of
the meeting and such minutes
should be open for inspection.
ExgeallEER R
EgeganNaLBrEae
BEAEZENMERE
BZEezmm g #
AHEBEHR-

A EE®H
Al EEg2(£E)

Compliance by the Company in 2009
ARTR=BENF BT

All directors are invited to include matters in the agenda
for regular Board meetings.
FMEESYERFREBIZTEIATHES

sgHEE-

The Company generally gives 14 days prior written notice
of a regular Board meeting and reasonable prior notice
for all other Board meetings.
ARBRTEREFEEE —RSEM4RE
HEEBAN WRITMAHMLEFESATE
RAAESERBEHE LB

All directors have access to the advice and services of the
Company Secretary with a view to ensuring that Board
procedures and all applicable rules and regulations are
complied with.
MEBEESFRHAESAAMENERL KRS
NHERESFSEFRMAEEARINLROHEE

5T e

The minutes are kept by the Company’s legal advisers
and they are open for inspection by the directors and the
members of the Board committees.
SRLBAARAEZERRET EZSEeE
KB HEENEETELZEENKREEH-

=)

=) ME

==
)\13
at
i
B
all
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TEERMRE
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/H

DIRECTORS (Continued)
The board (Continued)

Code Provisions

SFRIRX

A.1.6

Minutes should record in
sufficient detail the matters
considered by the board and
decisions reached. Draft and
final versions of minutes
should be sent to all directors
for their comment and records
within a reasonable time after
the meeting.

R EFARLET
EFEgMERETAENRAF
ERATHFE -@HL
BB EBEREES
BERENEAEEREBER
TETHBEES UHEK
ERREAREHZ -

A7

There should be a procedure
agreed by the board to enable
the directors to seek
independent professional
advice, at the company’s
expense, to assist them to
discharge their duties.
RKRAREHE—-—BERE
SERHTENREF EESF
ESRBEVEEER U
BHREBRBTHBE B
AEARIXRe

Compliance ?

A EE®H
Al EEg(#E)

Compliance by the Company in 2009
AATR=BENFENEFFHE

The secretary of the meeting is responsible for taking the
minutes and all the matters considered and the decisions
reached in the Board meeting are recorded in sufficient
detail. The draft minutes are sent to the directors for
comment within a reasonable time after each meeting
and the final versions are sent to all directors for their
records.

AENEEEFLHEZLE S2LEFEL
BRTEEEEeR TMEREFERMERATE
MEB - GRLENIREAERESRAEZE
REMNEERBEAFTETHAES UHKSE
RHBRENRFRE-

All the directors have recourse to independent
professional advice at the Company’s expense.
MBEFHASRKBUIEXEER ERAARQ
ARt



DIRECTORS (Continued)
The board (Continued)

Code Provisions

SFRIRX

A.1.8

If a substantial shareholder

or a director has a conflict

of interest in a matter which
the board has determined to
be material, a board meeting
should be held (and not by
way of circulation or by a
committee). Independent
non-executive directors who,
and whose associates, have

no material interest in the
transaction should be present
at such board meeting.
WMEERRKEEFRE
EECECBEARANE
BhiFEMD &R AIE
BreaFsgega(h TR
FRERXH T AERE
XA EEERE) K
SRLHEBEALERR
ST EEEMNERMNZR
WBUERNITESFY
LR EHEETEH -

@ B

A EE®H
Al EEg(#E)

Compliance ? Compliance by the Company in 2009
REET? RRBR-BEAFNEBTHE

4 The voting and quorum requirements specified in the
Company'’s Articles of Association (the “Articles”)
conform with the Code’s requirements.

Apw ERRARCHRDMET R EE X
EABREOFTATUNRE -

iz AT o+ e
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Corporate Governance Report
TEERRE

A  DIRECTORS (Continued)

A.2 Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
Principle of Good Governance: There should be a clear division
of responsibilities at the board level — the management of the
board and the day-to-day management of the business — to
ensure a balance of power and authority.

A EEH)

A2 TERITHRAR
R ERrRRA:-CESFTEeMER M
FTEHMNEF(ESENEERER
MEBEER)EBERRED K LER
BHERERNSE-

Compliance by the Company in 2009

FRAAR-BZENFNETHR

Code Provisions Compliance ?
<F Al SC =RESF?
A2.1

The roles of chairman and v

chief executive officer should
be separate and should not
be performed by the same
individual. The division of
responsibilities between them
should be clearly established
and set out in writing.
FRETRAEAZN A G
EEED TEBE—AR
RHERE-REHBEDN
BoEBEEARTELNE
M 5l & -

A2.2

The Chairman should ensure v
all directors are properly

briefed on issues arising at

board meetings.

THEERRMAESZY
TEMEREEFE SR
FRREBNEERE-

A23

The Chairman should ensure v
that the directors receive

adequate information, which

must be complete and reliable,

in a timely manner.
TEEBERE = RE K

MxeER BEEHA

TEERASE-

Mr. Wang Weixian is the Chairman who is responsible
for the overall investment and business development
strategies of the Group. Mr. Tse Sai Tung, Stones is

the Chief Executive Officer who is responsible for the
Group's business operations and execution of the
Group’s long term business development policies.
ITREBEAEREIF AEAEENEBRBEBRR
ERBERFEB -BFUERETERTHRAHR B E
AEBXKLE TAERTAEENRAE
HERBEK -

The Chairman has a clear responsibility to provide the
whole Board with all the information that is required for
the discharge of the Board's responsibilities.
IENPAREBESANESFS2RBKERMEMN
FHEBETEESREAENER-

The Chairman has been continually improving the quality
and timeliness of the dissemination of information to
directors.

TR ERERENEERBFEEMRAEER -



A4

DIRECTORS (Continued)

Board Composition

Principle of Good Governance: The board should have a balance
of skills and experience appropriate for the requirements of the
business of the company. The board should include a balanced
composition of executive and non-executive directors (including
independent non-executive directors) so that it can effectively
exercise independent judgement.

Code Provisions

SFRIRX

Compliance ?

=~EESF?

The independent non- v
executive directors should be

expressly identified as such in

all corporate communications.

FTA R B A
FRBILERTEETHE

e

Appointment, Re-election and Removal

Principle of Good Governance: There should be a formal,
considered and transparent procedure for the appointment of
new directors. There should be plans in place for orderly
succession for appointments to the board. All directors should
be subject to re-election at regular intervals.

Code Provisions

Compliance ?

<F Al SC =EESF?
A4
Non-executive directors should v

be appointed for a specific
term, subject to re-election.
FPTEFTEERETEM
H-UWEAESEMESR-

A EEp)

A3 EEEmaAmX
EEEARA BEEeRAHKERAQ T
MEBRTHERNBDERDRES -
EEePHNTESTHIENTES(E
EBIERITES) M A BMAK KL
ERBEHE EHREESHEE R
1 T8 ST B o

Compliance by the Company in 2009
RRTR-BEAFNEBTHE

The composition of the Board, by category of the
directors, including names of Chairman, executive
directors, non-executive director and independent
non-executive directors, is disclosed in all corporate
communications.
REFWEREEIR ITEF FRTEFEE
VIEBTEETNH R ENESTSAKRNMA
AARBHATETHE -

Ad ZF -EBRESR
ROFERRA: AR EHGER &
REEEHEFRENTHEETLZAR
FFeEE2EGTE NIZBERF L
BEAIBRTES - TEESHERT
HEEEREESENMRE-

Compliance by the Company in 2009
ARBAR-BENFNETHE

The term of appointment of the non-executive director is
three years.

FRTEENEHA=F-

The term of appointment of the independent non-
executive directors is one year renewable by mutual
agreement on an annual basis.
BYFATEETNEHR A —F AIGFRES
MEETELD-

Under the Company’s Articles, one-third of all directors
(whether executive or non-executive) is subject to
retirement by rotation and re-election at each annual
general meeting provided that every director shall be
subject to retirement at least once every three years.
BEAQARBA 28EFTN =02 —(THR
HITEFERAIFNTER)ANERERRE
FAE I HESRIEXRENER HE82E
EELAB=—FHRESR K-

ElE
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DIRECTORS (Continued)

Appointment, Re-election and Removal (Continued)

Code Provisions

SFRIRX

Ad2

All directors appointed to

fill a causal vacancy should

be subject to election by
shareholders at the first
general meeting after their
appointment.
FMEREMEBRZERM
BEZEINEZTRERS
BZEROBERERREX
TrEIRENHER-

Every director, including

those appointed for a specific
term, should be subject to
retirement by rotation at least
once every three years.
BREF(EREZEEAR
TEHNER)EELE
—FHmEER K-

Compliance ?
REET?

Deviation explained

EEL FH AN RBEER

A EE®H
Ad ZF - EBRER(E)

Compliance by the Company in 2009
ARBAR=BENFHESFHE

The Company'’s Articles provide that any director so
appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold
office until the next following annual general meeting
and shall be eligible for re-election at that meeting.

ARAARUBRE REMBRZRMEESS
ZENERNEEHERETERRBFRAEHE
RBLE ERBATFERRASLEIERES -

Such arrangement is considered appropriate in light of
the requirement of paragraph 4(2) of Appendix 3 to the
Listing Rules which requires that any person appointed
by the directors to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office
only until the next following annual general meeting and

shall then be eligible for re-election.

BN EMAAK = B4R AT BIEH BN
ETHMEEFZANERNAIHEETRETE
BRREBFAEERALE HMEBETERES
ENER WRBELHEESEREE-

Under the Company’s Articles, one-third of all directors
(whether executive or non-executive) is subject to
retirement by rotation and re-election at each annual
general meeting provided that every director shall be

subject to retirement at least once every three years.
BEARFMAA 2BEFTN=02 —(THR
HITESRERARFVTER)ANBRERRBE
FREIIHESRITESETER KR E
EELAB="FREETR K-



DIRECTORS (Continued) A EEB)
Responsibilities of Directors A5 ESEF

=4

i
Code Provisions Compliance ? Compliance by the Company in 2009 H%
F RIS = REF? AATR_BENENEFFHE =
ot
A.5.1 r;g
i
Every newly appointed 4 On appointment, new directors will be briefed by
director should receive a the Chairman and senior executives on the Group’s
comprehensive, formal and corporate goals and objectives, activities and business,
tailored induction, on the first strategic plans and financial situations. They will also be
occasion of his appointment, provided with orientation materials package including
and subsequently such briefing induction of the duties and responsibilities of directors of
and professional development a listed company.
as is necessary, to ensure that FTREREBRITHRAEERTZANESTEZA

FRAREHEEMAESENPEERRE®N
EERER FBUEAERVBERR - RETD
, KERH -—ENHAENBELTRATAESTH
business of the company BiE R ETE -

and that he is fully aware

he has a proper understanding
of the operations and

of his responsibilities under The Company aims at keeping all directors updated on

statute and common law, the Listing Rules, statutory and regulatory requirements.

the Listing Rules, applicable ARAREEZEMAETANZRTNLTAA
legal requirements and other EEREERTE -

regulatory requirements and

the business and governance
policies of the company.
BEHMZENEEFD S
EFEREXZERES
2HE-EXREREM S
ERMEEN EETE
BEEmFIONNTMAREE
FAl AHEREE QAW
BEREBHBEEED
B@ - UARZSMBER
SREBEERNLEBE £
™R R R RE R
HMEEHRENALERQF
X% &M E A K BT A &
EHRE-




Corporate Governance Report
TEERRE

A  DIRECTORS (Continued) A EEH)
2 A.5 Responsibilities of Directors (Continued) A5 EESEF#E)
B
'Qi: Code Provisions Compliance ? Compliance by the Company in 2009
2 SF RIS REET? ERBAR-ZBZNFNETHE
‘é A5.2
5
g_? The functions of non-executive v All independent non-executive directors serve on the
directors should at least audit and remuneration committees of the Company.
include: MEBIRTEETHHEARARAEREZES
FHTEFNRERES RHEMWMEEGKE -
L EE:
All independent non-executive directors are invited
(@) tobring anindependent to participate in Board meetings so that independent
judgement at board judgement can be brought at such meetings.
meetings; FEBEBYIRATESTUERZ2NESTE S
REZEgg#d LR NESRESEZSSH LM B LA G-
98 7 I B

(b)  totake the lead where
potential conflicts of
interests arise;
RHBRBEENZ &
RHEHBEEER

SIBER:

>
o}
5
c
QO
X
[°}

e
o
9
=1
N
o
o
(o)

(c) toserve on board
committees, if invited;
and
FEBEHITEEGZR
BEEMKE &

(d)  toscrutinise the
Company's performance
in achieving agreed
corporate goals and
objectives, and
monitoring the reporting
of performance.
F4ERNQANX
BESEHEE G
¥*EEREMN TE
RRENERBR -



DIRECTORS (Continued)

Responsibilities of Directors (Continued)

Code Provisions

SFRIRX

A5.3

Every director should ensure
that he can give sufficient time
and attention to the affairs of
the company.
BREEFEBREBR
B R E )R OE QA
RV

A54

All directors must comply

with their obligations under
the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of
Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code”) set out in Appendix 10
to the Listing Rules.
MEBEEFAETRER
B T AR BB 8 + P OER
B EmBEITAESTET
BARHHFES (R
HESFRIDFTAERENEE -

Compliance ?

A EE®H
A5 EEEFE)

Compliance by the Company in 2009
AATR_BENENEFFHE

All the directors have given prompt attention to the
affairs of the Company.

MBEEFHCABRIANARMNER-

The Company has adopted the Model Code set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules regarding directors’
dealing in securities.

AABERM ETRBMSETABEEREEE
BEEFOZEESR -

All the directors complied with the required standard set
out in the Model Code.
MEESEHETTRETRMSNMT LR

iz A le o+ e




Corporate Governance Report
TEERRE

A DIRECTORS (Continued) A EEH)
] A.6 Supply of and Access to Information A6 ERMNREHRRER
a Principle of Good Governance: The directors should be provided RUERRAU EERERNMFERHEE
%_ in a timely manner with appropriate information in such form EHMER BEEERMEANLEEZG
’OI‘ and of such quality as will enable them to make an informed EZERSEEHNBEO AT EBITHE
o decision and to discharge their duties and responsibilities. EHBERSE-
=]
Q
= Code Provisions Compliance ? Compliance by the Company in 2009
% SF AR —HRES? ERARR=BENFHNESFFHE
= A.6.1
An agenda and accompanying v An agenda and the relevant paper and materials are
board papers should be sent usually sent to the directors at least 3 days before the
to all directors at least 3 days meeting
before the intended date of a EZEAREREAXHERME —RELITERR
meeting. THHA=ZXFETES-

RRBER MO E S
EXHREDEE S

=

FRTBBA=ZXT ?‘

THEES-

A.6.2
§ Each director should have v The directors have access to the senior management of
s separate and independent the Company whenever they feel necessary.
z access to the senior EENHKERALETERYAEBARINS
S management of the company BERBEAE-
N to make further enquiries or
3 to obtain more information

in order to fulfil his duties

properly.

BREEFEMEBRE

VA= K NElERE R

BAEB UABERTH

H&Eﬁﬂ”ﬁﬁ}&**jﬁﬁ’ﬂ]

HEME ZER -

A.6.3

All directors are entitled to v Board minutes and the related materials are available
have access to board papers for inspection by the directors whenever requested. All
and related materials. Where efforts are made to ensure that queries of the directors
queries are raised by the are responded to promptly and fully.

directors, steps must be taken EFegRaA L AEENSEEE ZRHE
to respond as promptly and HEEH AARAZRIHRREFRERENEERR
fully as possible. RApERFEE-

FEESEHEREME
FEXHRBABER-H
FEEROMHE BAR
BERBUABERIELHEE
2 | #) [0 fE e



B.1

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

The Level and Make-up of Remuneration and
Disclosure

Principle of Good Governance: There should be a formal and
transparent procedure for setting policy on executive directors’
remuneration and for fixing the remuneration packages for all
directors. No director should be involved in deciding his own
remuneration.

Code Provisions Compliance ?

SFRIRX =EE?

B.1.1

The company should establish v
a remuneration committee
with specific written terms

of reference. A majority

of the members should be
independent non-executive
directors.
NRAIERLFHEE S
TEIABEEEBESR
B-ABHOKERREL
FHMITESE-

B.1.2

The committee should consult v
the Chairman and/or the
Chief Executive Officer about
their proposals relating to

the remuneration of other
executive directors and have
access to professional advice if
considered necessary.
ZECRMEHEEMH
TEFENFMERETE
R/ SHATHBEHNE
MRR/LE A ERZE
XE R

BB EERNSREEEAEN
#r
B1 FMRHEENKFERAK

REFERRA:AAIERILEXEA
BREMNRERF UHFTRTEETOH
MEBRREIMBEENFMHES -
E=EfG2EBEEAGOHE-

Compliance by the Company in 2009
ARAR=FENE BTN

The remuneration committee was established on 19
September 2006 with specific written terms of reference
which deal clearly with its authority and responsibilities.
The remuneration committee comprises the Chairman
and all independent non-executive directors.
FMEEER _ZEET"FAATABRL I
RN TEERESE FEIAHEERLBE -
YHNEEeREEFR R BB IERITES -

Pursuant to the terms of the remuneration committee,
the committee should consult with the Chairman and/
or the Chief Executive Officer about their proposals
relating to the remuneration of other executive directors.
The committee is authorised to obtain such professional
advice as it considers necessary.
REFHEZEeNRESE T8RS FH
HMATEETHNFMHAERAER R IITHER
MEZ ZESABRERERRLERERE
XER-

ElE
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EERRE

/H

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR

MANAGEMENT (Continued)

The Level and Make-up of Remuneration and

Disclosure (Continued)

Code Provisions

Compliance ?

<F Al SC =EES?
B.1.3
The terms of reference of the v

committee should include the
minimum prescribed duties.
ZEgNBREEZE D
EBERTATNBANBE -

B.1.4

The committee should v
make available its terms of

reference, explaining its role

and authority delegated to it

by the board.

ZEeR LAHEBRRES
CHAHEAEBRESE
BRYHZED-

1

B.1.5

The committee should be v
provided with sufficient

resources to discharge its

duties.

ZECRERMARE
BLUBITHEBE-

BB EERNSREEEAEN
¥ W)
B1 M RHEENKFERAKRE

Compliance by the Company in 2009
ARBR=ZBEAFNETHE

The terms of reference of the committee include the
minimum prescribed responsibilities.

ZEGNRBRBEEVEEERTEAIANKE -

The terms of reference including, among other things,

its role and authority of the committee delegated to it by
the Board are made available on request.
BRSE(EEEYEBEZESENACRES
ERTHIZENBEERE TUAR-

The committee can seek independent professional advice
to complement its own resources to discharge its duties.
ZEGUSKBYUEEER UABAELRHE
RiemBETHBE -



C1

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Financial Reporting

Principle of Good Governance: The board should present a
balanced, clear and comprehensible assessment of the
company’s performance, position and prospects.

Code Provisions Compliance ?
SF AR S = RES?
C.1.1

Management should provide v

such explanation and
information to enable the
board to make an informed
assessment of the matters put
before the board for approval.
ERERMEFERMH
FHREEFSHEN
EENMERER  LAE
ErFendaEFEE
A 8 T e

C.1.2

The directors should v
acknowledge in the Corporate
Governance Report their
responsibilities for preparing
the accounts, and there
should be a statement by the
auditors about their reporting
responsibilities in the auditors’
report on the financial
statements.
EEEELEERRS
TRAEFREENR
T REMITEESR B
& B Az BRD S P
HREN R REEMED
BE -

C BMEREYK

C1 BB R
R ERRAU-EESETE B
L2EFZAFANRE RIRAS-

Compliance by the Company in 2009

RAFAR-BZENFNETHR

The directors are regularly provided with updates on the
Company’s business and the management’s strategic
plans, financial objectives and other actions.
EETHERHABARANEBERERERED
REMAE UBERREMTHNETER -

A statement of directors’ responsibilities for preparing
the financial statements is set out in this Corporate
Governance Report.
EETRUMBBRNETBAIANLLEE R

HE -

The report of the auditors states the auditors’ reporting
responsibilities.

A2 BUED B BR ¥R B E 0 A% BUED & A F L BROA o

ElE
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ffa

C1

EERRE

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (Continued)
Financial Reporting (Continued)

Code Provisions

SFRIRX

c.1.3

The board’s responsibility to
present a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment
extends to annual and interim
reports, other price-sensitive
announcements and other
financial disclosures required
under the Listing Rules, and
reports to regulators as well
as to information required

to be disclosed pursuant to
statutory requirements.
EFgNEETRELY
- EM & A B & RE
FEARTE RF R &P
HmE HMmAEHEKREH
REMOH QDM NEE L
THRAUKRERETHREN
Ht BB ER  mEE®%
BIEXHREURKEA
REBEZEORETFTAKE
B &K e

Compliance ?

C BERZB®#
C1 BB HR|AE)

Compliance by the Company in 2009
AATR_BENENEFFHE

The Board aims at presenting a comprehensive,
balanced and understandable assessment of the
Group’s performance, position and prospects in all
shareholder communications.

EEeE A EENRE RKRARAKEMN
ERRERPIELHSEG BFWRAANTMH-



C.2

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (Continued)

Internal Controls

Principle of Good Governance: The board should ensure that the
company maintains sound and effective internal controls to
safeguard shareholders’ investment and the company’s assets.

Code Provisions Compliance ?
FRIRC = REF?
C.2.1andC2.2

C2.1kC22

The directors should at least v

annually conduct a review of
the effectiveness of the system
of internal control of the
company and its subsidiaries.
The board’s annual review
should consider the adequacy
of resources, qualifications
and experience of staff of the
company’s accounting and
financial reporting function,
and their training programmes
and budget.
EERELEFHLQA
N EF R GF R AR g
FOMAERMEETR -E
FeEBFETRIE B
FRZRARE®RF K
BHERBETENE
R-BIEARKRKBRES
BH LUREIMEXN
BIIRELERBEBEEX
ERARE -

C BERER#EH®

C2 REPEH
RIFEARARA -EEERERAAS
BFRE2EERMAIBZF  ARER
HEREERRANEE-

Compliance by the Company in 2009

AATR=BBRFOGTHE

The Board has overall responsibility for the system of
internal control and for reviewing its effectiveness.
EZERATTHBRERRITEAREABE

BEMT-

The Audit Director reports to the audit committee on key
findings regarding internal controls. The audit committee,
in turn, communicates any material issues to the Board.
NEBERERMEZZESERAHARNIZHNE
ERERR MERZESAMEFSERE
A EKRNEIE-

Two meetings were held by the audit committee in

2009 at which the audit committee was apprised of the
Group’s internal control systems.
ERZEEENR_ZTNFROTTMAGHE M
ERZEQERZE R L ENEAEENNE =
iR

The Board has conducted a review of the effectiveness
of the system of internal control of the Company and its
subsidiaries and is satisfied with the adequacy of the
Group’s system of internal control.
EZERHARAREFRAANADBZESER
HEiTlRs UHAEBEAMLEFNRBRNT
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ffa

C3

EERBE

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (Continued)

Audit Committee

Principle of Good Governance: The board should establish
formal and transparent arrangements for considering how it
applies the financial reporting and internal control principles and
for maintaining an appropriate relationship with the company’s
auditors. The audit committee should have clear terms of

reference.

Code Provisions

<FRIRX

C.3.1

Minutes of audit committee
meetings should be kept by

a duly appointed secretary of
the meeting. Draft and final
versions of minutes should be
sent to all committee members
for their comment and records
within a reasonable time after
the meeting.
EREZESNERELK
EFhHegz X ZEm W
ERTF-2@RLENDR
RBEREES ZEERR
WeaBRKBEANTETZ
BEEMAKE  NHEKRZHE
BRERRMED DK

C3.2

A former partner of the existing
audit firm should not be a
member of the committee

for a period of one year
commencing on the date of
his ceasing to be a partner of
the firm.
NRAMEEGTEEZE
FRHEBE-—FAAR
EITREMEBAONE R
ARBKE -

Compliance ?

C BMERZE®

C3 BEREES
RIFERRA - EFeEREENW
FE R B 75 B 3k oA B0 &) R B & a0 fa
HRFEARZBAMNEE@BERELLE
AW EAEHENLH - BERZTECHE
BEEBWHBESE-

Compliance by the Company in 2009
ARAR=FENF BTN

The minutes are kept by the Company’s legal advisers.
The draft minutes are sent to the committee members
for comment within a reasonable time after each meeting
and the final versions are sent to all members for their
records.
ERELBALARAEEERRE @& L HH
NEREBRERERENEGERBEATETE
EENE UHEKREBRXRER Mgz &EN
BRRBAETETHAKE UHESERTH-

None of the committee members is or was a partner of
the existing audit firm.

MEZE e ERKXEEXTREXBMBM
BEIKA -



ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (Continued) C BERZE®

Audit Committee (Continued) C3 BEREBEG(#H)

Code Provisions Compliance ? Compliance by the Company in 2009

F RIS = REF? AATR_BENENEFFHE

C.33

The terms of reference of the v The terms of reference of the committee include, among
committee should include the other things, the minimum prescribed responsibilities.
minimum prescribed duties. ZEENRBEEEZ DR RBEFTBEIRATESE
ZEgHBESEEZE D FIBA ) B & -

EREREATIANBE -

C34

The committee should v The terms of reference of the committee which, among
make available its terms of other things, explain the role and authority delegated to it
reference, explaining its role by the Board, are made available on request.

and authority delegated to it ZEgREEER(E4ERBdREAERE
by the board. EERTEZCEBNBECERBETUAR -

ZEERAHERESR
B oA EABRESS
BYHZ#ED-
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c3

EERRE

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (Continued)
Audit Committee (Continued)

Code Provisions

Compliance ?

<P RIS REE?
C.35
Where the board disagrees v

with the audit committee’s
view on the selection,
appointment, resignation

or dismissal of the external
auditors, the company should
include in the Corporate
Governance Report a
statement from the audit
committee explaining its
recommendation and also the
reason(s) why the board has
taken a different view.
WEFEITREEZZ
EgHBE TE B E
IERENBREMER
WER BAIARAERED®
FEABMSTPINHEFR
ZECMOEREBRESR
WEHAUAKREZGHT
AERNRE-

C.3.6

The committee should be 4
provided with sufficient

resources to discharge its

duties.

ZESRERBEARE
BRABITHBE -

C BERZE@®
C3 BERZEEG(HE)

Compliance by the Company in 2009
ARBAR-ZBENFHESFHE

The committee recommended to the Board (which
endorsed the view) that, subject to shareholders’
approval at the forthcoming annual general meeting,
KPMG be re-appointed as the external auditors for
2010.
ZEERNEFTE:
METESHEHMEKEMA_T —

S B Az LAD - rﬁ/,%%ﬂxﬁﬁfé):l&%ﬂﬁk
FHEE -

S(EFgCRAEH %ﬁﬁ)ﬁ

The committee can seek independent professional
advice to complement its own resources to discharge its
duties.

ZEGASRKBUEEER UHRELAFE
RiemETHRBE -



DELEGATION BY THE BOARD

Management Functions

Principle of Good Governance: The company should have a
formal schedule of matters specifically reserved to the board for
its decision. The board should give clear directions to
management as to the matters that must be approved by the
board before decisions are made on behalf of the company.

Code Provisions Compliance ?
PRI REES?
D.1.1andD.1.2

D.1.1K%D.1.2

The board should give 4

clear directions as to the
powers of management, in
particular, with respect to

the circumstances where
management should obtain
prior approval from the board
before making decisions or
entering into any commitments
on behalf of the company.
EFeRGEBEENR
Nk TIEW R Tl
RABEBERLTERRER
(VN B VAR & o 1 IF 724
MEERAESEFEN
#fE o

The company should formalise
the functions reserved to the
board and those delegated to
management.
RAEFIFABEES®
EREONBELZEE
BRTEBERBRE-

Compliance by the Company in 2009

D. EEESRHINER

D.1 EE B
RIiFERRA:AREAS —BEXNHD
EEFER - VNHENAZESTSIER
EMEH- EFTSAEREXAAMELR
ER-EREERESSHENETEL
FTEEEBEWER-
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EARR-ZZNFNETHE

Important matters are reserved for the Board's decision,
including:

UTEEEROHEFTSRERTE - 25

o long-term objectives and strategies

ISR IS

. extension of the Group's activities into new
business areas

SR S ESV S EE S IE VR

° appointments to the Board and the Board
committees

EXEREFEREENRE

. annual internal controls assessment and annual
budgets
FENIESFTH R FERS

. material acquisitions and disposals

BAYBERLEERER

. material connected transactions

BEAMERS

° material banking facilities
BERRITEREE

. announcements of interim and final results

S E R E S YN

o payment of dividends

IRFE RS
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TEERRE

D. DELEGATION BY THE BOARD (Continued)
D.2 Board Committees
Principle of Good Governance: board committees should be

D. EEESRINERE)

D2 EEXE®ZET
RiFERREA: §$@§E§%ﬂ%
BrEmBEaE B g
MEDREBE-

formed with specific written terms of reference that deal clearly

%
o
%
o
bl
i

with the committees” authority and duties.

Code Provisions Compliance ? Compliance by the Company in 2009
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D.2.1

The board should prescribe
sufficiently clear terms of
reference to enable such
committees to discharge their
functions properly.
ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ“i%mﬁ
PZEZESTHNRESR
B UL EBEESHE
BB 1T A Bk AR o

D.2.2

The committees should be
required to report back to the
board on their decisions or
recommendations.
ZEgEARNEEGER
HAFHHEBRESR

The Board has established two board committees

each with specific terms of reference, namely the audit
committee and remuneration committee.
EFgCRUMBEZEE E%EE8 g K
ZEg Ui HAZEZESNREDE

The minutes of the committee meetings containing the
committee’s decisions and/or recommendations are
circulated to all members of the Board unless a conflict
of interest arises. The committees are required to report
back to the Board on key findings during the year.
HEZEeATR SIHBEEHENZESTEH
Y RNEEFEMAXKEEN HERANSE
ROBERAGIIN - ZEGEARAFERNRMES
SERFERASTHER-



COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS
Effective Communication

Principle of Good Governance: The board should endeavour to
maintain an on-going dialogue with shareholders and, in
particular, use annual general meetings or other general
meetings to communicate with shareholders and encourage
their participation.

Code Provisions Compliance ?
SF RIS REES?

E.1.1

In respect of each substantially v
separate issue at a general

meeting, a separate resolution

should be proposed by the

chairman of that meeting.
MEBEERTAMNEIA

ME @B FTRERZD

A B R 5 o

E.1.2

The Chairman of the board v
should attend the annual
general meeting and arrange,
for the chairmen of the audit,
nomination and remuneration
committees (as appropriate)
to be available to answer
questions at the annual
general meeting.
EFgFRFRERLEERR
BERE ULRHBEZRE
Eg - RREZESLHFEM
Eg(WERNERRN
BRFBFRE FEERM -

WH
m I

E. BEREMNER

E1 BREBR
RIFERRRA - EFSEE NG IFHE
BWRETHEHE LEEABRER
FREHIEMBRERNGEHBRRETE
BUTSBEEE2MEH-

Compliance by the Company in 2009

EARR-ZENFNETHE

A separate resolution is proposed for each substantially
separate issue.
REBEERTANETEHERETAMNIAER -

The Company’s annual general meeting will be held on
10 May 2010. The Chairman of the Board who is also the
chairman of the remuneration committee will attend such
forthcoming annual general meeting and be available

to answer questions thereat and will arrange for the
chairman of the audit committee or his representative

to be available to answer questions at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.

ARBBRRBERGEHER _FT-—FTFHAT+H
RT-BEFegXR(IRFHZESIR)HL
FZRERERRBFAGINE FOERMB I
HELHBERZEGETRRERXTRNEERRE
FAEL@MERMA-
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E. COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS E. ERRNEBER®

§ (Continued)

5 E.1 Effective Communication (Continued) E1 EXREBBEHE)

;

% Code Provisions Compliance ? Compliance by the Company in 2009

3 FAHX REEF? AATR-BRAFOBIHE

g E.1.3

2
The company should arrange 4 Not less than 20 clear business days’ notice was sent
for the notice to shareholders to shareholders before the Company’s 2009 annual
to be sent in the case of general meeting.
annual general meetings at ARABIRBRA_ZETNFRREBFRGAN AL
least 20 clear business days R20BEEXABD MK RE LB
before the meeting and to be
sent at least 10 clear business
days in the case of all other
general meetings.
m A Eﬁﬂx%ﬂiﬁ”* N
ARERZFEERG BRI

x EOR0EEEAABRE

g BX@mE - Mt A E A

g BREASME  AIAEX

= SRTMELRIOEZ X

3 AEx@Ea-

E.2 Voting by Poll E2 UKREFRXRR

E.2.1
The chairman of a meeting v The chairman of the Company’s 2009 annual
should at the commencement general meeting explained to the shareholders at the
of the meeting ensure that commencement of the meeting the detailed procedures
an explanation is provided of for conducting a poll and answered questions from
the detailed procedures for shareholders regarding voting by way of a poll.
conducting a poll and then KRR ZZEZENGF o RRBERAEEIEESE
answer any questions from IR RRERBUAREF N #ETRRNF
shareholders regarding voting MEF WEERRFEUNREFARROER -

by way of a poll.
AEEXTFRERES R
Fin R E @ENERRE
NETRANFHRET
REBZXRREBNANE
EFAKRROEMER -



DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10
to the Listing Rules.

All directors have confirmed, following specific enquiry by the
Company, that they have complied with the required standard set out
in the Model Code for the year ended 31 December 2009.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
The Board currently comprises three executive directors, one non-
executive director and four independent non-executive directors:

Executive directors:
WANG Weixian (Chairman)
TSE Sai Tung, Stones
(Group Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer)
WANG Xuling

Non-executive director:
LAIKin, Jerome

Independent non-executive directors:
CHEONG Ying Chew, Henry

FONG Wo, Felix, JP

JIANG Simon X.

KWAN Kai Cheong

The Board has a balance of skills and experience appropriate for the
requirements of the business of the Company. The Board has extensive
management experience in the property market in the PRC. The Board
has the required knowledge, experience and capabilities to operate
and develop the Group’s business and implement the Company’s
business strategies. The biographical details and experience of the
directors and senior management are set out on pages 84 to 89.

Each director has a duty to act in good faith in the best interests of the
Company. The directors, individually and collectively, are aware of
their responsibilities and accountability to shareholders and for the
manner in which the affairs of the Company are managed and
operated.

EENEERS
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-
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Directors have timely access to relevant information prior to each
board meeting to enable them to make an informed decision and to
discharge their duties and responsibilities. Directors can attend board
meetings either in person or by electronic means of communication.

The Company has received an annual confirmation of independence
from each of the independent non-executive directors. The Company
is of the view that all the independent non-executive directors meet
the guidelines for assessing independence set out in Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules and considers them to be independent.

To the best knowledge of the Company, there is no financial, business,
family or other material or relevant relationship among members of
the Board or between the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer.

The Company provides directors with directors’ and officers’ liability
insurance coverage to protect them from loss as a result of any legal
proceeding against the Company.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Mr. Wang Weixian is the Chairman and Mr. Tse Sai Tung, Stones
serves as the Chief Executive Officer. The role of the Chairman is
separate from that of the Chief Executive Officer so as to delineate
their respective areas of responsibility. They receive significant support
from the directors and the senior management team.

The Chairman is responsible for the overall business and investment
strategies of the Group. The Chairman is also responsible for
overseeing effective functioning of the Board and application of good
corporate governance practices and procedures. The Chief Executive
Officer is responsible for managing the Group’s overall operations and
execution of the Group’s long term business development policies.
The Board, led by the Chairman, sets the overall directions, strategies
and policies of the Group. Under the leadership of the Chief Executive
Officer, the management is responsible for executing the Board'’s
strategy and implementing its policies through the day-to-day
management and operations of the Company.

The Board delegates appropriate aspects of its management and
administrative functions to the management who shall report to the
Board. The Board reviews on a periodic basis such delegations to
ensure that they remain appropriate.

EEg)

REBETEEZSSZN EFTAREFE
BHEBEMN RSERFEFLABERER
BOIRENBEMNET - EFAHRENE
BETFBEASTALEFEFTEEH -
RARREWB EBRBUFATEETNFE
BIUIMRER K - RRABRES MBEBILIFE
WITEEHN A L™RRAEI3MGA &
BB MEMNES YR SREHAEFILIE-

BARAMAM EFEREBEZHIEIF A
TBRHREBZABECAMH X% KE
FEMERNKEBEE -

ARFAEFRUEFREMAMARAR
0 DA R B % R O AE (T 8 R A A i
FEFRTMARTAK-

ETFERITHAR

ITREXLERIF MALRELY /T
BEH TFENACHRITRARZMEE DR -
NEBRREENTREEANBETHE -KF
BEELNSRERBERAR I FH-

TRAEASENERBEBEARERE -
TFENMAEERETENAMERLRY
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The non-executive directors of the Company have diversified
backgrounds and industry skills and one of the independent non-
executive directors has an appropriate accounting qualification as
required by the Listing Rules. With their expertise, they offer
experience, independent judgement and advice on the overall
management of the Company. Their responsibilities include
maintaining a balance between the interests of all shareholders of the
Company as a whole.

All the independent non-executive directors are members of the audit
and remuneration committees.

With the exception of Mr. Lai Kin, Jerome, who is appointed for a term
of three years, all the independent non-executive directors are
appointed for a term of one year renewable by mutual agreement on
an annual basis. Under the Company’s Articles, one-third of all
directors (whether executive or non-executive) is subject to retirement
by rotation and re-election at each annual general meeting provided
that every director shall be subject to retirement at least once every
three years.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS

The Board established the remuneration committee on 19 September
2006 with specific written terms of reference which deal clearly with
its authority and responsibilities. The committee is responsible for
formulating and reviewing the remuneration policy and specific
remuneration packages of all executive directors. In formulating the
remuneration policy, the committee takes into consideration factors
such as salaries paid by comparable companies, employment
conditions and responsibilities, and individual performance of the
directors, senior management, and the general staff. The committee
can seek independent professional advice to complement its own
resources to discharge its duties.

The remuneration committee comprises Mr. Wang Weixian, who is
the chairman of the committee and all the independent non-executive
directors.

In addition to obtaining the remuneration committee's approval
through the circulation of written resolutions of the committee
members, one meeting was held by the remuneration committee in
2009 to discuss remuneration related matters. All members attended
the meeting.

Details of the emoluments and options of each director, on a named
basis, are set out in note 15 to the financial statements.
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NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

The Company does not have a nomination committee. The Board
selects and recommends candidates for directorship having regard to
the balance of skills and experience appropriate to the Company’s
business.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Board established the audit committee on 19 September 2006
with specific written terms of reference which deal clearly with its
authority and responsibilities. The committee is responsible for
formulating and reviewing the financial and internal control principles
of the Company. The committee is also responsible for making
recommendation to the Board on the appointment, re-appointment
and removal of the external auditors, approving the remuneration and
terms of engagement of the external auditors and considering any
questions of resignation or dismissal of such auditors. The committee
can seek independent professional advice to complement its own
resources to discharge its duties.

The committee comprises all the independent non-executive directors.
Mr. Kwan Kai Cheong is the chairman of the committee.

Two meetings were held by the audit committee in 2009. All members
attended the meetings. The committee reviewed, together with the
senior management and the external auditors, the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2008, the accounting principles and
practices adopted by the Company, statutory compliance, other
financial reporting matters and the internal control system.

FINANCIAL REPORTING
The Board aims at presenting a comprehensive, balanced and
understandable assessment of the Group’s performance, position and
prospects. Management provides such explanation and information to
enable the Board to make an informed assessment of the matters put
before the Board for approval.

The directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing the
financial statements for the Group.

The statement of the external auditors of the Company regarding their
responsibilities for the financial statements of the Group is set out in
the report of the auditors on page 109.
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INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board has overall responsibility for maintaining a sound and
effective system of internal control and for reviewing its effectiveness,
particularly in respect of the controls on financial, operational,
compliance and risk management, to safeguard shareholders’
investment and the Group's assets.

The Board is satisfied with the adequacy of the system of internal
control of the Company.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

KPMG, the external auditors of the Company, is primarily responsible
for providing audit services in connection with annual financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2009.

For the year ended 31 December 2009, the total remuneration in
respect of statutory audit services provided by KPMG for the Group
amounted to RMB2,750,000.

The audit committee recommended to the Board (which endorsed the
view) that, subject to shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming
annual general meeting, KPMG be re-appointed as the external
auditors for the Company for 2010.

SHAREHOLDINGS INFORMATION
As at 31 December 2009:

Authorised share capital: HK$1,000,000,000, comprising
10,000,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each.

Issued and fully paid-up capital: HK$102,549,100 comprising
1,025,491,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each.

Class of shares: one class of ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each with equal
voting rights.
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Directors and Senior Management Profiles

WANG Wei Xian, David, 46, is the Chairman and the founder of the
Group. Mr. Wang has over 17 years of experience in finance,
construction, property investment and development. He founded the
Starwaly Properties Group Ltd, the holding company for various
property projects of the Group, in Australia in February 1999. He
graduated from South China University of Technology with a Bachelor
degree in Building Materials and University of Technology, Sydney
(Australia) with a Bachelor degree of Commerce. He is also a councilor
of Shanghai Song Ching Ling Foundation and a standing member of
Shanghai Overseas Exchange Association.

TSE Sai Tung, Stones, 51, is the Group Managing Director and Chief
Executive Officer. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Tse was the Executive
Director and Managing Director of two Hong Kong listed real estate
development companies. Mr. Tse holds a Bachelor degree of Science
in Engineering from the University of Hong Kong, a Master degree of
Business Administration from the University of Warwick, United
Kingdom, a Doctorate degree in Business Administration from
Macquarie University of Australia, and is a member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Engineers and Chartered Institute of Building, United
Kingdom. Mr. Tse has over 25 years of experience in property
investment and development, project management, sales and
marketing in mainland China, Hong Kong and overseas.

WANG Xu Ling, Rosanna, 48, is the Group Executive Director. Ms.
Wong graduated from Ji'nan University (Guangzhou). Prior to joining
the Group, Ms. Wang was the Executive Director and Deputy General
Manager of Mission Hills Golf Club (Mission Hills Group), responsible
for property development. Before joining Mission Hills Group (Mission
Hills Golf Club), Ms. Wang had about 12 years of experience in the
news and media business. Ms. Wang is the sister of the Group
Chairman, Mr. David Wang.

LAI Kin, Jerome, 61, is the Group Non-Executive Director. Mr. Lai,
who graduated from the University of Toronto with a Bachelor degree
of Commerce, is a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and a chartered accountant of The Canadian Institute of
Chartered Accountants. Mr. Lai has over 30 years of experience in
accounting, management, strategic planning, auditing and taxation.
Before joining the Group, Mr. Lai was the Senior Vice-President of the
finance, treasury and administration functional unit of the Hong Kong
Exchanges and Clearing Limited and Executive Director of the finance
and management services division of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited overseeing finance matters. Mr. Lai had also served as
the Financial Controller at the China Light & Power Company Limited.
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CHEONG Ying Chew, Henry, 62, an independent non-executive
Director, has over 30 years of experience in the securities industry. He
has been a director of the Worldsec Group of Companies which he
founded in 1991. Mr. Cheong currently serves as the Deputy Chairman
of Worldsec Limited, a company listed on the London Stock Exchange.

FONG Wo, Felix, BBS, JP, 59, is an independent non-executive
Director, a practicing solicitor in Hong Kong and also qualified in
Canada and England. He is appointed by the Ministry of Justice of
China as one of the China-Appointed Attesting Officers in Hong Kong.
Mr. Fong is a consultant and the founding partner of the Hong Kong
law firm, King & Wood (formerly known as Arculli Fong & Ng), who
has practiced law for over 29 years, including 8 years in Toronto. Mr.
Fong is a member of Guangdong Provincial Committee of Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference, a director of China Overseas
Friendship Association, a director of Shanghai Chinese Overseas
Friendship Association and an executive director of Guangdong
Overseas Friendship Association. He is also the chairman of the Hong
Kong Liquor Licensing Board, the chairman of the Advisory Council on
Food and Environmental Hygiene, a member of the Hong Kong Film
Development Council, a member of the Town Planning Board and a
director of the Hong Kong Basic Law Institute. Mr. Fong is a member
of the first Selection Committee for the purposes of electing the Chief
Executive for Hong Kong Special Administrative Region, a founding
member of Canadian International School of Hong Kong, a member
of the Board of Advisers for the Faculty of Business of the University of
Victoria, British Columbia, Canada and a visiting professor of the
School of Law of Sun Yat-sen University, China.

JIANG Simon X., 56, an independent non-executive Director, is the
founder and Chairman of CyberCity International Limited as well as
Chairman of some of its subsidiaries. For the past five years, Dr. Jiang
has been involved mainly in private equity investment activities in Hong
Kong and mainland China. At the same time, he is an Independent
Non-executive Director for COSL (2883.HK) and COSCO International
(517.HK). He is also a member of the National Committee of CPPCC
and the United Nations Investments Committee.

KWAN Kai Cheong, 60, an independent non-executive Director,
holds a Bachelor of Accountancy (Honours) degree from the University
of Singapore and is a member of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in Australia. He is also a Fellow of the Hong Kong
Institute of Directors. Mr. Kwan is presently the President of Morrison
& Company Limited, a business consultancy firm.
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Directors and Senior Management Profiles

LO Yee Har, Susan, 51, is the joint company secretary of the
Company. Ms. Lo is a director of Corporate Services Department of
Tricor Services Limited and a fellow member of both the Institute of
Chartered Secretaries and Administrators and the Hong Kong Institute
of Chartered Secretaries. Ms. Lo has over 20 years of experience in the
corporate secretarial area and is currently the company secretary of six
companies listed on the Stock Exchange.

LEE Mei Yi, 42, is the joint company secretary of the Company. Ms.
Lee is a senior manager of Corporate Services Department of Tricor
Services Limited and an associate member of both the Institute of
Chartered Secretaries and Administrators and the Hong Kong Institute
of Chartered Secretaries. Ms. Lee has over 10 years of experience in
the corporate secretarial area.

CHEUNG Man Hoi, Ronny, 39, is the Chief Financial Officer of the
Group. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Cheung served duties as the
Group Financial Controller/Chief Financial Officer in various publicly-
listed companies, including Tianjin Development Holdings Limited and
Nine Dragons Paper (Holdings) Limited. He also worked in
PricewaterhouseCoopers for over 7 years. Mr. Cheung graduated
from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University with a Bachelor of Arts
(Hons) in Accountancy and the Chinese University of Hong Kong with
an Executive MBA degree. Mr. Cheung is also a fellow member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and a member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He has over 16
years of experience in professional accounting, business consulting
and corporate management.

LEUNG Yiu Man, Brian, 42, is the Chief Investment Officer of the
Group. Mr. Leung has over 19 years of experience in equity market,
investment bank, equity corporate and fund management. Prior to
joining the Group, Mr. Leung served as the Managing Director of the
Research Division of China International Capital Corporation Limited
and the executive director of Deutsche Securities, Hong Kong. He
graduated from the University of Hong Kong, holds the bachelor
degree of Social Science and is qualified as a Chartered Financial
Analyst.

MAO Yong Ming, 56, is the Vice President of the Group. Mr. Mao,
who has over 26 years of experience in sales, property investment and
development in the PRC, and is also currently serving as a member of
the Political Consultative Conference of Huangshan Municipality and a
Standing Committee Member of the Political Consultative Conference
of the Huangshan Municipality.
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WANG Hui Ren, 67, is the Vice President of the Group. Mr. Wang is
also the General Manager of Shanghai Oriental Cambridge Property
Development Co., Ltd. He graduated from East China University of
Politics and Law with Bachelor of Laws, and worked for the Shanghai
Government for years.

ZHANG Ming Zhi, 55, is the Vice President and the General Manager
of Investment and Finance Department of the Group. Ms. Zhang
graduated from East China Normal University in Mathematics and
obtained a Master degree of Business Administration (MBA) from
AlOU-Asia International Open University (MACAU). Ms. Zhang has
over 14 years of experience in financial industry and project
investment. She was the Director for one of first approved fund
management corporations, the Director and Chairman appointed by
several project companies and the General Manager of Assets
Department of a Trust & Investment Company.

ZHANG Hai Bo, 42, is the Vice President of the Group. Mr. Zhang
graduated from Tong Ji University with a Bachelor degree in
Architectural Engineering, Master in Business Administration from
Fudan University and qualifies as an engineer. Mr. Zhang has over 17
years of experience in property development, engineering and
corporate management. He was previously the Deputy General
Manager, Executive Deputy General Manager and General Manager
of various operating subsidiaries of the Group.

ZHU Yong, 40, is the Regional General Manager of the Group. Mr.
Zhu has over 10 years of experience in property development and
management. Mr. Zhu is a Registered Property Assessor, a Qualified
Engineer in Architectural Engineering and 1st Class Builder. Mr. Zhu
holds a Bachelor degree of Engineering in Industrial and Civil
Construction Engineering and a Master degree of Engineering in
Construction and Civil Engineering from Hunan University.

REN Rui Xia, 41, is the Regional General Manager of the Group. Ms.
Ren holds a Bachelor degree in Architectural Structure from Tianjin
University and a Master degree in Business Administration from Tsing
Hua University. She has over 18 years of experience in property
development and management. Ms. Ren was previously the Assistant
to General Manager, the Executive Deputy General Manager and the
Regional Executive Deputy General Manager of various major
operating subsidiaries of the Group.
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Directors and Senior Management Profiles

QU Biao, Frank, 48, is the General Manager of Hotel Investment of
the Group. Mr. Qu graduated from Shanghai Institute of Tourism,
attended Hotel Executive Education Program in Cornell University
(U.S.A)). Mr. Qu has over 20 years of experience with Starwood, Inter-
Continental and Four Seasons hotel groups. Mr. Qu was the Deputy
General Manager of Four Seasons Hotel, Shanghai, and has extensive
experiences in hotel investment and development and operations.

LEI Yu, Rain, 37, is the Legal Director of the Group. Mr. Lei graduated
from Fudan University with a Bachelor degree in Law and Master
degree in Public Administration. Mr. Lei is a Qualified Lawyer in the
PRC and has over 11 years of working experience on real estate
development, construction and trading, structural design of real estate
project, merge, acquisition and reorganization, project financing,
contract negotiation and corporate legal management.

LEUNG Yau Wan, John, 50, is the Financial Controller of the Group.
He holds a Master degree in Accounting Studies from University of
New England, Australia, and a Master degree in Business
Administration from University of East Asia. Mr. Leung is a member of
CPA Australia, a member of Hong Kong Institute of CPAs, and a fellow
member of Association of Taxation & Management Accountants,
Australia. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Leung was the General
Manager of Finance, Eastern China Region of a HK-listed construction
materials company, Deputy General Manager and Financial Controller
of a real estate company and the Director and CFO of a state-owned
company. He was also the Director and Country Finance Head of a
Fortune 500 company.

FAN Chun Fai, Francis, 62, is the General Manager of Group Cost
Control Management, who received his Bachelor degree of Science in
Civil Engineering from Houng Kong College of Taiwan. Mr. Fan,
presently a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors, the Royal
Institution of Chartered Surveyors, the Association of Cost Engineers
and the Chartered Institution of Civil Engineering Surveyors. Mr. Fan
has more than 30 years of extensive experience in quantities surveying
services and cost control management in Hong Kong, China and
Australia.
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LIU Xin Rong, 38, is the General Manager of Human Resources and
Internal Audit Director of the Group. Ms. Liu graduated from Wuhan
University of Technology in industrial enterprise management and is a
qualified accountant in the PRC. Ms. Liu has over 10 years of
experience in financial management, development and corporate
management in property industry. Since joining the Group in 1999,
Ms. Liu was the Group Financial Controller, Executive Deputy General
Manager of various major operating subsidiaries of the Group.

YOU De Feng, 34, is the Joint Financial Controller of the Group. Mr.
You graduated from Shanghai University of Finance and Economics,
major in business administration. He is a member of Institute of
Financial Accountants, UK. Mr. You is a qualified accountant of the
PRC. He has over 10 years of experience in the real estate and
construction industry, accumulating extensive experience of financial
management in the industry. Since joining the Group in 2001, Mr. You
was the Finance Manager, Deputy Finance Manager of the major
operating subsidiaries of the Group.

GAO Yu Di, 57, is the Executive Director and Education Director of
Sipo Polytechnic. Ms. Gao graduated from East China Normal
University, majoring in Chinese, and has over 20 years of experience in
education and held positions from teacher to Vice-Principal of one of
the famous high schools in Shanghai. She was nominated as
“Shanghai Top-Level Teacher”.

CHEN lJie, 35, is the General Manager of the Corporate Development
and Management Center of the Group. Ms. Chen graduated from the
Faculty of Arts in the University of Shanghai, majoring in Chinese
Secretarial Studies. She was the Assistant to the Chairman of the
Board of the Group and Deputy General Manager of the Corporate
Development and Management Center. She has over 10 years of
experience in preliminary development, investment and project
positioning in the real estate industry.

CHEN Yi Jun, Tony, 34, is the Director of Commercial Real Estate of
the Group. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Chen was the Assistant to
President of Shanghai Kinghill Limited (SuperBrand Mall) and Chia Tai
Commercial Real Estate Co., Ltd., and the Vice President of Lease
Department and Business Development Department. Before that, he
served as the Consultant of the Corporate Advisory Department of
Angel Star Company and conducted researches mainly on retail and
financial investment sectors. Mr. Chen holds a foreign economic law
degree from Shanghai Jiao Tong University.
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Report of the Board of Directors

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company are pleased to present their annual
report together with the audited consolidated accounts of the Group
for the year ended 31 December 2009.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. Its subsidiaries are
principally engaged in property development, property and hotel
investment, property management and education.

An analysis of the Group’s sales and operating results for the year by
principal activities is set out in note 6 to the consolidated accounts.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Directors believe that the five largest customers of the Group
accounted for about 3.4% of the Group's sales in the year while the
five largest suppliers of the Group accounted for about 23% of the
Group's purchases in the year.

Save for the association with certain related companies as set out in
Note 44 to the consolidated accounts, none of the Directors, their
associates or any shareholders (which to the knowledge of the
Directors owned more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) has a
beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest customers or five largest
suppliers.

RESULTS
The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2009 are set
outonpage 111.

DIVIDENDS AND BONUS ISSUE OF SHARES
The Directors recommended the payment of a final dividend of
RMB5.5 cents per share, totalling approximately RMB56,402,000 and
abonus issue of 1 share for every 40 existing shares held.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The annual general meeting of the Company will be held on 10 May
2010. A notice convening the annual general meeting will be
published and dispatched to the shareholders of the Company in the
manner required by the Listing Rules in due course.
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS (Continued)

The register of members of the Company will be closed from Thursday,
6 May 2010 to Monday, 10 May 2010, both days inclusive, during
which period no transfer of shares will be registered. In order to
determine who are entitled to the proposed final dividend and bonus
shares and to attend the annual general meeting of the Company to
be held on 10 May 2010, all transfer documents accompanied by the
relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s branch
share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited, at 26th
Floor, Tesbury Centre, 28 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong for
registration no later than 4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, 5 May 2010.
Subject to shareholders’ approval of the proposed final dividend and
bonus issue of shares at the annual general meeting to be held on
Monday, 10 May 2010, dividend warrants and share certificates for
the bonus shares will be dispatched on Thursday, 20 May 2010 to
shareholders whose names appear on the register of members of the
Company at the close of business on Monday, 10 May 2010.

FIXED ASSETS
Details of the movements in fixed assets during the year are set out in
note 19 to the consolidated accounts.

BORROWINGS AND INTEREST CAPITALISED
Borrowings repayable on demand or within one year are classified
under current liabilities. Details of the long-term borrowings are set
outin note 32 to the consolidated accounts. Interest and other
borrowing costs capitalised by the Group during the year are set out in
note 13 to the consolidated accounts.

MOVEMENTS OF SHARE CAPITAL
Details of the movements in the share capital during the year are set
out in note 38 to the consolidated acccounts.

RESERVES
Details of the movements in reserves during the year are set out in
note 39 to the consolidated accounts.

As at 31 December 2009, the aggregate amount of reserves available
for distribution to equity shareholders of the Company was
RMB2,386,175,000 (2008: RMB2,343,355,000).
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Report of the Board of Directors

DONATIONS
The donations made by the Group during the year amounted to
RMB200,000 (2008: RMB4,560,000).

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
A five-year financial summary of the Group is set out on pages 222 to
224,

DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS
The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of
this report were:

Executive Directors
Mr. WANG Weixian (Chairman)
Mr. TSE Sai Tung, Stones
(Group Managing director and CEQ)
Ms. WANG Xuling

Non-Executive Director
Mr. LAl Kin, Jerome

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. CHEONG Ying Chew, Henry

Mr. FONG Wo, Felix, JP

Mr. JIANG Simon X.

Mr. KWAN Kai Cheong

In accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association, one third of
the Directors retire from office by rotation provided that every Director
shall be subject to retirement at least once every three years.

Ms. Wang Xuling, Mr. Lai Kin, Jerome and Mr. Cheong Ying Chew,
Henry are due to retire from the Board at the forthcoming annual
general meeting. Being eligible, they offer themselves for re-election.

None of the retiring Directors has a service contract with the Company
or any of its subsidiaries which is not terminable within one year
without payment of compensation other than statutory compensation.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS’
CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received independence confirmation from each of
the Independent Non-Executive Directors and considers them to be
independent.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No contracts of significance in relation to the Company’s business to
which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which
a Director of the Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the
year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

In order to eliminate Directors’ interests in business competing with
the Group, on 19 September 2006, Mr. Wang Weixian entered into a
deed of non-competition with the Company (the “Deed”).

In accordance with the terms of the Deed, Mr. Wang Weixian has
provided the Company with an annual confirmation that he and his
associates (other than the Group) have complied with the terms of the
Deed.

The Independent Non-Executive Directors of the Company have
reviewed the matters relating to the compliance and enforcement of
the Deed by Mr. Wang Weixian and his associates (other than the
Group) and confirmed that Mr. Wang Weixian and his associates (other
than the Group) have complied with the Deed.

As at the date of this report, none of the Directors of the Company is
considered to have interests in businesses which compete or are likely
to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the businesses of the
Group.

SPECIFIC PERFORMANCE OBLIGATIONS OF THE
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER

No specific performance obligations of the controlling shareholder are
required to be disclosed under paragraph 13.18 of Chapter 13 of the
Listing Rules of the Stock Exchange.

SHARE OPTIONS

On 19 September 2006, the Company adopted a share option scheme
(the “Share Option Scheme”).
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Report of the Board of Directors

SHARE OPTIONS (Continued)

A summary of the Share Option Scheme is set out below:

Purpose of the Share Option Scheme:

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to recognize and
acknowledge the contributions of the participants to the growth
of the Group by granting options to them as incentives or
rewards.

Participants of the Share Option Scheme:

The Board may, inits discretion, offer to grant options to
subscribe for such number of shares as the Board may determine
to the following participants:

(i) any executive and employee of the Group; or

(i) anydirector (including non-executive directors and
independent non-executive directors) of the Group; or

(i) any consultant, adviser and/or agent of the Group.

Total number of shares available for issue under the
Share Option Scheme and % of issued share capital
at 5 March 2010:

The maximum number of shares in respect of which options may
be granted under the Share Option Scheme must notin
aggregate exceed 103,750,000 shares (approximately 10.12%
of issued share capital).

Maximum entitlement of each participant under the
Share Option Scheme:

The maximum entitlement for each participant is that the total
number of shares of the Company issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the options granted to each participant (including
both exercised, cancelled and outstanding options) in any 12-
month period shall not exceed 1% of the total number of shares
of the Company in issue. Any grant of further options above this
limit shall be subject to certain requirements as stipulated in the
rules of the Share Option Scheme.
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SHARE OPTIONS (Continued)

5.

The period within which the shares must be taken
up under an option:

Subject to the rules of the Share Option Scheme, options may be
exercised by a participant, in whole or in part, at any time during
the period commencing from the date of grant and expiring at
5:00 p.m. on the business day (i) preceding the fifth anniversary
of the date of grant or (ii) preceding the expiry of the Share
Option Scheme, whichever is the earlier.

The minimum period for which an option must be
held before it can be exercised:

No option may be exercised until the expiry of 12 months after
the date of grant. A grantee may be required to achieve such
performance targets as determined by the Board before any
options granted under the Share Option Scheme can be
exercised.

The amount payable on application or acceptance of
the option and the period within which payments or
calls must or may be made, or loans for such
purposes must be paid:

Nil

The basis of determining the exercise price:

The subscription price of a share in respect of any particular
option granted under the Share Option Scheme shall be such
price as the Board in its absolute discretion shall determine, save
that such price shall at least be the higher of:

(i)  theclosing price of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of offer,
which must be a day on which the Stock Exchange is open
for the business of dealing in securities (“Business Day");
and

(i) the average of the closing prices of the shares as stated in
the Stock Exchange's daily quotations sheets for the five
Business Days immediately preceding the date of offer,

or (where applicable) such price as from time to time adjusted
pursuant to the Share Option Scheme.
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Report of the Board of Directors

ESERE

SHARE OPTIONS (Continued) BRESE

p 9. The remaining life of the Share Option scheme: 9. BRETEMNKRTFEHY:

n:'T The Share Option Scheme is valid and effective for a period of 10 BREFZHNERNSEAT+F B

=5 years commencing on 19 September 2006 and will expire at 5:00 EXFALART+LERAB E+EFE

g p.m. on the Business Day preceding the tenth anniversary BRIMZZATTRABERR-

g thereof.

% Details of the share options granted to employees of the Group BEBREFIRFAEERE MR

= pursuant to the Share Option Scheme which remained ZTEZNFF+_A=ZFT—BERTE
outstanding as at 31 December 2009 are as follows: MEREFBMT

Options granted Options lapsed
during the during the Options
Options year ended year ended outstanding as at
outstandingasat 31 December 2009 31 December 2009 31 December 2009

1January2009 REBEZ-FZAE REZ-FTBAFE RZ-ZZBEFNF
R-2FAE +ZA=t+-—8H +=ZA=+—-8B +t=ZA=+—-H

Date of grant —A—H FTFEFER LTEFERN HMRITEHNER
& i B H i SR 4T 6 59 BB BR AR B RS RR R KA R E -3
z 10 October 2007 640,000’ — 320,000 320,000
5
z —ETELHF+ATH
£
i 30 October 2009 — 9,000,000° — 9,000,000
§ —E2ENFT+A=TH
640,000 9,000,000 320,000 9,320,000
Notes: Bt 3% -
1. (a)  The options shall vest in tranches in the following manner 1. @ EBREEARTIHEBBBUT
on the following dates of vesting: WARS MBS :
(i) 30% of the options shall vest on 10 October 2007 (i) B0%MBEREBNR-_ZZ
(the “First Option Tranche”); +t&+At+tBEERB(E#’
g AR R
(i) 30% of the options shall vest on 10 October 2008 (i 30%MEREHEN_-_ZZT
(the "Second Option Tranche”); and NFE+A+TEEBUIE=

HEBRED R

(iiiy  40% of the options shall vest on 10 October 2009 @iy 40%MEREBEA_-_ZTZ
(the “Third Option Tranche” and, together with the hE+ATEBB(IE=
“Second Option Tranche”, the “Succeeding HEREIRERIE it
Tranches”). BERRE] - TEAMRESHD -



SHARE OPTIONS (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

(b)

The Board may at its absolute discretion adjust the
percentage of the options to be vested in the Succeeding
Tranches either upwards or downwards based on the
option holder’s performance in the year immediately
preceding the vesting of the optionsin the relevant
Succeeding Tranches as determined by the Board except
that such adjustment shall not affect the vesting of the
options in the First Option Tranche.

The options may be exercised at an option price of
HK$6.30 per share during the period commencing from 10
October 2007 and expiring at 5:00 p.m. on the Business
Day immediately preceding 10 October 2012 except that
no option shall be exercised until the expiry of 12 months
after the respective dates of vesting.

The first tranche of the option entitling the option holder
to subscribe for 3,000,000 shares (the “First Tranche”)
shall vest on the date of grant at the option price of
HK$4.59 per share.

The second tranche of the option entitling the option
holder to subscribe for 3,000,000 shares (the “Second
Tranche”) shall vest at the option price of HK$8.00 per
share before the first anniversary of the date of grant for
the First Tranche as and when the average of the closing
prices of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange's daily
quotations sheets for the past 10 consecutive Business
Daysimmediately preceding the date is higher than
HK$8.00.

The third tranche of the option entitling the option holder
to subscribe for 3,000,000 shares (the “Third Tranche")
shall vest at the option price of HK$12.00 per share before
the second anniversary of the date of grant for the First
Tranche as and when the average of the closing prices of
the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations sheets for the past 10 consecutive Business
Daysimmediately preceding the date is higher than
HK$12.00.
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Report of the Board of Directors

SHARE OPTIONS (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

(d)  Theoptions may be exercised by the option holder, in
whole orin part, atany time during the period
commencing from the date of grant and ending at 5:00
p.m.on the Business Day immediately preceding 30
October 2014. However, no options vested in the First
Tranche, Second Tranche and Third Tranche can be
exercised until after the expiry of 12 months from the
respective dates of vesting in accordance with (a), (b) and (c)
above.

(e)  The closing price of the shares immediately before the date
on which the options were granted was HK$4.49.

3. Save as disclosed above, no option granted under the Share
Option Scheme was exercised, cancelled or lapsed during the year
ended 31 December 2009.

On 19 September 2006, the Company also approved and adopted a
share option scheme entitling the Board of Directors to grant share
options at its discretion before the listing of the shares (the “Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme”). A summary of the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme is set out below:

1. Purpose of the Pre-IPO Scheme:
The purpose of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme is to recognize
and acknowledge the contributions of the participants to the
growth of the Group and/or the listing of the shares of the
Company on the Stock Exchange by granting options to them as
incentives or rewards.

2. Participants of the Pre-IPO Scheme:

The Board may, inits discretion, offer to grant options to
subscribe for such number of shares as the Board may determine
to any executive, director and/or employee of the Group who is
in full-time employment of the Group at the time when an
option is granted.
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SHARE OPTIONS (Continued)

3.

Total number of shares available for issue under the
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme and % of issued
shared capital at 5 March 2010:

18,540,000 shares being the maximum number of shares in
respect of which options may be granted under the Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme have been fully granted. Such shares
represented approximately 1.81% of the issued share capital.

Maximum entitlement of each participant under the
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme:

There is no restriction on the number of shares of the Company
issued and to be issued upon exercise of the options granted to
each participant in any 12-month period.

The period within which the shares must be taken
up under an option:

Subject to the rules of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme, an
option may be exercised by a participant, in whole or in part, at
any time during the period commencing from the date of grant
and ending on such date as the Board may determine in granting
the option butin any event not exceeding 5 years from 19
September 2006 being the date of grant of the option.

The minimum period for which an option must be
held before it can be exercised:

No option may be exercised until the expiry of 12 months after
the date of vesting (provided that 25% of the options which was
vested on the date of grant shall not be exercisable within 12
months from the Listing Date). A grantee may be required to
achieve such performance targets as determined by the Board
before any options granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme can be exercised.

The amount payable on application or acceptance of
the option and the period within which payments or
calls must or may be made, or loans for such
purposes must be paid:

Nil
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Report of the Board of Directors

ESERE

SHARE OPTIONS (Continued) BRESE

2 8. The basis of determining the exercise price: 8. BEMTHEEMEXR:

5 (i) 25% of the options shall vest on the date of grant at a ()  25%MEREAENE L E Hi%3.824

& price of HK$3.824 representing 80% of HK$4.78 being BTHNEKEBE mMZEKHAEE

g the price of the Company's shares offered under the REREEPORMBEEE(E

g Prospectus (the " Offer Price”); and EEAT8HE TTHI80% + &

% (i) 25% of the options shall vest on each of the first, second (i) 25%MEREERNE D E B BE

= and third anniversary of the date of grant at a price of m—BF MEBEFRZ=ZBFEH
HK$4.302 representing 90% of the Offer Price. D REA32E THEREE M

ZEBBENZEESEMNIO. -

9. Theremaininglife of the Pre-IPO ShareOption 9. B X ABIBRA B RE 2 W&

Scheme ™ & 5

The Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme was valid and effective for the HXAFEBMKAERE B E W
period commencing on 19 September 2006 and expired on 9 H-ZZEZXREAATABREB 2=
October 2006. TEERFTAALEREM-

Details of the share options granted on 19 September 2006 AR IRIE B KRG R AR &
pursuant to the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme which remained RZZEEXFALAT+ABELE TR
outstanding as at 31 December 2009 are as follows: ZTEZNFF+_A=ZFT—BMERTE

MEREFEBDT

Options Options Options

>
>
>
=
[Y)
X
D
°
e}
3
3
N
=}
S
©

outstanding lapsed during the outstanding

EEY year ended as at

Date of grant 1 January 2009 31 December 2009 31 December 2009
R-ZBEAF REBEE-ZBNF R=BEAF

—A—H +t=ZA=t—-H +=A=+-H

i K 47 £ #9 LFEER e R AT B #Y

R AE KRB ERE i R A&

Director = 19 September 2006 7,500,000 3,750,000 3,750,000
Mr. Lai Kin, Jerome Rty —ZTETRNFALA+TNAA

Employees == 19 September 2006 6,920,000 640,000 6,280,000
—EERFAATAR

14,420,000 4,390,000 10,030,000

100



SHARE OPTIONS (Continued)

Notes:

Pursuant to the rules of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme, 25%
of the options shall vest on the date of grant (the “First Tranche”)
at an option price of HK$3.824 per share. 25% of the options
shall vest on each of the first, second and third anniversary of the
date of grant (the “Subsequent Tranches”) at an option price of
HK$4.302 per share. The Board may at its absolute discretion
adjust the percentage of the options to be vested in the
Subsequent Tranches either upwards or downwards based on the
performance of the option holder in the year immediately
preceding the vesting of the options in the relevant Subsequent
Tranches as determined by the Board except that such adjustment
shall not affect the vesting of options in the First Tranche.

Pursuant to the rules of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme, options
may be exercised by a participant, in whole or in part, at any time
during the period commencing from the date of grant and ending
on such date as the Board may determine in granting the option
but in any event not exceeding 5 years from 19 September 2006
being the date of grant of the options. No option may be
exercised until after the expiry of 12 months after the vesting date
(provided that an option vested in the First Tranche shall not be

exercisable within 12 months from the Listing Date).

Save as disclosed above, no option granted under the Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme was exercised, cancelled or lapsed during
the year ended 31 December 2009.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES
As at 31 December 2009, the interests of each Director and chief

executive of the Company in the equity or debt securities of the

Company or any associated corporation (within the meaning of the

Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO")) which (a) were required to

be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short
positions which they are taken or deemed to have under such

provisions of the SFO); or (b) were required, pursuant to section 352 of

the SFO, to

be entered in the register referred to therein; or (c) were

required, pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by

Directors of Listed Issuers to be notified to the Company and the Stock

Exchange were as follows:
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES (Continued) EENEENERZSE)
§ (i) Long position in shares of the Company: (i) REALXFABROHORR
=
3
= Approximate
g Capacity and Number of percentage of
= Name of Director nature of interest shares shareholding
= BRE SR
2 EEEH HHRERYEE B 4 8 & ERL
Q.
Mr. Wang Weixian Interest of controlled 624,980,622 60.94
TEE %L corporation (Note 1)
REH AR #ERM T
Beneficiary of discretionary 107,817,067 10.51
trust (Note 2)
BEEEXm AME2)
Mr. Tse Sai Tung, Stones Interest of controlled 11,249,873 1.10
FE L £ corporation (Note 3)
RS A A s EE3)
Ms. Wang Xuling Interest of controlled 10,000,438 0.98
TMEZL corporation (Note 4)
z S48 5 2 4 2 (0 32 4)
5 Beneﬂoary of discretionary 107,817,067 10.51
ig trust (Note 2)
2 B 15 15 46 5% 3 A (O 3E2)
o
3
Notes: M 5T -
1. Mr. Wang Weixian is deemed to be interested in an aggregate of 1. FTEEBE AL HRAEZE & H#
732,797,689 shares which are held by SPG Investment Holdings 732,797,6890% B 10 2 #E F o % F K
Ltd., Brilliant Bright Investment Limited and Prestige Glory 3 9 BIl 8 SPG Investment Holdings Ltd.
Enterprises Limited, respectively. Brilliant Bright Investment Limited A Prestige

Glory Enterprises Limited FT 3% & ©

(@) 494,382,087 shares are held by SPG Investment Holdings (a) /3 81494,382,087 % i% 15 T3 A SPG
Ltd. which is a wholly-owned subsidiary of SPG Asset Investment Holdings Ltd. ¥ & * &% &
Management Limited. The entire issued share capital of &) 4 SPG Asset Management Limited
SPG Asset Management Limited is in turn beneficially Z 2 E W B F R A SPG Asset
owned by Mr. Wang Weixian. Management Limited 2 FT & B #

TERABETEERLESHS -

(b) 130,598,535 shares are held by Prestige Glory Enterprises (b) A& #0130,598,535M& A% 1 J5 M
Limited which is entirely beneficially owned by Mr. Wang Prestige Glory Enterprises Limited #—ir
Weixian. B ZPRrRAHBHIETBREBEXAT

Em#ER-

102



DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES (Continued)
(i) Long position in shares of the Company: (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

Each of Mr. Wang Weixian and Ms. Wang Xuling is deemed to be
interested in 107,817,067 shares, which are held by Brilliant
Bright Investment Limited which is a wholly-owned subsidiary of
HSBC International Trustee Limited as trustee of a discretionary
trust of which family members of Mr. Wang Weixian including
Mr. Wang Weixian and Ms. Wang Xuling are discretionary
objects.

Mr. Tse Sai Tung, Stones is deemed to be interested in 11,249,873
shares, which are held by Easternflair Investment Limited which is
in turn entirely beneficially owned by Mr. Tse Sai Tung, Stones.

Ms. Wang Xuling is deemed to be interested in 10,000,438
shares, which are held by Boom Rich Investments Limited which is
in turn entirely beneficially owned by Ms. Wang Xuling.

(ii) Long position in underlying shares of the Company:

Name of Director

EEE8

Mr. Lai Kin, Jerome

gL

Note:

Capacity and

These share options were granted under the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme. A summary of the terms of the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme and details of the share options granted
thereunder are set outin the paragraph headed “Share
Options” in this report.

nature of interest

SO RESEME

Beneficial owner
EanEAA

EERESNERSE
() REQXARBHRE: (&)

B 5

(#E)

TREEBEEERTNELTHERR
¥ 5107,817,067 I % {0 B9 # 71 0 % F
% 17 £8 Brilliant Bright Investment Limited
# A+ H AHSBC International Trustee
Limited® & % & ¥ 2 & MHSBC
International Trustee Limited & LA T & &
EERKEREBEPREIEEXERT
MELZL)RMNEERERONER
FEzfEEAC

it S A RS T B 11,249,873 K%
BHzEFZ - ZSEROBFHEREE
% 2 B % ¥ A M Easternflair Investment
Limited fiT 45 & ©

T M E L+ AR R % 610,000,438 1%
BHmERS FkbhBaIRELL
5t 2 B % % A H)Boom Rich Investments
Limited % & °

(i) RAX2FAHEBAROBRE:

Description of Number of
equity derivatives  underlying shares
FRAESTAE T BEAA HERGEE
Share option (Note) 3,750,000
B Pz (PM 5E)
Miad: ZEBRESZREALAABRA

BRESSEL - ERDFRBRA
BRER B NEIOEE MR
b mBRENFE JIHERNA
WA — B

iz A le o+ e
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Report of the Board of Directors

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES (Continued)

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2009, none of the
Directors, chief executives of the Company and their respective
associates had any personal, family, corporate or other interests or
short positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO) which would have to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO (including interests or short positions which they are taken or
deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or which were
required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the
register referred to therein, or which were required, pursuant to the
Model Code, to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.

Apart from the foregoing, at no time during the year was the
Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to
enable the Directors or any of their spouses or children under 18 years
of age to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or
debentures of the Company or any other body corporate, and no
Directors or chief executives or their respective spouses or children
under 18 years of age had been granted any right to subscribe for
equity or debt securities of the Company nor exercised any such right.

EERESNERSE)

BREXHBEEREEN R_FTFTAF+ A
ZSt—HB A2AREF THARLES
ERNBEANRARR A TAEREBECE
BERESRPEHEROEXVE A B - 18
EhSEFTHEREARBEES YR
ROIEXVERE 7R 8 #F A & A B K B
THHER(BEERZEREES BB G
B A BRI R E E AR 1E A B M AR
B) RAREBESFKHE KO H35264 5L
BRZGhmtzERMeEDs AR
BRETAMASART B IMOES -

BREtaEN RERAEMER AR A K
HEMFARAELEATLEMZHE UTE
FERENEAEBRTAEATHFX
AEBBEARAIEMEMEABRED
B ESFMESMNE  AREFHTH
BEIBEEFEENEBK T ARATHT
AHBECRERRERAUABARARMAESFDH
TN TETETABEBRERN-



SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

Other than interests disclosed in the section headed “Directors’
Interests in Securities” above, as at 31 December 2009, according to
the register of interests kept by the Company under section 336 of the
SFO, the following entities had interests or short positions in the shares
of the Company which fall to be disclosed to the Company under
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO:

Capacity and

Name of shareholder

BRRER BORESEME

Beneficial owner (Note 1)
EmEAa AR ED

Interest of controlled

SPG Investment Holdings Ltd.

SPG Asset Management Limited
corporation (Note 1)

S INECIE

(Bt 3E1)
Brilliant Bright Investment Limited Beneficial owner
EmEAA
Prestige Glory Enterprises Limited Beneficial owner (Note 1)
EanEA AMED
HSBC International Trustee Limited Trustee (Note 2)
5 A E2)
Note 1: 494,382,087 shares are held by SPG Investment Holdings Ltd. which
is a wholly-owned subsidiary of SPG Asset Management Limited. SPG
Asset Management Limited is deemed to be interested in the same
batch of shares under the SFO. Mr. Wang Weixian is a director of SPG
Investment Holdings Ltd., SPG Asset Management Limited and
Prestige Glory Enterprises Limited.
Note 2 :  These shares are held by Brilliant Bright Investment Limited which is a

wholly-owned subsidiary of HSBC International Trustee Limited as a
trustee of a discretionary trust of which family members of Mr. Wang
Weixian including himself are discretionary objects.

nature of interest

FERR

BREXTEENESNEDS] —HMEREN
ah R_TEAF+-_A=+—8"
RERNRBREZ S LB E GO £33614K
AHRENEZECMACE TIHEER
ARBBEODTHEERBEESLBEKEMNS
XVER 2R 30 BB R A R B FE /%
HIKR

/N

Approximate
percentage of

Number of shares shareholding
ROBE RFREBABIL
494,382,087 48.21
494,382,087 48.21
107,817,067 10.51
130,598,535 12.74
107,817,067 10.51

MisE1: A #494,382,087H% Bk 15 Jy ASPG
Investment Holdings Ltd.ff # & SPG
Investment Holdings Ltd. & SPG Asset
ManagementLimitedz 2 E#H B8 F 2
Al 1R B & 5 & BB & ) SPG Asset
Management Limited # 1% /& % & R — #t i%
2 B e T & B 5 & JhSPG Investment
Holdings Ltd., SPG Asset Management Limited

X Prestige Glory Enterprises Limited 2 & % °

MfsE2 : Itk % B 19 BBrilliant Bright Investment
Limited FT #5 & - Brilliant Bright Investment
Limited 2 HSBC International Trustee Limited
> E WA T QA MHSBC International
Trustee Limited % — B E T Z 7T A
EMBEAZaARTREREXE(BE
HEARANBRIEKE -
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EEERE

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS
No contract concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company was
entered into or existed during the year.

REMUNERATION POLICY

The remuneration policy of the employees of the Group is formulated
by the Remuneration Committee which takes into account individual
performance, qualifications and competence.

The remuneration of the Executive Directors of the Company are
decided by the Remuneration Committee, having regard to the
Company’s operating results, individual performance and comparable
market statistics. The remuneration of the Non-Executive Directors
(including the Independent Non-executive Directors) of the Company
are recommended by the Remuneration Committee.

The Company has adopted the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme and the
Share Option Scheme to provide incentive to the directors and eligible
employees of the Group, details of the said schemes are set out in the
paragraph headed “Share Options” above.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 December 2009, the Company repurchased
4,624,000 shares of HK$0.10 each in the capital of the Company on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited as follows:

Number of
shares
repurchased
Fr B @

BE A EgvE =

Date of repurchase

16 June 2009 —-_=
17 June 2009 —_=

ghfﬁ/\ﬂ_i—/\El
ETNFARNATLEH

2,695,000
1,929,000

The repurchased shares were subsequently cancelled by the Company.
The issued share capital of the Company was reduced by the par
values thereof. The premium paid for the repurchase of shares and
related expenses, in the amount of HK$11,685,049.26, was charged
to the share premium account.

EEEHN
TR BEITUXTFTEERARRIERE R
BREREABLINEERITERALN

R
AEEEENFMBXAFHZE LS
BEARE BENENESE -

ARARATEFMEATHZESRT
ARAMEEXE BARRALRTELER
MTSEBEMET ARARERTER(R
RBILFPTERNHSABmTHEZES
B

ARBEHRMNE XA HERAERE S
&Eﬁﬂ&*%?+¥lJDAE%&ED$El%%&/—\ﬁ(%
BE ARG EFBEHN EXEREI—&-

BE HLEXBEEARA LHES

E/\Eﬁzfz:gfjli—i—_ﬂzﬂ——ﬁﬂzifg
N RARREBBERIMERAAE
@$ﬂﬂk$¢#h@ﬁam%ﬁzA&4mo
BB - BT

Aggregate

Highest Lowest consideration
price paid price paid (excluding
per share per share expenses)
BRXN 8B8RXH BKE
2BEeE ZBREE (& ??EF#EJSE)
(HK$) (HK$) (HK$)

(& T) (&) (& 7T)
2.65 2.38 6,846,885.72

2.80 2.55 5,300,563.54

O ZBRMHMEREBREARAQAFTH A
RAEAIZEBETRAERGAMEDRG <
HE - BERODINz2EEREHEMX
11,685,049.26 B T E R M B EBEF MK -



PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES (Continued)

The repurchase of shares during the year ended 31 December 2009
was effected by the Directors pursuant to the general mandate
approved by the shareholders at the annual general meeting of the
Company held on 5 June 2009, with a view to benefiting shareholders
as a whole by enhancing the net asset value per share and earnings
per share of the Group.

During the year ended 31 December 2009, the Company repurchased
part of the US dollar settled zero coupon convertible bonds due 2012
issued by the Company on 27 April 2007 as follows:

BE HELBERAQARALTES
(&)
REZE-ZETZANF+_A=+T—HLFE
RETZRHER DNEZEREAQETR
ZETZNFANARARTDIRRBAFARE
FERFREZ —BEEMET BEE
ERAAEE2EREEFERTRATF
WmEEEREZE-

REHE-_ZEAFE+_A=+—BILEE
A ARaBRBISARTR_ZZELF
MAZ+EHETUETENN = —=
FRHHETETEBERES FHOT:

Principal Highest Lowest Aggregate
amount price price consideration
of bonds Method of paid per paid per (excluding
repurchased purchase bond bond expenses)
BhEx BOES
Date of B8 @ & 35 X2 & Xtz HMRE
repurchase - T = ZATHE BORE BB REE (FTRERX
(RMB) (RMB) (RMB) (RMB)
(A E#) AEE) (AEK) (A B )
25February2009 —ZTZE N F 54,000,000 Off market exempt 51,000 51,000 27,540,000
—“RAZ-+EH share repurchase
BN 5 R
& 15 [E] B2
19 May 2009 —ZETNF 114,400,000 Tender offer 84,000 84,000 96,096,000
EA+AHAE BIEEH

The bonds were issued at face value of RMB 100,000 each and are
listed on the Singapore Stock Exchange.

As at 31 December 2009, the aggregate principal amount of the
convertible bonds outstanding was RMB889,600,000.

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries has purchased, redeemed or sold any of the Company’s
listed securities during the year ended 31 December 2009.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS
No pre-emptive rights exist in the Cayman Islands being the jurisdiction
in which the Company is incorporated.

BHEEHEEARK100,0007T 17 I
REIMBEEZRX SR LD -

R-—2ZTAE+-A=-+—8B H*
B TBREEASBER ARE
889,600,000 7T °

BAERBEEIN REBEE_FTTAF+=
A=Z=+—BLEFER KA2arxkEEMF
AAHMEBE BRSXHEARFEM L
™R 5 e

BEXREEHRE
ARABEMA IO A EERMHSHBL
TR E

BhH Y EET
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Report of the Board of Directors

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS

The Company adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules as its code of conduct for dealings in securities
of the Company by the Directors. Based on specific enquiry by the
Company, all Directors have confirmed that they have complied with
the required standards set out in the Model Code during the year
ended 31 December 2009.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
Principal corporate governance practices adopted by the Company are
set out in the Corporate Governance Report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company’s audit committee is composed of all the four
Independent Non-Executive Directors of the Company. The audit
committee has reviewed with the management the accounting
principles and practices adopted by the Group and discussed internal
controls and financial reporting matters including a review of the
audited consolidated accounts for the year ended 31 December 2009.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of its Directors, the Directors confirm that the
Company has maintained throughout the year of 2009 the amount of
public float as required under the Listing Rules.

AUDITORS

The consolidated accounts for the year have been audited by KPMG. A
resolution for the re-appointment of KPMG as the Company's auditors
for the ensuing year is to be proposed at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

On behalf of the Board
WANG Weixian
Chairman

Hong Kong, 5 March 2010

ESETESXZNEETA
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Report of the Auditors
2 BRI ¥R &5

Independent auditors’ report to the shareholders of
SPG Land (Holdings) Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of SPG Land
(Holdings) Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries (hereinafter
collectively referred to as “the Group”) set out on pages 111 to 221,
which comprise the consolidated balance sheet of the Group and the
balance sheet of the Company as at 31 December 2009, and the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of
cash flows of the Group for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and
the true and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards issued by
the International Accounting Standards Board and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. This
responsibility includes designing, implementing and maintaining
internal control relevant to the preparation and the true and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatements, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying
appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates
that are reasonable in the circumstances.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit. This report is made solely to you, as a
body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance as to whether the financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

BESEHR(ERERAF
(RESHELMELLFR LA
ERRRNBIRBOAES

Nz EAD (LA S A (3R M) B 2 & M BE &
REMBERIERSEW(ER)ERA
AUATEBIEARDEEFRAIUATE
BIEEBDNGEYBRER EFBEER
TETAEFT A=+ -—BHEERAA
BEAGBR HLZBLEFENRKE2E
MER HEEREHRNGEEHEESRE
FURETZESFABEMENE A48 MK
B &E o

EERMBRRAARENETRL

ERAEFAAERBEKREGENZE
ERMOBRMBRELENREFLE QAR
IMERERBENEBEENDOAMEZRZSE
MBEBRR GEETERERFT BEHEk#E#
HEHREEMNAA M2 HBU B HRKRIEH
BWAMIES MERMBEERTIFEERXN
BRRA(TwEREEEFERER L)
EEVYERAEENSRBER REBRIE
hEEMEEEE -

78 QO
ZHAMNETRBREZTENER HRZSH
BHRRERER YERE2EBRRES-
Btz ABEEFAAELMBLRE-
BHTERABREATAETAEMALTER
FEAEEMEE-

HPMBREBETESFMI2ERMANETBEN
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Report of the Auditors (continued)
2 BB 3R & (48)

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY (Continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditors consider internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation and true and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at
31 December 2009 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

5 March 2010

BB Ry E E ()
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

LeZEAMER

For the year ended 31 December 2009
HE-FFNF+ A=+ —HIFE

2009 2008
—EBAE —EENEF
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
B 5 AR T T AR®E T T
Revenue U 2= 8 3,065,441 1,394,993
Cost of sales 3 E B K (2,151,003) (853,196)
Gross profit ] 914,438 541,797
Other income =N 9 5,020 3,289
Selling and marketing costs HE RMiHHEEXK (116,507) (69,484)
Administrative expenses THEHR (154,183) (157,982)
Other operating expenses HEmgeghRX 10 (4,994) (7,129)
Net gain on acquisition of subsidiaries W HE F 2 BB W2 % 8 - 48,216
Net gain on disposal of equity HEFTRRRED
interest in subsidiaries W == % B8 61,140
Net gain on repurchase of convertible bonds B [@] 7] &2 # (& % 2
W a5 0 8 35 49,394 58,252
Results from operating activities BB KETEE K E T 693,168 478,099
Finance income BE WK A 16,914 14,199
Finance expenses B & B AN (86,771) (102,056)
Fair value changes on financial derivatives ~ #TE €@ T AN AR E
18 % g 35 50,263 (42,495) |
Net finance expenses BE R EE 13 (19,594) (130,352) f@
_______________________________________________________________________________________________________ &
Share of profits/(losses) of associates JE 1 B & A B H
_________________________________________________ ERIPALE VN 66,645 LAY/
Profit before revaluation gains on KA BREVWEEMG KR
investment properties and income tax & ft 18 % A 3% # 740,219 335,030
Revaluation gains on KEWMEEMH K
investment properties 23 517,254 25,000
Profit before income tax R B 15 Bl AT & R 1,257,473 360,030
Income tax expense FT 15 % B 2 14 (427,726) (172,025)
Total comprehensive income for the year & 2 H W A #& 58 829,747 188,005
Total comprehensive income LTATEEEZE
attributable to: 1 GNE -
Equity holders of the Company KRR EZEA A 678,520 151,499
Minority interests B R% B ORE S 151,227 36,506
Total comprehensive income fortheyear £ E 2 H W A & 829,747 188,005
Earnings per share FREF
Basic earnings per share (RMB) B E K EFARE T 18 0.660 0.146
Diluted earnings per share (RMB) FREEBEMNARET 18 0.537 0.146

FIBE2NAZMANZEYBHREROA
D= R N S = R DNV B R
BABRBFHBHENRME7 -

The notes on pages 118 to 221 form part of these financial statements.
Details of dividends payable to equity holders of the Company
attributable to the profit for the year are set out in note 17.




Consolidated Balance Sheet and Company Balance Sheet
HEEERGERNAFREERGR

As at 31 December 2009
RZFEFENF+ZA=+—H

Group Company

g AEE PN
) 2009 2009
= —EENE ¥ —BBAE z
% RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
g ARBTRE ARETRE AR%MTR ARBTR
g Assets EE
3
Property, plant and equipment ¥ % + [ & & & & 19 236,144 252,756 -
Intangible assets EmEE 20 1,655 - -
Land use rights + i (F R 21 74,192 79,500 -
Other investments = 22 13,032 - -
Properties under development 2 f& 1 4 % 24 4,235,962 2,558,728 -
Investment properties REME 23 1,640,500 723,000 -
Interests in associates B &N B 26 989,822 923,177 -
Investment in subsidiaries FRalER 27 - - 3,935,092 3,670,755
Financial derivatives TEe@MIA 35 51,491 3,382 51,491 3,382
Deferred tax assets ERERIBEEE 31(ii) 212,969 88,149 = -
Total non-current assets ERBEELSE 7,455,767 4,628,692 3,986,583 3,674,137
g Properties under development % [& 1 ¥ % 24 2,963,347 1,800,902 -
= Completed properties held EERFEME
(gb for sale 25 235,635 509,861 -
S Other investments H 15 B 22 1,228 856 -
3 Trade, other receivablesand & It BE %« E 4t
advance deposits R ZREMZE 28 864,878 1,340,466 350,584 671,229
Restricted cash XRGRe 29 2,408,748 539,771 = -
Cash and cash equivalents BeRESLZEY 30 3,038,945 403,531 2,070 10,852
Total current assets REBEEMARE 9,512,781 4,595,387 352,654 682,081
Total assets EEHE 16,968,548 4,339,237 4,356,218
Equity B %
Share capital B 38 104,347 104,818 104,347 104,818
Share premium B s B 39 2,071,330 2,081,584 2,071,330 2,081,584
Reserves ERi] 39 721,498 689,460 449,932 453,536
Retained earnings/ REBEF
(accumulated losses) (Rt E8) 865,426 447,989 5,175 (47,428)

Total equity attributable EAAREEEA

to equity holders BhEZAE

of the Company 3,762,601 3,323,851 2,630,784 2,592,510
Minority interests PERRER 343,924 524,409
Total equity EREE 4,106,525 3,848,260 2,630,784 2,592,510

The notes on pages 118 to 221 form part of these financial statements. FUNSENRIBEZHWE I ZEM BRI A
112 % 26 5 o
ap JJ



Consolidated Balance Sheet and Company Balance Sheet (continued)

GREBEEEBERNAAEEAERE

As at 31 December 2009
RZFEFNF+ZA=+—H

Group Company
A%8 AR
2009 2008 2009 2008

—BRRE -TT/\F -RBAF “TTNAF
Note RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
i AR¥TE ARMTT ARMTR ARETR

Liabilities =R
Interest-bearing loans FEEXR 32 2,135,747 580,000 -
Trade, other payables and EMERZ b
advance receipts FE R TB U 33 5,592,876 1,895,128 805,811 734,481
Tax payable FE < 5118 31() 566,663 323,556 - -
Long-term payable within —F NI N R
one year JE < 5% 34 6,000 6,000
Total current liabilities REBEEASE 8,301,286 2,804,684 805,811 734,481
Interest-bearing loans HEEXR 32 3,151,292 1,141,860 - -
Long-term payable RHEE SR 34 45,301 49,013 - -
Convertible bonds A ik (E A 35 902,642 1,029,227 902,642 1,029,227
Deferred tax liabilities ELHEEFE 31(ii) 461,502 351,035 - - LI
A
Total non-current liabilities ¥R B EE L5 4,560,737 2,571,135 902,642 1,029,227 fﬁ.
_________________________________________________________________________________________ frt
_FH
Total liabilities EEAE 12,862,023 5,375,819 1,708,453 1,763,708 S

Total equity and liabilites ®EZKkEEHHE

16,968,548 9,224,079 4,339,237 4,356,218
Net current assets/(liabilities) i & & &

(BB EE 1,211,495 1,790,703 (CEEALY))

Total assets less current BEERABAE
liabilities 8,667,262 6,419,395 3,533,426 3,621,737

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 5 RZE—ZE=-AFRRAEEETSeHELRE
March 2010. T -
Wang Weixian Tse Sai Tung, Stones
TEE R
Chairman of the Board of Directors Group Managing Director and
Chief Executive Officer
EEERTE FEEFHEEFITHABHR
The notes on pages 118 to 221 form part of these financial statements. IEEPPAR=rdl i AR =4 b o]
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (continued)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

:n‘ﬂ'\AIﬁﬁljlbg%‘%

For the year ended 31 December 2009
HE-EFANF+-A=+—ALFE

2009 2008
p —BAE —TTN\AE
9:? Note RMB’000 RMB'000
= M ARBFRT ARBTR
o
§" Operating activities ReEXK
5 Profit o the year 5 4F 3% 829,747 188,005
(]
o
Adjustments for: FEIER
Depreciation e 19 25,516 25,898
Reversal for bad and doubtful debts 82 6] R % AR 12 - (3,046)
Amortisation of intangible asset & E 20 45 -
Amortisation of land use rights T b s A B 21 1,772 1,713
Change in fair value of investment properties & & ¥ % A # B {8 i & 23 (517,254) (25,000)
Net finance expenses B & Bk AN F R 13 19,594 130,352
Share of (profits)/losses of associates JEAEEEE AR CE R,
BB (66,645) 12,717
Loss/(gain) on disposal of property, BREWE BE MKRE
plant and equipment B8 () (205)
§ Net gain on acquisition of subsidiaries WeEF R a2 W& FRE (48,216)
5 Net gain on disposal of subsidiaries HETFTRAAZ W= FHE (61,140)
ig Equity-settled share-based payment expenses A% # 45 & 1 % 15 X
¥ 3 11 6,467 (568)
§ Net gain on repurchase of convertible bonds 8 [0 7] & # & 25 2 Uk 25
F R 35 (49,394) (58,252)
Income tax expenses TS’ X 14 427,726 172,025
Operating profit before changes in EEESEBHAMN
working capital ey 677,742 334,283
Increase in restricted cash = PR %I 3R € 32 40 (1,868,977) (298,178)
Decrease/(increase) in trade and JE U BR 5R K H b E UK
other receivables IR D (3 m) 710,918 (262,146)
Increase in properties under development BERAYWENEER
and completed properties held for sale FEYEIE N (1,568,538) (679,522)
Increase in trade and other payables & 1~ BR 3R K& H b FE
K IR N 3,734,971 501,324
Income tax paid SRR (198,972) (183,836)
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from REEXBEEE (FTA)
operating activities HEBHE 1,487,144 (588,075)

The notes on pages 118 to 221 form part of these financial statements. FNSENRIE MEF N ZEMBHRENA
116 B EF 45 o



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (continued)

%Aiﬁﬁl)lbgﬁ(ng

For the year ended 31 December 2009
BE—FZNFFT-A=1T—HILFE

Investing activities

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and
equipment

Proceeds from disposal of equity interests
in subsidiaries

Interest received

Acquisition of minority interests

Acquisition of subsidiary, net of cash acquired Yt B + 2 & » 1 B A

Acquisition of property, plant and equipment Y & ¥ 2% - kB &

Acquisition of intangible assets

Purchase of land use rights

Proceeds from disposal/(acquisition)
of investments

REED

HEME BE &
BEEIRCE

& F AR B
FIT 1% 3k 1A

B KA E

Y kg %ﬁﬂxﬁf“*

Be

WiEmmwEE
BETERRE

HE (KRBKREMEF

&

2009

—EEhEF
Note RMB’000
B 5 ARET T

16,914
7 (406,731)

(4,913)
(9,943)
(1,700)
(1,447,043)

105

Net cash outflow from investing activities R EE B T B R £ F 5

(1,852,440)

Financing activities mEES
Proceeds from issuance of shares BT D PR 1S KB -
Proceeds from bank borrowings WITEEMGEH I_Ef 5,900,716
Repayment of bank borrowings BERITEE (2,335,537)
Payment for convertible bonds repurchased 37 1< ] & #2 & % @] §8 (165,143)
Payment for shares repurchased S AR B B 38(b) (10,725)
Interest paid EERRAIPSS (238,559)
Dividends paid EKE 17 (81,492)
Payment to minority interests XN ERERER (68,440)
Net cash inflow from financing activities B E EBHELNE £
RAFE 3,000,820

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and HERBEESEEY

cash equivalents ®in, CRl )% 8 2,635,524

Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes

R—A-—BHRER
Re%EY

EyHnge

403,531

(110)

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December® + = A=+ —H®

RERBEEEEY

3,038,945

The notes on pages 118 to 221 form part of these financial statements.

2008
—EENE
RMB’000
ARET 7

820

349,068
14,199

(447,403)
(21,111)

286
1,839,220
(1,290,570)

(4,069)
(121,288)
(149,472)

(32,209)

241,898

(451,558)

863,237

(8,148)

403,531

FIBE2NAEZMANZEN B HREROA
X E2
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

R B AR MY T

GENERAL INFORMATION AND GROUP
REORGANISATION

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 13
April 2006 as an exempted company with limited liability under
the Companies Law, Cap 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated
and revised) of the Cayman Islands. The address of the
Company's registered office is Century Yard, Cricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681 GT, George Town, Grand
Cayman, British West Indies. The companies comprising the
Group underwent a reorganisation (the “Reorganisation”) to
rationalise the Group's structure in preparation for the listing of
the Company’s shares on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Hong Kong Stock Exchange”). On
30 June 2006, the Company became the holding company of
the subsidiaries now comprising the Group. Details of the
Reorganisation were set out in the Prospectus of the Company
dated 26 September 2006.

The Company’s shares were listed on the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange on 10 October 2006.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The consolidated results of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2009 include the results of the Company and its
subsidiaries from 1 January 2009, or their respective dates of
incorporation. The consolidated balance sheet at 31 December
2009 is a consolidation of the balance sheets of the Company
and its subsidiaries at the respective balance sheet dates. All
material intra-group transactions and balances have been
eliminated on consolidation. In the opinion of the directors, the
consolidated financial statements prepared on this basis present
fairly the results of operations and the state of affairs of the
Group as a whole.

(a) Statement of compliance
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSs”). These financial statements also
comply with the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance and the applicable disclosure
provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on Hong Kong Stock Exchange.

The International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”)
has issued certain new and revised IFRSs that are firstly
effective or available for early adoption for the current
accounting period of the Group and the Company. Note 4
providesinformation on any changesin accounting
policies resulting from initial application of these
developments to the extent that they are relevant to the
Group for the current and prior accounting periods
reflected in the consolidated financial statements.

—RERMREEBEA

RARRZZTEZENFUNA+=HRE
MEHBEAREERE(—NLAN—F
BEMFRETHNEIFRENLRS R
SEAMAIAZHREBER QA AR
7] & it #t = & /Y i 4F A& Century Yard,
Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681
GT, George Town, Grand Cayman, British
West Indiese BEH AR R K H KRB B
BEXZIMABERRBD(TER B A
FREM BEERAEEAN QA E
T —BHEHA(EA)D) KEAEEH
MERBEEE- R_ZTTNFNA=
TH RARAAKNAEAEEBEREFEB TS
FTREMERA AR - EHEANFE
HRARRARZZEZENFALAZTA
HRIZENERER-

AR R_ZEENF+A+HE
BEBB T EHe

mREXE
AREBE-TTAE+-B=+—
BLEFEMEA REREARRARA
FARAE-FTAE A BAKE
& E MM AT B AR A KA R
—ETASt_A=T-HMBAR
ERBADBARARETAARK
EERERAMAERERA G-
MEEAREAHBR S REBHER
AHERHTUERE EERA B
R R R A A A B R R
DA RMARE BB EEEE R
B -

(a) &EXREH
RER A M WmR TR BB R M B
WeEEAEERSBHESERD
REMBK - AR BERRTTEE
BRRGRN 2 WERTERE LB
EBRXZHAERARES LA A
ZE BB BRI

BRegstENE=TE(EER &
EABEGNDEHEME THIAIR
RETEREFHEHRESER TR
AEBRARRZE R G HE
BEREBRELAHKEFRERA - AR
BRERBZEMTREER ZH
B mEERMER 2 &K
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MBHREREBAR)  CHNM 4 -



Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

RE MWK EEGE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued) 2. REBEEE)
(b) Basis of measurement (b) sStEEE

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except that other investments
in equity securities, derivative financial instruments and
investment properties are measured at fair value.

The methods used to measure fair values are discussed
further in note 5.

Functional and presentation currency

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
Renminbi (“RMB"), which is the Group’s functional
currency. All financial information presented in RMB has
been rounded to the nearest thousand.

Use of estimates and judgements

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements
in conformity with IFRSs requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of accounting policies and the reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The
estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and various other factors that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the
results of which form the basis of making the judgements
about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

In particular, information about significant areas of
estimation uncertainty and critical judgements in applying
accounting policies that have the most significant effect
on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial
statements are described in the following notes:

o Note 7 — acquisition of minority interest

° Note 14 — income tax expense

o Note 23 — valuation of investment properties

o Note 31 — deferred taxation

o Note 35 — valuation of liability component, equity
component and financial derivative of
convertible bonds

o Note 37 — measurement of share-based payments

o Note 40 — financial guarantees

o Note 41 — valuation of financial instruments

J Note 42 — lease classification.

REMESESERE - TETH
TARKREMEREREAIABESR
B AEEMBRETIREE
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

R B R AR M R R

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The accounting policies set out below have been applied
consistently to all years presented in these consolidated financial
statements, and have been applied consistently by Group
entities, except as explained in note 4, which addresses changes
in accounting policies.

(a) Basis of consolidation
(i) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group.
Control exists when the Company has the power,
directly or indirectly, to govern the financial and
operating policies of an entity so as to obtain
benefits from its activities. In assessing control,
potential voting rights that are presently exercisable
or convertible are taken into account. The financial
statements of subsidiaries are included in the
consolidated financial statements from the date that
control commences until the date that control
ceases. The accounting policies of subsidiaries have
been changed when necessary to align them with
the policies adopted by the Group.

(ii) Acquisitions from entities under common
control
Business combinations arising from transfers of
interests in entities that are under the control of the
shareholder that controls the Group are accounted
for as if the acquisition had occurred at the
beginning of the earliest comparative period
presented or, if later, at the date that common
control was established. The assets and liabilities
acquired are recognised at the carrying amounts
recognised previously in the Group's controlling
shareholder’s consolidated financial statements. The
components of equity of the acquired entities are
added to the same components within Group equity
except that any share capital of the acquired entities
is recognised as part of merger reserves. Any cash
paid for the acquisition is recognised directly in
equity.

TESTHE

TXHENEFBRRERNZEEAY
BBREANZINNMEFEANEEBE
B BRRAMEIAmEEER 2@t BE
EH o ERIN O MBASEERTEE

BEBZEEFTBRE
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{5 42 550 4 B TR B A 4T 3
A EER BB
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ZHERG Y BEHALA
MW R E AR
Bk T2 A M E 5 HE R
BEHTELED L ER
517K 5 B B 3R 400 1) 0K 5B AR 45
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(a) Basis of consolidation (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Associates

Associates are those entities in which the Group has
significantinfluence, but not control, over the
financial and operating policies. Significant influence
is presumed to exist when the Group holds between
20% and 50% of the voting power of another
entity. Associates are accounted for using the equity
method and are initially recognised at cost. The
consolidated financial statements include the
Group’s share of the gains and losses and equity
movements of associates, after adjustments to align
the accounting policies with those of the Group,
from the date that significant influence commences
until the date that significant influence ceases.
When the Group's share of losses exceeds its interest
in an associate, the carrying amount of the interest
is reduced to nil and the recognition of further losses
is discontinued except to the extent that the Group
has an obligation or has made payments on behalf
of the investee.

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of a
business combination or an investmentin an
associate over the Group's interest in the net fair
value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities
and contingent liabilities.

Goodwill is stated at cost less any accumulated
impairment losses. Goodwill is allocated to cash-
generating units and is not amortised but is tested
annually for impairment (see note 3(l)). In respect of
associates, the carrying amount of goodwill is
included in the carrying amount of the interest in the
associate.

Any excess of the Group's interests in the net fair
value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities
and contingent liabilities over the cost of a business
combination or an investment in an associate or a
joint venture is recognised immediately in profit or
loss.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

RE MWK EEGE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(a) Basis of consolidation (Continued)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

Goodwill (Continued)

On disposal of a cash-generating unit, an associate
or a joint venture during the year, any attributable
amount of purchased goodwill is included in the
calculation of the profit or loss on disposal.

Transactions eliminated on consolidation
Intra-group balances and transactions, and any
unrealised income and expenses arising from intra-
group transactions, are eliminated in preparing the
consolidated financial statements. Unrealised gains
arising from transactions with associates are
eliminated against the investment to the extent of
the Group’sinterestin the investee. Unrealised
losses are eliminated in the same way as unrealised
gains, but only to the extent that there is no
evidence of impairment.

Investment in subsidiaries

In the Company'’s balance sheet, an investment in a
subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment losses (see
note 3(1)), unless the investment is classified as held
forsale (orincluded in a disposal group that is
classified as held for sale).

(b) Foreign currency

0]

Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to
the respective functional currencies of Group entities
at the exchange rates at the dates of the
transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies at the reporting
date are retranslated to the functional currency at
the exchange rate at that date. The foreign currency
gain or loss on monetary items is the difference
between the amortised costin the functional
currency at the beginning of the period, adjusted for
effective interest and payments during the period,
and the amortised cost in foreign currency translated
at the exchange rate at the end of the period. Non-
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies that are measured at fair value are
retranslated to the functional currency at the
exchange rate at the date that the fair value was
determined. Foreign currency differences arising on
retranslation are recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

R B R AR M R R

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 3. T EE&€ s K ZE(£E)
(b) Foreign currency (Continued) (b) shHs(42)
(ii) Foreign operations (i) BEHEB

The assets and liabilities of foreign operations
outside the People’s Republic of China (“PRC"),
including goodwill and fair value adjustments arising
on consolidation, are translated to RMB at the
foreign exchange rates at the reporting date. The
income and expenses of foreign operations are
translated to RMB at exchange rates at the dates of
the transactions.

Foreign exchange differences arising on retranslation
are recognised directly in the foreign currency
translation reserve ("FCTR"”). When a foreign
operation is disposed of, in part or in full, the
relevant amount in the FCTR is transferred to profit
or loss.

Foreign exchange gains and losses arising from a
monetary item receivable from or payable to a
foreign operation, the settlement of which is neither
planned nor likely in the foreseeable future, are
considered to form part of a net investmentin a
foreign operation and are recognised directly in
equity in the FCTR.
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(c) Financial instruments (0 €T A
(i) Otherinvestments in equity securities () EMREZRFHPHRER
&

The Group’s policies for investments in equity
securities, other than investments in subsidiaries,
associates and jointly controlling entities, are as
follows:

Investments in equity securities are initially stated at
fair value, which is their transaction price unless fair
value can be more reliably estimated using valuation
techniques whose variables include only data from
observable markets. Costincludes attributable
transaction costs, except where indicated otherwise
below. These investments are subsequently
accounted for as follows, depending on their
classification:
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

RE MWK EEGE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(c) Financial instruments (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Otherinvestments in equity securities
(Continued)

Investments in securities held for trading are
classified as current assets. Any attributable
transaction costs are recognised in profit or loss as
incurred. At each balance sheet date the fair value is
remeasured, with any resultant gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss.

Available-for-sale financial assets that do not have a
quoted market price in an active market and whose
fair value cannot be reliably measured are measured
at cost less any identified impairment losses (see
note 3(I)) at each balance sheet date subsequent to
initial recognition.

Convertible bonds

Convertible bonds issued by the Company that
contain liability, conversion option and redemption
option components are classified separately into
liability component, equity component and
embedded derivative component consisting of the
redemption option of the Company respectively. A
derivative embedded in a non-derivative host
contract is treated as a separate derivative when its
risks and characteristics are not closely related to
those of the host contract. On initial recognition, the
fair value of the liability component is determined
using the prevailing market interest of similar non-
convertible bonds. The derivative component is
carried at fair value on the balance sheet with any
changes in fair value being charged or credited to
profit or lossin the period in which the change
occurs. The difference between the proceeds of the
issue of the convertible bonds and the fair values of
the liability component and embedded derivative
related to the redemption option of the Company is
included in equity.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

RE MWK EEGE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(c) Financial instruments (Continued)

(i)

Convertible bonds (Continued)

Subsequent to initial recognition, the liability
component of the convertible bonds is carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.
The difference between the interest so calculated
and the interest paidis added to the carrying
amount of the liability component. The embedded
derivative is remeasured to fair value through profit
or loss at subsequent reporting dates. The equity
component, represented by the option to convert
the liability component into ordinary shares of the
Company, remainsin capital reserve until the
embedded option is exercised (at which time the
convertible bonds equity component will be
transferred to share capital and share premium).
Where the option remains unexercised at the expiry
date, the balance remaining in capital reserve is
released to retained profits. No gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss upon conversion or
expiration of the option.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of
convertible bonds are allocated to the liability
component, embedded derivative and equity
component of the convertible bonds in proportion
to the allocation of proceeds. Transaction costs
relating to the liability component are included in
the carrying amount of the liability component and
amortised over the period of the convertible bonds
using the effective interest method. The portion
relating to the embedded derivative is charged
directly to profit or loss. Transaction costs relating to
the equity component are charged directly to capital
reserve.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

RE MWK EEGE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(c) Financial instruments (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

Convertible bonds (Continued)

If the convertible bonds are redeemed by the
Company before maturity, the Company will
allocate the consideration paid and any transaction
costs for the repurchase or redemption to the
liability and equity components of the instrument at
the date of the transaction. The method used in
allocating the consideration paid and transaction
costs to the separate components is consistent with
that used in the original allocation to the separate
components of the proceeds received by the
Company when the convertible instrument was
issued. Once the consideration is allocated, any
resulting gain or loss relating to the liability
component is recognised in profit or loss and the
amount of consideration relating to the equity
component is recognised in equity.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental
costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares
or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of
tax, from the proceeds.

Where any group company purchases the
Company’s equity share capital, the amount of the
consideration paid, which includes directly
attributable costs, is net of any tax effects, and is
recognised as a deduction from equity.

Recognition/derecognition of financial
assets and liabilities

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
in the consolidated balance sheet when the Group
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. Financial assets are de-recognised when
the Group no longer has the rights to cash flows, the
risks and rewards of ownership or control of the
asset. Financial liabilities are de-recognised when the
obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled
or expires.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(d) Property, plant and equipment

(i)

(i)

(iii)

Recognition and measurement

Items of property, plant and equipment are
measured at cost less accumulated depreciation (see
(iv) below) and impairment losses (see note 3(1)).

Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable
to the acquisition of the asset. The cost of self-
constructed assets includes the cost of materials and
direct labour, and other costs directly attributable to
bringing the asset to a working condition for its
intended use.

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, they are
accounted for as separate items of property, plant
and equipment.

Gains and losses on disposal of an item of property,
plant and equipment are determined by comparing
the proceeds from disposal with the carrying
amount of property, plant and equipment and are
recognised net within “other income” in profit or
loss.

Reclassification to investment properties
When the use of a property changes from owner-
occupied to investment properties, the property is
remeasured to fair value and reclassified as
investment properties. Any gain arising on
remeasurement is recognised directly in equity. Any
loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Subsequent costs

The cost of replacing part of an item of property,
plant and equipment is recognised in the carrying
amount of the item if it is probable that the future
economic benefits embodied within the part will
flow to the Group and its cost can be measured
reliably. The costs of the day-to-day servicing of
property, plant and equipment are recognised in
profit or loss as incurred.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

RE MWK EEGE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 3. X E&@ s HE(#E)
(d) Property, plant and equipment (Continued) d VME - BERZHEGE)
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(iv) Depreciation
Depreciation is recognised in profit or losson a
straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of
each part of an item of property, plant and
equipment. Leased assets are depreciated over the
shorter of the lease term and their useful lives.

The estimated useful lives for the current and
comparative periods are as follows:

Buildings situated on

leasehold land 20 years
Motor vehicles 5 years
Fixtures, fittings and

equipment 3-5 years
Leasehold improvements Shorter of leasehold

period and 5 years

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual
values are reviewed at each reporting date.

(e) Land userights

Land use rights represent lease prepayments for acquiring
rights to use land in the PRC with periods ranging from 40
to 70 years. Land use rights granted with consideration are
recognised initially at acquisition cost. Land use rights are
classified and accounted for in accordance with the
intended use of the properties erected on the related land.

For properties that are held for own use, the
corresponding lease prepayments are separately stated as
land use rights in the balance sheet and stated at cost, less
accumulated amortisation and any impairment losses (see
note 3(l)). Amortisation is charged to profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the period of the land use rights.

For investment properties, the corresponding land use
rights are classified and accounted for as part of the
investment properties, which are carried at fair value as
described in note 3(f).

For properties that are developed for sale, the
corresponding land use rights are classified and accounted
for as part of the properties.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

RE MWK EEGE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 3. T EE:HE(E)
(f) Investment properties f) BREWME

Investment properties are properties held either to earn
rental income or for capital appreciation or for both, but
not for sales in the ordinary course of business, use in the
production or supply of goods or services or for
administrative purposes. These include land use rights held
for a currently undetermined future use and property that
is being constructed or developed for future use as
investment properties.

Investment properties are stated in the balance sheet at
fair value, unless they are still in the course of construction
or development at the balance sheet date and their fair
value cannot be reliably determined at that time. Any gain
or loss arising from a change in fair value or from the
retirement or disposal of an investment property is
recognised in profit or loss.

Rental income from investment properties is accounted for
as described in note 3(r).

When the use of an investment property changes such
that it is reclassified as property, plant and equipment, its
fair value at the date of reclassification becomes its cost
for subsequent accounting. When the Group begins to
redevelop an existing investment property for continued
future use as investment property, the property remains
an investment property measured based on the fair value
model, and is not reclassified as property, plantand
equipment during the redevelopment.

Properties under development

Properties under development comprise property
developed for own use or for sale. The development cost
of property comprises costs of land use rights for
properties under development for sale (see note 3(e)),
construction costs, borrowing costs (see note 3(s)) and
professional fees incurred during the development period.
Properties under development are carried at cost, less any
impairment loss (see note 3(1)).

Properties under development which are intended to be
held for sale and expected to be completed within 12
months from the balance sheet date are shown as current
assets.

BREMERFEENERERHE
THRAXRERNEESEANLME
REnyxEr MARELER XK
BREPLE ARLEEXRHEER
YIRS S AR IT R & e W) 3 A
TERREME-REVEER
FIEAXBEZBRMEREEN L
WwERERREEZKERMKAE
BRAEFREMENYE-

BREMEDNRLAABEREESR
BRAJNE RIFEEREFE DD
EEEIRAEF MELIAEE
REFAAIKASEMETE -2 A
BEMEHIEAFEAALERE
MEFMEENKREXBERIINE
m AR -

BREWENHE S KA R EE3M
Pt 75 K AN Bk o

E-EREVMENRERBEEY
BREYWE BERXEETEHN
DEECRAMEREHNSOEEAN
RABEKRER G EENK
Ko AKBERBEFERRA
BREMEXHBRFEREREY
X AlzmErasER A EBEAR
AHAESREME MITAEEE
HMERPEAIERYME BER
R

HRPYE
BERTHEEEERMFEA LD
ENNE-VENERALAERE
FEERRT RN LM EHEX
AR M EE3E) BEREK BEE
RARMEIDRERIVELE
MEXERS ERTURENX
7% 3% AE (A7 3Rk (B B 1R (R 5 3(3) A
BE o

REHERELAHREER R
T_EARTERMERS YET
ERBEE -

BEHUsEE—




Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

RE MWK EEGE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 3. T E & B F (&)
(g) Properties under development (Continued) (9) BRHPYWEE)
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Properties under development which are intended to be
held for own use, or for sale and expected to be completed
beyond 12 months from the balance sheet date are shown
as non-current assets.

Completed properties held for sale

Completed properties remaining unsold at the end of each
period are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value.

Cost of completed properties held for sale comprises
development costs attributable to the unsold properties.

Net realisable value is determined by reference to the sale
proceeds of properties sold in the ordinary course of
business, less applicable variable selling expenses, or by
management estimates based on prevailing marketing
conditions.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Group are stated
in the balance sheet at cost less accumulated amortisation
(where the estimated useful life is finite) and impairment
losses (see note 3(1)).

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite useful lives is
charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
estimated useful lives. The following intangible assets with
finite useful lives are amortised from the date they are
available for use and their estimated useful lives are as
follows:

Contractor qualification 37 years

Both the period and method of amortisation are reviewed
annually.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

RE MWK EEGE

Trade, other receivables and advance deposits

Trade, other receivables and advance deposits are initially
recognised at fair value and thereafter stated at amortised
cost less impairment losses for bad and doubtful debts (see
note 3(1)), except where the receivables are interest-free
advances and repayable on demand or the effect of
discounting would be immaterial. In such cases, the
receivables are stated at cost less impairment losses for
bad and doubtful debts (see note 3(1)).

Inventories

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. The cost of inventories is calculated using
the weighted average cost formula, and includes
expenditure incurred in acquiring the inventories,
production or conversion costs and other costs incurred in
bringing them to their existing location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of
completion and selling expenses.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in
which the related revenue is recognised. The amount of
any write-down of inventories to net realisable value and
all losses of inventories are recognised as an expense in the
period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any
reversal of any write-down of inventories is recognised as
a reduction in the amount of inventories recognised as an
expense in the period in which the reversal occurs.

Impairment

(i) Financial assets
A financial asset is assessed at each reporting date
to determine whether there is any objective evidence
that it is impaired. A financial asset is considered to
be impaired if objective evidence indicates that one
or more events have had a negative effect on the
estimated future cash flows of that asset.

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 3. T EE:HE(E)
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

RE MR WRR M EGE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
() Impairment (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Financial assets (Continued)

An impairment loss in respect of a financial asset
measured at amortised cost is calculated as the
difference between its carrying amount, and the
present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the original effective interest rate.

Individually significant financial assets are tested for
impairment on an individual basis. The remaining
financial assets are assessed collectively in groups
that share similar credit risk characteristics.

All impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss.
An impairment loss is reversed if the reversal can be
related objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment loss was recognised.

Non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of the Group’s non-financial
assets, other than investment properties, inventories
and deferred tax assets, are reviewed at each
reporting date to determine whether there is any
indication of impairment. If any such indication
exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is
estimated. For goodwill, its recoverable amount is
estimated at each reporting date.

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-
generating unit is the greater of its value in use and
its fair value less costs to sell. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset.
For the purpose of impairment testing, assets are
grouped together into the smallest group of assets
that generates cash inflows from continuing use
that are largely independent of the cash inflows of
other assets or groups of assets (the “cash-
generating unit”).
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NIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment (Continued)

(ii) Non-financial assets (Continued)
An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying
amount of an asset or its cash-generating unit
exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment losses
are recognised in profit or loss. Impairment losses
recognised in respect of cash-generating units are
allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill allocated to the units and then to reduce
the carrying amount of the other assets in the unit
(group of units) on a pro rata basis.

An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not
reversed. In respect of other assets, impairment
losses recognised in prior periods are assessed at
each reporting date for any indications that the
losses have decreased or no longer exist. An
impairment loss is reversed if there has been a
change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed
only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined, net of depreciation or
amortisation, if noimpairment loss had been
recognised.

Trade, other payables and advance receipts

Trade, other payables and advance receipts are initially
recognised at fair value and thereafter stated at amortised
cost unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial,
in which case they are stated at cost.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair
value less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to
initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated
at amortised cost with any difference between cost and
redemption value being recognised in profit or loss over
the period of the borrowings on an effective interest basis.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 3. T EE:HE(E)
(o) Cash and cash equivalents o) BERBEELEEY
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Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances and call
deposits. Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand
and form an integral part of the Group’s cash
management are included as a component of cash and
cash equivalents for the purpose of the consolidated
statements of cash flows.

Employee benefits

(i) Defined contribution retirement plans
A defined contribution plan is a post-employment
benefit plan under which an entity pays fixed
contributions into a separate entity and will have no
legal or constructive obligation to pay further
amounts. Obligations for contributions to defined
contribution pension plans are recognised as an
employee benefit expense in profit or loss when they
are due, except to the extent that they are included
in the cost of properties under development or
completed properties held for sale not yet
recognised as cost of sales.

(ii) Share-based payments

The grant date fair value of share options granted to
employees is recognised as an employee expense,
with a corresponding increase in capital reserve
within equity, over the period in which the
employees become unconditionally entitled to the
options. The amount recognised as an expense is
adjusted to reflect the actual number of share
options that vest.

The fair value is measured at grant date using the
binomial model, taking into account the terms and
conditions upon which the options were granted.
Where the employees have to meet vesting
conditions before becoming unconditionally entitled
to the share options, the total estimated fair value of
the share options is spread over the vesting period,
taking into account the probability that the options
will vest.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

e MR EEGE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(p) Employee benefits (Continued)

(i)

Share-based payments (Continued)

During the vesting period, the number of share
options that is expected to vest is reviewed. Any
adjustment to the cumulative fair value recognised
in prior years is charged or credited to profit or loss
for the year of the review, unless the original
employee expenses qualify for recognition as an
asset, in which case the adjustment is made to the
capital reserve. On vesting date, the amount
recognised as an expense is adjusted to reflect the
actual number of share options that vest (with a
corresponding adjustment to the capital reserve)
except where forfeiture is only due to not achieving
vesting conditions that relate to the market price of
the Company’s shares. The equity amount is
recognised in the capital reserve until either the
option is exercised (when it is transferred to the
share premium account) or the option expires (when
itisreleased directly to retained profits). Share-
based payment transactions in which the Company
grants share options to subsidiaries’ employees are
accounted for as an increase in value of investment
in subsidiaries in the Company’s balance sheet
which is eliminated on consolidation.

(q) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and
contingent liabilities

(i)

Financial guarantees issued

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the
issuer (i.e. the guarantor) to make specified
payments to reimburse the beneficiary of the
guarantee (the “holder”) for a loss the holder incurs
because a specified debtor fails to make payment
when due in accordance with the terms of a debt
instrument.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

e MR EEGE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(q) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and
contingent liabilities (Continued)

0]

(ii)

Financial guarantees issued (Continued)
Where the Group issues a financial guarantee, the
fair value of the guarantee (being the transaction
price, unless the fair value can otherwise be reliably
estimated) is initially recognised as deferred income
within trade and other payables. Where
consideration is received or receivable for the
issuance of the guarantee, the consideration is
recognised in accordance with the Group’s policies
applicable to that category of asset. Where no such
consideration is received or receivable, an immediate
expense is recognised in profit or loss on initial
recognition of any deferred income.

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised as
deferred income is amortised in profit or loss over
the term of the guarantee as income from financial
guarantees issued. In addition, provisions are
recognised in accordance with note 3(q)(ii) if and
when (i) it becomes probable that the holder of the
guarantee will call upon the Group under the
guarantee, and (i) the amount of that claim on the
Group is expected to exceed the amount currently
carried in trade and other payables in respect of that
guarantee, i.e. the amount initially recognised, less
accumulated amortisation.

Other provisions and contingent liabilities
A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past
event, the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is
probable that an outflow of economic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation. Provisions are
determined by discounting the expected future cash
flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the liability.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

e MR EEGE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 3. X EE B E(#E)
(q) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and () FIBEEMNTEER BERD

contingent liabilities (Continued)

(ii) Other provisions and contingent liabilities
(Continued)
Where itis not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the amount
cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is
disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will
only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events, are also
disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the
probability of an outflow of economic benefits is
remote.

Revenue

Provided it is probable that the economic benefits will flow
to the Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can
be measured reliably, revenue is recognised in profit or
loss as follows:

(i) Sales of properties

Revenue from sales of properties is recognised when
a Group entity has delivered the relevant properties
to the customers and collectability of the related
receivables is reasonably assured. Deposits and
instalments received on properties sold prior to the
date of revenue recognition are recorded as
advances from customers and presented as trade
and other payables under current liabilities.

(ii) Rental income from operating leases
Rental income is recognised on a straight-line basis
over the term of the lease. Lease incentives granted
are recognised in profit or loss as an integral part of
the aggregate net lease payment receivable.
Contingent rents are recorded as income in the
periods in which they are earned.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

e MR EEGE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(r) Revenue (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

Sales of goods and services rendered
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when
the significant risks and rewards of ownership have
been transferred to the buyer. No revenue is
recognised if there are significant uncertainties
regarding recovery of the consideration due,
associated costs or the possible return of goods, or
where there is continuing management involvement
with the goods.

Revenue from property management services
rendered is recognised when the services are
rendered.

Revenue from landscape projects is recognised in
proportion to the stage of completion of the projects
at the balance sheet date. The stage of completion is
assessed by reference to work performed. An
expected loss on a contract is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Tuition fee

Revenue from provision of education services is
recognised on a time-proportion basis using the
straight-line method. Tuition fee received prior to
the date of revenue recognition is included in non-
trade payables and presented under current
liabilities.

Government grants
Unconditional government grants are recognised as
other income on a cash receipt basis.

3.

FEEFBRERGE)
(r ==
(i) HEEMREHBRE

(iv)

(v)

HESmBERMBERERX
RgkBHEREE T KE
e i & 2 HI U B /Y 3ROIR
MM AKATREREFHES
ATHBAR A EHEA
EmEEER ATE®R
W g o

52 % 5B AR K 0 A R
12 4 RS S R

B 508 B #0504 B B IR
B 5 AR B B A b R -
SRR B B2 % T 1T A0 T fE
AT fh - B & A 5 A
B 65 7E 1B 2 R R AR -

28
REHE RS & R
Pl AE ROXTER - EHER
Was BB AT A B R 2 B G A
Hib AT 3RE - X5 R
BE-

B S # BY
ERERAMRKERES
EEEABEMBA-



Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(s)

(t)

(u)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are capitalised if they are directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or production
of a qualifying asset. Capitalisation of borrowing costs
commences when the activities to prepare the asset are in
progress and expenditures and borrowing costs are being
incurred. Capitalisation of borrowing costs may continue
until the assets are substantially ready for their intended
use. If the resulting carrying amount of the asset exceeds
its recoverable amount, an impairment loss is recognised.
The capitalisation rate is arrived at by reference to the
actual rate payable on borrowings for development
purposes or, with regard to that part of the development
cost financed out of general funds, to the average rate.

Other borrowing costs are expensed in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Expenses

(i) Service costs and property operating
expenses
Service costs for service contracts entered into and
property operating expenses are expensed as
incurred.

(ii) Operating lease payments
Payments made under operating leases are
recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis
over the term of the lease. Lease incentives received
are recognised in profit or loss as an integral part of
the total lease expense.

Net finance expense

Net finance expense comprises interest expenses on
borrowings (see note 3(s)), net of interest capitalised,
interest income on cash deposits in bank, dividend income,
changes in fair value of other investments in equity
securities held for trading, and foreign currency gains and
losses.

Interestincome is recognised as it accrues, using the
effective interest method.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 3. T EE:HE(E)
(u) Net finance expense (Continued) (U BERXFEEE)
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Dividend income from unlisted investments is recognised
when the shareholder’s right to receive payment is
established; dividend income from listed investments is
recognised when the share price of the investment goes
ex-dividend.

Foreign currency gains and losses are reported on a net
basis.

Income tax expense

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax.
Income tax is recognised in profit or loss except to the
extent that it relates to items recognised directly in equity,
in which case it is recognised in equity.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantially enacted at the reporting date, and any
adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet method,
providing for temporary differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting
purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes.
Deferred tax is not recognised for the following temporary
differences: the initial recognition of goodwill, the initial
recognition of assets or liabilities that affect neither
accounting nor taxable profit, and differences relating to
investments in subsidiaries to the extent that they will
probably not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred
tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be
applied to the temporary differences when they reverse,
based on the laws that have been enacted or substantially
enacted by the reporting date.

A deferred tax asset is recognised only to the extent that it
is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which temporary differences can be utilised.
Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date
and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that the related tax benefit will be realised.

Dividends
Dividends are recognised as a liability in the period in
which they are declared.
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NIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Earnings per share
The Group presents basic and diluted earnings per share
("EPS") data for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is calculated
by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary
shareholders of the Company by the weighted average
number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period.
Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the profit or loss
attributable to ordinary shareholders and the weighted
average number of ordinary shares outstanding for the
effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares, which
comprise convertible bonds and share options granted to
employees.

Related parties

For the purposes of these consolidated financial
statements, parties are considered to be related to the
Group if the Group has the ability, directly or indirectly, to
control the party or exercise significant influence over the
party in making financial and operating decisions, or vice
versa, or where the Group and the party are subject to
common control or common significant influence. Related
parties may be individuals (being members of key
management personnel, significant shareholders and/or
their close family members) or other entities and include
entities which are under the significant influence of related
parties of the Group where those parties are individuals,
and post-employment benefit plans which are for the
benefits of employees of the Group or of any entity that is
a related party of the Group.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the financial statements, are identified
from the financial information provided regularly to the
Group’s most senior executive management for the
purposes of allocating resources to and assessing the
performance of the Group's various lines of business.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and are
similar in respect of the nature of products and services,
the nature of production processes, the type or class of
customers, the methods used to distribute the products or
provide the services, and the nature of the regulatory
environment. Operating segments which are not
individually material may be aggregated if they share a
majority of these criteria.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 3. T EE:HE(E)
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Additional exemptions for first-time adopters
Amendments to IFRS 2, Share-based payment —
Group cash-settled share-based payment
transactions
Amendment to IAS 32, Financial instruments:

% (aa) New standards and interpretations not yet (aa) M AR FEBMBE
,9 adopted
%’_ Other than those adopted early as explained in note 4, a B T4 MEBENZZED IR B H
= number of new standards, amendments to standards and MEHN ZEHEE-_EEHE T+
2 interpretations are not yet effective for the year ended 31 ZTA=T—HBLEEEHRKRERZ
3 December 2009, and have not been applied in preparing HERCEABIILREERR
o these consolidated financial statements: HEGEAMBREES RER:
=
% Effective for accounting
= period beginning
on or after
(unless specified)
RUTRBERRR
ZERBRBH
EFHEEN
CEE-EA:ED)
Revised IFRS 1, First-time adoption of International  #& & =T B B Bf 7§ 3R & X BI 551 5% 1 July 2009
Financial Reporting Standards B X ER A B B 75 iR A E R —EENFtLtHA—H
Amendments to IFRS 5, Non-current assets held BB 75 3R 5 B 55 2 B 5] 1 July 2009
for sale and discontinued operations as a result BEUEBHENIE T EER —EENFtHA—H
of Improvements to International Financial HRFAE (s = BE )| E F B
Reporting Standards 2008 A E B 20 T fE M 2 EFT)
Amendments to IAS 39, Financial instruments: BRast ERE39% 2B 1July 2009
Recognition and measurement-Eligible hedged SHTA BABEFE- A LR “ETNFLA—H
)§ items #HHIEH
< IFRIC 17, Distributions of non-cash assets BHMEREREBZE @ F175 1 July 2009
= to owners FEEN D RIEE S BE —ZTAFE+LHA—H
3 Improvements to IFRSs (2009) BHMBEREENZEENF)Z Dealt with on a standard
< i3 by standard basis;
§ generally 1 January 2010
BEERERERE
ABR-ZZT—ZF
—A—HR
Amendments to IFRS 1, First-time adoption of BB mELERNE IR ZET 1 January 2010
International Financial Reporting Standards — BN EE A B B 5 2 A E B —E2-Z2F—-H—H

—BANRBEZHEI B E
BRI BmEENE2HR 2B
RO —KBHEENRYG
X ffX5
RetERFERRE 2B

1 January 2010
2-25-f—H

1 February 2010

Presentation — Classification of rights issues SR TA: ZH—#HRKR2HHE —E-E5-H—H
IFRIC 19, Extinguishing financial liabilities with RUBBRERBZEGF19% 1July 2010

equity instruments

A

WRATRAHTHAE “F-F5tHA—-H

Amendment to IFRS 1, First-time adoption of BEEREERE1H 2B 1July 2010
International Financial Reporting Standards — B X IR BB 7% A 2E A —F-T%tHA—AH
Limited exemption from comparative IFRS 7 —BXIRWNEFAIE R EZ
disclosures for first-time adopters B G B HEERET R EELZ

BER#HE
Revised IAS 24, Related party disclosures e 2 BB @ &R 5245 1 January 2011
B E —Z——%—-—H—H

Amendments to IFRIC 14, IAS 19 — The limit on a BUBHRERBEZEGFE 4R 1 January 2011

defined benefit asset, minimum funding BResr R F19% 2 B85 — —E——%—H—H

requirements and their interaction — Prepayments
of a minimum funding requirement

IFRS 9, Financial instruments Basis for conclusions
on IFRS 9 and amendments to other IFRSs and
guidance on IFRS 9

REBFEEZRE REZZ
BXREMEHF—REES
R BN

BRMBEREERFESR 24 T A
B 5 75 2 2 B R B9 i < B E
B H  BIER B 75 R 5 R 2 B RT &
B R B 7% 5 2 RS 95K 2 45 3

1 January 2013
—E-=%—-—H—H
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NIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(@aa) New standards and interpretations not yet

The
IFRS

adopted (Continued)

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
what the impact of these amendments, new standards
and new interpretations is expected to be in the period of
initial application. Up to the date of the issuance of these
financial statements, the Group believes that their
adoption is unlikely to have a significant impact on the
Group's results of operations and financial position.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

IASB has issued one new IFRS, a number of amendments to
and new interpretations that are first effective for the

current accounting period of the Group and the Company. Of
these, the following are relevant to the Group’s financial
statements:

0]

IFRS 8, Operating segments
IAS 1 (revised 2007), Presentation of financial statements
Improvements to IFRSs (2008)

Amendments to IAS 27, Consolidation and separate
financial statements-cost of an investment in a subsidiary,
Jjointly controlled entity or associate

IFRS 3 (revised 2008), Business Combinations

Amendments to IFRS 7, Financial instruments: Disclosures-
improving disclosures about financial instruments

Determination and presentation of operating
segments

IFRS 8 requires segment disclosure to be based on the way
that the Group's chief operating decision maker regards
and manages the Group, with the amounts reported for
each reportable segment being the measures reported to
the Group's chief operating decision maker for the
purposes of assessing segment performance and making
decisions about operating matters. This is consistent with
the presentation of segment information in prior years
which was based on a disaggregation of the Group's
financial statements into segments based on related
products and services. The adoption of IFRS 8, however,
has resulted in additional disclosures which explain the
basis of preparation of the information and reconciliation
of reportable segment revenue, profit, assets and
liabilities. Comparative segment information has been re-
presented in conformity with the transitional requirements
of IFRS 8. Since the adoption of IFRS 8 impacts aspects of
presentation and disclosure, there is no impact on earnings
per share.
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4. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 4., S BEEE(E)
(ii) Presentation of financial statements (i) BBHEEREHN AR
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As a result of the adoption of IAS 1 (revised 2007), details
of changes in equity during the period arising from
transactions with equity shareholders in their capacity as
such have been presented separately from all other
income and expenses in a revised consolidation statement
of changes in equity. All other items of income and
expenses are presented in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income. The new format for the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income and
consolidated statement of changes in equity has been
adopted and corresponding amounts have been restated
to conform to the new presentation. This change in
presentation has no effect on reported profit or loss, total
income and expenses or net assets for each period
presented.

Accounting for investments in associates and
investment property under development

The “Improvements to IFRSs (2008)"” comprise a number
of minor and non-urgent amendments to a range of IFRSs
which the IASB has issued as an omnibus batch of
amendments. Of these, the following two amendments
have resulted in changes to the Group’s accounting
policies:

U As a result of amendments to IAS 28, Investments in
associates, impairment losses recognised in respect
of the associates carried under the equity method
are no longer allocated to the goodwill inherent in
that carrying value. As a result, when there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount, the impairment
losses to goodwill will be reversed. In accordance
with the transitional provisions in the statement, this
new policy will be applied prospectively to any
impairment losses that arise in the current or future
periods and previous periods have not been restated.
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4. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 4. 3t BES FE(E)
(iii) Accounting for investments in associates and (i) KL QPABRERBRPARE

investment property under development

(Continued)

o As a result of amendments to IAS 40, Investment
property, investment properties under construction
will be carried at fair value at the earlier of when the
fair value first becomes reliably measurable and the
date of completion of the property. Any gain or loss
will be recognised in profit or loss, consistent with
the policy adopted for all other investment
properties carried at fair value. Previously such
property was carried at cost until the construction
was completed, at which time it was fair valued with
any gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss.
The Group has applied the amendment to IAS 40
prospectively from 1 January 2009 in accordance
with the relevant transitional provision. As a result of
the application of the amendment, properties under
development being engaged by certain associates of
the Group with a carrying amount of RMB 182
million have been reclassified to investment
properties as of 1 January 2009. As these properties
under development, whose fair value cannot be
determined reliably, have been measured at cost less
impairment, the adoption of the amendment to IAS
40 has no effect on reported profit or loss or net
assets for the year presented.

(iv) Accounting for dividends from subsidiaries,

associates and jointly controlled entities

The amendments to IAS 27 have removed the requirement
that dividends out of pre-acquisition profits should be
recognised as a reduction in the carrying amount of the
investment in the investee, rather than as income. As a
result, as from 1 January 2009 all dividends receivable
from subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled entities,
whether out of pre- or post-acquisition profits, will be
recognised in the Company’s profit or loss and the carrying
amount of the investment in the investee will not be
reduced unless that carrying amount is assessed to be
impaired as a result of the investee declaring the dividend.
In such cases, in addition to recognising dividend income
in profit or loss, the Company would recognise an
impairment loss. In accordance with the transitional
provisions in the amendment, this new policy will be
applied prospectively to any dividends receivable in the
current or future periods and previous periods have not
been restated.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

RE MR WRR M EGE

4. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(v)

(vi)

Accounting for acquisitions of minority
interests

The Group has adopted early IFRS 3, Business
Combinations (2008) and IAS 27, Consolidated and
Separate Financial Statements (2008) for acquisitions of
minority interests occurring in the financial year starting 1
January 2009. The Group has applied IAS 27 (2008) for
the acquisition of minority interests as explained in note 7.

In accordance with the amendments to IAS 27,
acquisitions of minority interests are accounted for as
transactions with equity holders in their capacity as equity
holders and therefore no goodwill is recognised as a result
of such transactions. Previously, goodwill was recognised
arising on the acquisition of a minority interestin a
subsidiary; and that represented the excess of the cost of
the additional investment over the carrying amount of the
interest in the net assets acquired at the date of exchange.

The early adoption of IFRS 3 (2008) and IAS 27 (2008) was
applied prospectively and had no material impact on
earnings per share.

Disclosure of financial instruments

As a result of the adoption of the amendment to IFRS 7,
the financial statements include expanded disclosure in
note 41 about the fair value measurement of the Group’s
financial instruments, categorising these fair value
measurementsinto a three-level fair value hierarchy
according to the extent to which they are based on
observable market data. The Group has taken advantage
of the transitional provisions set out in the amendments to
IFRS 7, under which comparative information for the
newly required disclosures about the fair value
measurements of financial instruments has not been
provided.

5. DETERMINATION OF FAIR VALUES

A number of the Group’s accounting policies and disclosures
require the determination of fair value, for both financial and
non-financial assets and liabilities. Fair values have been
determined for measurement and/or disclosure purposes based
on the following methods. Where applicable, further
information about the assumptions made in determining fair
values is disclosed in the notes specific to that asset or liability.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
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5. DETERMINATION OF FAIR VALUES (Continued) 5. BEEAAEBEAE)
(i) Properties under development (i) ZEHPYE
The fair values of properties under development REBAFAMBERINZTESY
recognised as a result of a business combination are based E¥ENALEBEEETEET WHE
on market values. The market value of a property is the W ESEEETES HHE
estimated amount for which a property could be BEREEALEBEEETE AT
exchanged on the date of valuation between a willing R EHBE BEERAXEBE
buyer and a willing seller in arms’ length transaction after HERLTREERHEE —EY
proper marketing wherein the parties had each acted EMNAEFRBE -HE RE - EE
knowledgeably, prudently and without compulsion. The REFEEBEBENMEREBEUE
market value of items of plant, equipment, fixtures and BTG ERERE-
fittings is based on the quoted market prices for similar
items.
(ii) Investment properties (i) ®EYWXE
An external, independent valuation company, having — R AN a7 R 2 BT 1T (EZ Bl =
appropriate recognised professional qualifications and MITEABEEEERAT ZEXEER
recent experience in the location and category of property BEYBEEWEZNEREES
being valued, values the Group’s investment property TH KB ) AEFBNKREY X
portfolio every six months. The fair values are based on Hes"BAFE-—R-2AE
market values, being the estimated amount for which a ErmEETEETEE HHE - T
property could be exchanged on the date of the valuation EREANMEBEBREFEFERT fﬂ
between a willing buyer and a willing seller in arms’ length Em AAB BEERTXEE =
transaction after proper marketing wherein the parties HNERTRGHEBEREES —BY ﬁ
had each acted knowledgeably, prudently and without EWHETRBE)ET - e
compulsion.
In the absence of current prices in an active market, the FRZERMTEBEEFENR BT
valuations are prepared by considering the aggregate of e rEEITEHTBEEEY
the estimated cash flows expected to be received from ZEhINEWMEHAREESRMNBERER
renting out the property. A yield that reflects the specific EH R EREESREEEREMN
risks inherent in the net cash flows then is applied to the SHETER RIS R AR EF
net annual cash flows to arrive at the property valuation. ERASREPUEBEMENEHAE
R
Valuations reflect, where appropriate: the type of tenants HEERB(MER): EEEABY
actually in occupation or responsible for meeting lease g ESTNEEAREER EF
commitments or likely to be in occupation after letting A EREEEEMERERYFE
vacant accommodation, and the market’s general WMEPHER mHEHEFEE (S
perception of their creditworthiness; the allocation of EMEREELE: ASEEAKMHEA
maintenance and insurance responsibilities between the TEBBREEREEN SR &
Group and the lessee; and the remaining economic life of MENFGBREESm - -SEHME
the property. When rent renewals or lease renewals are SR EHBRHABHS HIRMKE
pending with anticipated reversionary increases, it is ROIE N R BE R E R AR E AT
assumed that all notices and where appropriate counter- BRALRABARM(MER)E A
notices have been served validly and within the WA EE R AR R R

appropriate time.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

R B R AR M R (R

5.

DETERMINATION OF FAIR VALUES (Continued)

(iii) Share-based payment transactions
The fair value of employee stock options is measured using
a binomial lattice model. Measurement inputs include
share price on measurement date, exercise price of the
instrument, expected volatility (based on weighted
average historic volatility adjusted for changes expected
due to publicly available information), weighted average
expected life of the instruments (based on historical
experience and general option holder behaviour),
expected dividends, and the risk-free interest rate (based
on government bonds). Service and non-market
performance conditions attached to the transactions are
not taken into account in determining fair value.

SEGMENT REPORTING

The Group has four reportable segments, as described below,
which are the Group’s strategic business units. The strategic
business units offer different products and services, and are
managed separately because they require different technology
and marketing strategies. For each of the strategic business
units, the chief operating decision maker reviews internal
management reports on at least a monthly basis. The following
summary describes the operations in each of the Group’s
reportable segments.

o Sales of property: this segment develops and sells
residential properties, including villas, townhouses and
apartments, etc. Currently the Group’s activities in this
regard are carried out in Shanghai, Kunming, Changshu,
Wusxi, Suzhou and Hainan.

o Lease of property: this segment leases commercial and
residential properties to generate rental income and gain
from the appreciation in the properties’ values in the long
term. Currently the Group’s investment property portfolio
is located in Shanghai, Hainan, Kunming, Suzhou and
Wuxi.

o Property management and other related services: this
segment provides property management services, project
management services, greenery construction services and
other related services to external customers and group
companies. Currently the Group’s activities in this regard
are carried out in Shanghai, Hainan, Kunming and Suzhou.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
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SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

° Education: this segment provides education and
accommodation service to college students. Currently the
Group's activities in this regard are carried out in Shanghai.

For the purposes of assessing segment performance and
allocating resources between segments, the Group’s senior
executive management monitors the results, assets and liabilities
attributable to each reportable segment on the following bases:

Segment assets include all current and non-current assets with
the exception of interests in associates, financial derivatives and
other corporate assets. Segment liabilities include all current and
non-current liabilities except for the liability component of
convertible bonds managed at corporate level.

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable segments
with reference to the revenue generated and the expenses
incurred by those segments or which otherwise arise from the
depreciation or amortisation of assets attributable to those
segments. Segment revenue and expenses do not include share
of profits/(losses) of associates and those profit or loss related to
convertible bonds, share-based payments and any other
transactions at the corporate level.

7 # R & ()

RE ADHBAEDERHEH
ARIEBRE - B AEEE L
BIEERBE-

RAEIBRAREDHEERLE -
AEBEZRETREEABRUTE
EEREAHRBELIBLIEE BER
BE:

DPHEERRMBERIRIRDEE
(BBE AR TEERITARH
MmMEXEEN DHEEREMER
HLERBDABERBEEREE B
ZAE;E A EE D)

WHEFRAXTD2RAUBERDFELEZ
WaEkAXIALBEEZEENE
IEHEMELEE "EEZEDH-
DEHKRELAXAENEFEEGEEQ
AEMN (BRREEITERES .
BOXNREMNEMEEEE 2R S
B g A 2k &5 18 o
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

e B A R R Y R ()

6. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 6. WBHEE)
For the year ended 31 December 2009 BE-ZENF+-A=Z+—-HLFE

Property

management
Sales of Lease of &related

Expressed in RMB’000 property property services Education
NEEER

UARET T5IE MERE MxBE S BB

HNERE F las

Revenue from external

customers 2,926,572 27,2711 36,850 3,065,441
Inter-segment revenue 2 0 W — 260 77,063 71,323
Reportable segment revenue 7] B 2 £ 2,926,572 27,531 113,913 3,142,764
Reportable segment profit W RHHEHEFI 181,061 397,050 80,334 677,161
Interest income MEBKA 15,873 202 781 58 16,914
Interest expense MEEBRH (68,699) (2,750) (89) (15,233) (86,771)
Revaluation gains on REMEEL NS

investment properties 517,254 517,254
Reportable segmentassets W H{RAHEE 15,071,835 1,640,500 172,872 269,904 17,155,111
Additions to non-current FREMDH

segment assets during ERBEE

the year
Reportable segment IR VR =1

liabilities 12,353,658 548,781 179,441 13,091,713
Depreciation and amortisation 37 & % # 12,111 14,528 27,333



Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

e B A R R Y R ()

6. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

6. 7 ET/,EE)

For the year ended 31 December 2008 BE—_ZENF+=-A=+—BLEE %ﬁ
Img
Property i
I
management =
Sales of Lease of & related ot
Expressed in RMB'000 property property services Education ’;g
MEEBR =
MAREFTIIE M WMERE TR ¥B
Revenue from external PR FlE
customers 1,269,102 26,920 38,499 60,472 1,394,993
Inter-segment revenue 7 & i W 22 — 1,440 40,419 — 41,859
Reportable segment revenue TR EUkzs 1,269,102 28,360 78,918 60,472 1,436,852
Reportable segment profit A HI$R S 57 121,691 25,699 39,071 4,590 191,051
Interest income L8 W A 13,063 142 893 101 14,199
Interest expense FIEEBA (92,349) (3,591) 42) (6,074) (102,056)
Revaluation gains on REDEER NS
investment properties — 25,000 — — 25,000
Reportable segmentassets ~ WEH{RAHEE 7,594,590 723,000 303,626 255,871 8,877,087
Additions to non-current FERENHH
segment assets during ERBEE
the year 28,456 — 739 19,428 48,623
Reportable segment ARKHBEE
liabilities 4,173,156 232,039 230,744 208,127 4,844,066
Depreciation and amortisation 37 & % # 11,084 — 877 15,650 27,611

Reconciliation of reportable segment revenues,

profit, assets and liabilities

Revenue
Reportable segment revenue

Elimination of inter-segment revenue

THRHEIBRE - BN - EERE
iR

2009
—EFNF

2008
“ETENF
RMB’000
ARET 5T

RMB’000
ARBT T

Consolidated revenue

Al B3R 5 30 M ER 3,142,764 1,436,852
2 50 fE IR = 8 (77,323) (41,859)
A W 3,065,441 1,394,993
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6. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 6. DEWEE)

2009 2008
—B2BhE —TT)E

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARETT

Profit Y Fl
Reportable segment profit A] B3R o 26 0% A 677,161 191,051

w
bl
(9}
[
)
=]
o
=
T
o
=
5
Q
J
o
(=
3
=
]
o

Elimination of inter-segment profits %) E‘ fE v A 4 85 (7,249) (6,654)
Fair value change on financial derivatives TA @B T EMN A A BE

o) 50,263 (42,495)
Repurchase of convertible bonds FEE A ] E S 49,394 58,252
Share-based payments i 7 = fF (6,467) 568
Share of profits/(losses) of associates FEME B & R AlsE A (B E) 66,645 (12,717)

Consolidated profit after income tax MGATEHRESEAR A 829,747 188,005

2009 2008
—22hE —ET)E
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARET T

Assets
Reportable segment assets ] Ao ELE E 17,155,111 8,877,087

6007 Hoday [enuuy

Elimination of inter-segment receivables 43 F i JiE Ut 7 18 & 44 (1,132,332) (505,967)
Elimination of inter-segment investments % & [ #% & % 4 (96,152) (73,600)
Other unallocated assets HEfRDBEE 608 —
Financial derivatives MESRMITA 51,491 3,382
Interests in associates Bt & N Al ERS 989,822 923,177
Consolidated total assets REBEBSE 16,968,548 9,224,079

2009 2008
—BEAE —2EN\F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARMT T ARMT

Liabilities

Reportable segment liabilities ARmSEERE 13,091,713 4,844,066
Elimination of inter-segment payables 53 50 [ FE 15 3R 7B H 4H (1,132,332) (505,967)
Other unallocated liabilities EMixkoBRERE — 8,493
Convertible bonds ] #E % (E & 902,642 1,029,227

Consolidated total liabilities LeEBEERE 12,862,023 5,375,819

152
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e B A R R Y R ()

7. ACQUISITION OF MINORITY INTERESTS
Minority interests acquired in 2009

0]

Suzhou Runjian Zhi Ye Company Limited
(“Suzhou Runjian”)

On 29 September 2009, SPG Investment XIV (BVI) Limited
("SPG XIV"), which is wholly-owned by the Company,
entered into a share purchase agreement with HCP
Suzhou Newton Co., Ltd. to acquire an additional 40%
equity interest in SPG Investment XlIl (BVI) Limited (“SPG
Xlll"), which indirectly owns 100% of the equity interest in
Suzhou Runjian. Total consideration of USD52,483,500
(equivalent to RMB358,308,000) has been settled in cash
during the year. The Group recognised a decrease in
minority interest of RMB215 million and a decrease in
retained earnings of RMB 143 million. After the acquisition,
SPG Xill becomes a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group.
Suzhou Runjian is engaged in the development of a multi-
purpose property complex in Suzhou.

The following summarises the effect of changes in the

Group's ownership interest in Suzhou Runjian:

7. WBLHERRER
R-ZZENFRBENLIBRRES

0}

BEMNBEEXRRLA(EH
MEED
RZZEZENFRLAZF LB
SPG Investment XIV (BVI) Limited ([ SPG
XVD)(EBRARA2EHA)H
HCP Suzhou Newton Co., Ltd. 5T 32 %
5 42 3 5 & 0 UK BB SPG Investment
XIII (BVI) Limited ([SPG XIII 1) %8 4 40%
R ZARMERESB NS
R 2 F0 AR - 48 X 852,483,500
%= (£ » A R % 358,308,000
TMERAEENREGBEE N&
BRI BERREDZADARE
215,000,0007T & & B & A & 4 A
R #143,000,0007C ° 7 Y BE 1%
SPGXIK B AEBEHEEFAF -
HEMNBEZBMARUARBHEMNNZ
ReEtwERZIEA -

BT 7 7K 5 B B N 22 40 B A
REDHYENHE:

2009
—EBEAF
RMB’'000
ARBT T
Group's ownership interest at the beginning KEBRFYVNOETE KE
of the year
Effect of increase in Group’s ownership interest 7K & B f /5 #E 12 N &) 52 2
Share of comprehensive income EiEE2mHl A
Group's ownership interest at the end of the year 7K £2 B JA F 4R &) AT 5 #&

BEHUsEE—
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7. ACQUISITION OF MINORITY INTERESTS 7. WBLEBRRERE)
(Continued)
Minority interests acquired in 2009 (Continued) R-ZZBEZEANFUENLPERRESR
(#&)
(i) Wuxi Guosheng Property Development Co., (i) EHEREEHXER LT
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Ltd. (“Wuxi Guosheng”) and Wuxi Shenglian
Property Development Co., Ltd. (“Wuxi
Shenglian”)

On 21 April 2009, the Group entered into a share
purchase agreement with Wuxi Guolian Development Co.,
Ltd. (“Wuxi Guolian”) to acquire additional 10% and 6%
equity interests in Wuxi Guosheng and Wuxi Shenglian
respectively. Total consideration of RMB48,423,000 has
been settled in cash during the year. The Group thus
recognised a decrease in minority interest of RMB48
million. After the acquisition, Wuxi Guosheng and Wuxi
Shenglian become wholly-owned subsidiaries of the
Group. Wuxi Guosheng and Wuxi Shenglian are engaged
in the development of a project comprising residential and
commercial components in Wuxi.

The following summarises the effect of changes in the
Group's ownership interest in Wuxi Guosheng and Wuxi
Shenglian:

(ESEBRIRESEBREE
MBERAB((EBERE

RZZBEZTALFWMA=Z+—H K
ESEHAEHEBEREGR A A
((EHREBDITLERBZE o
Bl 4y B A 5 B BR R AR 65 BX b RE SN
10% M6%H) Ik #E - BRE AR
48,423,000t E R FE W AR © )8
B-AEBREMBERLDEHEKRE#
= R D A R #48,000,0007T ° 7 U
B EOBRBRRESRBENA
AEBHNEZEFRAA &G E K

FEEMOMEBERER -

AT AR EE RSB E & EDH
RO ARESNTENNE:

2009
—2BhE

RMB’000
AR®ETR

AEBMERENNEE

Group's ownership interest at the beginning NEBRFYIWE #
of the year

Effect of increase in Group’s ownership interest

Capital injection during the year FAFE

Share of comprehensive income FEAE 2 E U A

Group's ownership interest at the end of the year 7K £2 B JA F 1R &) BT 5 #&
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8. REVENUE 8. W&
The amount of each significant category of revenue recognised

during the year ended 31 December 2009 is as follows:

2009
—BBhE

RMB’000

AR¥TR

RBE-FEAE+-A=+-AL
FERRNERIERECEMT

2008

—TENF

RMB’000

ARBTT

Sales of properties SR 2,926,572 1,269,102
Rental income e WA 27,271 26,920
Property management income LESBER N 26,113 23,528
Sales of goods and rendering of services ~ $5 & & & K& 12 = IR 5 10,737 14,971
Tuition fee -+ 74,748 60,472
Total Gl 3,065,441 1,394,993

9. OTHERINCOME

Hfl A

2009
—sEnEF
RMB’000
ARSF

2008
—TTN\F

RMB'000
ARETT

Government grants X T %8 Bh

Forfeited deposits from tenants RKEEPHAKEN -

Others H i 867

Total & &t 3,289
10. OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES 10. Hih K& X

2009
—BENE
RMB’000
ARBT

2008
—EENF

RMB'000
ARETT

Donations B 200 4,560
Penalty costs E KPR 3,764 1,896
Others H b 1,030 673
Total & & 4,994 7,129

=t

g
=
B
==
)\13
af
o
<
5
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

e B A R R Y R ()

11. PERSONNEL EXPENSES

Wages and salaries

Contributions to defined contribution
plans

Staff welfare, bonuses and other
allowances

Equity-settled share-based payment
expenses (note 37)

1M1 EIMX

2009
—sENE

2008
ZTTN\F

RMB'000
ARETT

RMB’000
ARBT T

Total

TERS = 89,593 94,564
M 7 E 4 a8 R
10,028 9,417

EERAM T R EHAM

2 Bh 7,715 12,111
BRiEEEORD I HAX

(Bt 5£37) 6,467 (568)
& & 113,803 115,524

12. EXPENSES BY NATURE

The following expenses are included in cost of sales, selling and

marketing costs and administrative expenses:

Cost of properties sold

Auditors’ remuneration

— audit services

— non-audit services
Depreciation
Amortisation of land use rights
Operating lease charges
Reversal for bad and doubtful debts

12. RHEEETHNER
SRAEERA HE RTIGHERENKAN
MITHRAXWEIMT:

2009
S
RMB’000
AREF T

2008
—EENF

RMB'000
ARETT

B E Y EKAK 2,054,775 771,185
% B AT B &

—EZR% 2,750 2,450

—EEEZRE — 439
e 25,516 25,898
T b R RE 8 1,772 1,713
ERE T 8,753 15,571
REBRBHERD — (3,046)




Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

e B A R R Y R ()

13. FINANCE INCOME AND EXPENSES

Interest income on bank deposits

13. MEW AR KK

2009
—sENE

RMB’000
AR®T

RITERF B WA 16,914

Finance income

Interest expenses on bank loans
Less: interest capitalised (note 24)

16,914

RITERMNEER
B AL B F) B (Y 5E24)

(238,559)
194,943

Net interest expenses

MNEBRFHE (43,616)

Interest expenses on financial liabilities ROBERAGTENSR

measured at amortised cost (note 35) BEMMEEACPTEIS) (39.369)
Interest expenses on long-term payable HEBMEK A EN R

measured at amortised cost BRI RENNEER (3,560)
Net change in fair value of other EAnEEIERER

investments at fair value through EENEMKEE AR

profit or loss BEZHIH 477
Net foreign exchange loss fEHEEFAE (703)
Finance expenses B & KA (86,771)
Fair value changes on financial derivatives #7T4 & & T E A 2 #

(note 35) BEEZ 8 (W 5E35) 50,263
Net finance expenses & R AN F R (19,594)

14. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

(i) Income taxin the consolidated statement of (i)
comprehensive income represents:

Current tax

Provision for PRC enterprise income tax 1 B 1 ¥ Fr 18 Fi K F &2

for the year

Provision for PRC land appreciation tax

for the year

14. MBHBAX
BMXE:

2009
-

RMB’000
ARET

B 5 Bt 1|/

B
PR IBERANFE

228,047

33,820

261,867

2008
—EENF
RMB’'000
ARETIT

(121,288)
87,041

(34,247)

(46,319)

(1,289)

(828)
(19,373)

(102,056)

BhE Y EET

(130,352)

REEZEANBRANAEH

2008
—ZEN\fF
RMB'000
AREFTT
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14. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 14. FIBHREX(E)
§ (i) Income taxin the consolidated statement of ) Z#E2ENBRAVFAEHR
c comprehensive income represents: (Continued) X (&)
=]
o
?oc_‘ 2009 2008
5 —2BAE —TTNEF
g RMB’000 RMB’000
g: AR®T T AR¥ETT
g Deferred tax IE i B 1H

Origination and reversal of temporary #E R EZE W E £ &

differences (note 31(ii))
Benefit of tax losses recognised

[ (B 3% 31i)
ERARMBEETE

(11,711)

(note 31(ii)) (BT 5E314i)) (2,710)
Recognition of withholding tax H®RBEME

(note 31(iii)) (B =E 314ii)) 4,400
Revaluation of investment properties & & ¥ % & {4

(note 31(iii)) (B 5% 31iii)) 7,880
Fair value adjustments (note 31(iii)) AR EEAER

(Bt 3 31(ii)) 538

Deferred PRC land appreciation tax i GE B A b AR (E R 89,450

87,847

Total income tax expense Frisfi iz 8% 172,025

>
>
=)
=
Q
=
(15}
°
o]
=
N
o
o
©
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Enterprise income tax

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made as
the Group did not earn any income subject to Hong Kong
Profits Tax during the year ended 31 December 2009.

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman
Islands and the British Virgin Islands, the Group is not
subject to any income tax in the Cayman Islands and the
British Virgin Islands.

Pursuant to the Corporate Income Tax Law (“New Tax
Law") of the PRC passed by the Fifth Plenary Session of the
Tenth National People’s Congress on 16 March 2007 and
effective from 1 January 2008, subsidiaries of the Group in
the PRC are subject to PRC income tax at 25% (2008:
25%), except for Kunming SPG Land Property
Development Co., Ltd. (“Kunming SPG Land").

Pursuant to the preferential tax policies issued by the PRC
governmentin 2008 to encourage investmentin the
Western region of the PRC, Kunming SPG Land is subject
to a concessionary income tax rate of 15%.

EEMEB
HRAKRBRBE_ZFTZEALF+
“TA=t+-HLEFEIERREA
BRMBEBEMNGSHOWKA  BILE
EHEEMNESHEE -

RERERELEBRELXESW
DR RN LR §
EHELRRBRELEEMGHR -

BRER_ZTEZELF=ZA+HE
TEEZ2BEBARRRASEEALARE
ZRBYR-_ZEETNE— A —
HfAE SRR EARLMNED
¥ RETHBRE]D A& H
FET AR EE25%8 B R H
MPRCEMBR(ZET )N\ F:
25%) HEBRBREEMERAR
ARI((EABES BRI -

REFERAR T N\FHRK
BRTEARRERMNEER
WERER EARGTEBIZIS%E
FAMEREBRAER-
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14.

CEE B

1 (%8)

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

()

Income tax in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income represents: (Continued)
Withholding tax

Pursuant to the New Tax Law, a 10% withholding tax was
levied on dividends declared to foreign enterprise investors
from the PRC effective from 1 January 2008. A lower
withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty
arrangement between the PRC and the jurisdiction of the
foreign enterprise investors. On 22 February 2008, Caishui
(2008) No. 1 was promulgated by the PRC tax authorities
to specify that dividends declared and remitted out of the
PRC from the retained earnings as at 31 December 2007
determined based on the relevant PRC tax laws and
regulations are exempted from the withholding tax. As at
31 December 2009, withholding tax of RMB 14,000,000
(2008: RMB4,400,000) have been recognised in respect of
the tax that would be payable on the distribution of the
retained profits of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries. Deferred
tax liabilities of RMB15,865,000 (2008: RMB6,082,000)
have not been recognised, as the Company controls the
dividend policy of these subsidiaries and it has been
determined that it is probable that certain of the profits
earned by the Group'’s PRC subsidiaries for the year ended
31 December 2009 will not be distributed in the
foreseeable future.

14. FiEHRAX(E)

0]

REE2HERBERAN RSB

X tE: (&)
"R
REFHREZ RANELERE

HEERRBEPEARKREHWI0%
BEHM#R - BZEZENF—HA—H
FAER - MPEHMEINECERE
EMBRIAER 2HAEBMBE
BB AR BRETE MR R -
R—ZZEENF_A=_+=H &
Bl T 5 #E B 28 B % (2008)1 5% -
REEBE-_TETLHF+ZA=+—
H®RE M IR &E S $ EE
SN2 BR BB BE AR B R B A R OR 12
ERNETUERR2EBEN R
ZEZENFT+ZA=T—H &K
EEERAEETERFRAMNR
B M 5k F I8 FE T8RRI R
2 A B #14,000,0007T K F& 0 % (—
T )\F: AR #4400,0007T) °
HRARQRAEHZETFRAANR
ERE MEBEBEETAATER
ARZRARRAEEHFBEF R A
RBE-_ZTEZEANF+ZA=1+—
HEFERDOE TRAETH
K- EBERECHBARZA
R "15,865,0007T( = T & )\ F :
A R #6,082,0007T) °

BEHUEsE—
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14. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 14. RSB X(E)
(i) Income taxin the consolidated statement of i) Z#E2EANBRAWASEH
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comprehensive income represents: (Continued)
Land appreciation tax

PRC land appreciation tax is levied on properties developed
for sale by the Group at progressive rates ranging from
30% to 60% on the appreciation of land value, which
under the applicable regulations is calculated based on the
proceeds of sales of properties less deductible
expenditures including lease charges of land use rights,
borrowing costs and all property development
expenditures. Land appreciation tax of RMB214,032,000
has been included in profit or loss for the year ended 31
December 2009 (2008: RMB102,338,000).

The subsidiaries of the Group engaging in property
development businessin the PRC are subject to land
appreciation taxes, which have been included in the
income tax. However, the implementation of these taxes
varies amongst various provinces and the Group has not
finalised its land appreciation tax returns with various tax
authorities. Accordingly, significant judgement is required
in determining the amount of land appreciation and its
related taxes. The ultimate tax determination is uncertain
during the ordinary course of business. The Group
recognises these liabilities based on management’s best
estimates. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is
different from the amounts initially recorded, such
differences will impact the profit or loss and provisions of
land appreciation taxes in the period in which such
determination is made.

BXE: (&)

T i B E B
AEEHEMBENMERZ T
(B B 1 18 LA30% £60% H) R i
REHMPE LB ER RIE
ARG T EH HIRLE
MEMRMGSFREBERIDRAZ(E
FErmERAREEEIL BEX
AERMEMEBRERXGFE &
EZZEANFT+ZA=+—H81
FREFAERPH LI HIBENR R
AR #214,032,000L(Z 2T N\ F -
A R 102,338,000 7T) °

AEEETFEREVERERRD
WFRAH A ML IR ER
HEIAMGHR -AM &£ TR
B RERENERSAEER
BAKE KR EAR KB #ER
RETHIHBERERE - A
- EEBEELHEESENRAEME
MR ERBELEXHE XA
FEHBETRRKETNREAR
THEEN - AEBEZREEEN
REGAEIAZFEABE - HZFE
SENRRNBERILENS
BAR AZERKEZERFD
ERAAEHEANEZ R L HIEE
B o
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14. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 14. RBHRBAXZE)
(i) Reconciliation between tax expense and (ii)
accounting profit at applicable tax rate:

FERAXMNEFdERNRE
ARRTHENHEK:

2009 2008
—EBNF —EENEFE
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T AREBTTT
Profit before income tax & P45 B AT & A 360,030
Less: PRC land appreciation tax B R B A b 1S (E R (102,338)
257,692
Tax calculated at the rates applicable  #ZAEBE T & A A
to respective companies that HABREKITTERN
comprise the Group 1| 64,937
Tax effect of share of results of JE(REE S AR EED
associates HEge (52)
Non-deductible expenses, net of TR R X
non-taxable income (BB EHERBBA) (591)
Unused tax losses not recognised FAERO A A RIE
& 18 4,183
Under-provision in prior years BEFERET R (3,190)
65,287
PRC land appreciation tax (note 31(1))  #F Bl + 3th 1% (& &
(Bt 3E31()) 102,338
Withholding tax T8 17 4,400
Total &=t 172,025

Profit before income tax of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2009 was mainly generated by Shanghai
Cambridge, Shanghai Oriental and Shanghai Zhujia, which
are subject to PRC income tax at 25%.

In accordance with the accounting policy set out in note
3(v), the Group has not recognised deferred tax assets in
respect of cumulative tax losses of certain subsidiaries for
the year ended 31 December 2009 as it is not probable
that future taxable profits against which the losses can be
utilised will be available in the relevant tax jurisdiction and
entity.

FEERBE_ZZTAF+ A
S+t BLEEFEZKRMABHA
BEMERREBLEREBFE L
BRIEBRLEBRERRB &
5% 2 MR BT REMEHR-

RIRHTEE3V P A & 5T BUR - |
REBDFARARATAAIEER BT
BREERKBERBIGRRER
T A LA B 35 R B A RO B3R K
AEBE#HZE —_TZTNAF+ A
St RALFEARARREREES
BRAEEVHEEE-

BEHUsEE—
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15. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 15. EEM £

Basic
salaries, Contributions
allowances to retirement
and other benefit Share-based

benefits schemes Bonus payment

BEXE®

w
bl
(9}
[
)
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o
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T
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EER m3R KR
we  Hpfls TR AL REIM CEHS
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000
AR®TT AR%TR AR%TT AR¥TR AR%TR AR%TR

(note 36)

(Kt 2£36)

For the year ended BE-Z20E
31 December 2009 +ZA=t+-H
LFEE
Executive Directors HTES
> Mr. Wang Weixian IRERAE
Qg_, Mr. Tse Sai Tung, Stones i REE
(‘3 Ms. Wang Xuling ThRERTL
3
§ Non-Executive Directors FHTEE
Mr. Cheong Ying Chew, REHLE
Henry
Mr. Fong Wo, Felix, JP FMEERTST
Mr. Jiang Simon X. BREAE
Mr. Kwan Kai Cheong BREXE

Mr. Lai Kin, Jerome (note i) B (M E)

Total B
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15. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (Continued) 15. EEB £ (&)

5
Basic salaries,  Contributions Im
allowances  to retirement g
and other benefit Share-based i:g
benefits schemes payment at
EAFS - S
BRE FRIER =
ik Hith Mz ST L RO CF
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000
AREBTT ARBTE ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETR
(note 36)
(P 5£36)
For the year ended BE-ZEN\%F
31 December 2008 +=ZA=+-H
LEE
Executive Directors BTES
Mr. Wang Weixian TREBELLE — 5,630 — — — 5,630
Mr. Tse Sai Tung, Stones Hit®EELE — 4,137 — 1,194 — 5,331
Mr. Lai Kin, Jerome (note i) R 5t & (&) — 3,431 — 853 — 4,284
Ms. Wang Xuling THERL — 3,510 — 804 — 4314
Mr. Tam Lai Ling (note ii) BEEL A - 3,037 — — — 3,037
Non-Executive Directors FHTES
Mr. Cheong Ying Chew, REH KA
Henry 267 — — — — 267
Mr. Fong Wo, Felix, JP AREEREET 267 — — — — 267
Mr. Jiang Simon X. BBEEE 267 - — — — 267
Mr. Kwan Kai Cheong BRELHE 267 — — — — 267
Total &t 1,068 19,745 — 2,851 — 23,664
(i) Mr. Lai Kin, Jerome retired as a director of the Company on 31 ) BBEER-_ZTZENFFTZA=+—HR

EARREERT L8 EHA%EEEN
TEE H-FEAE-A-BREHR

December 2008 and was re-designated as a non-executive
director of the Group with effect from 1 January 2009.

(i)~ Mr.Tam LaiLing voluntarily resigned from the Group on 30 iy BEERELEELEEBER-_ZZINF+—A=+

November 2008. HEASEEGFMT-
16. SENIOR MANAGEMENT REMUNERATION 16. e REEEM 2

AEBHE-ZTTZAF+ZA=1+—
HEFENRAEZGESTMATBER
RAIZREEF HMESE RHE158
BTN FEASEETERES
XNERMMEERMAIRMARE
B R EABEBAEE-

The five highest paid individuals of the Group during the year
ended 31 December 2009 comprise three directors of the
Company, whose remuneration is disclosed in note 15. During
2009 no emoluments were paid by the Group to the directors as
aninducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
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17. DIVIDENDS

(iii)

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Final dividends in respect of
previous financial year, declared
and paid during the year f&% B
Interim dividends declared and paid
during the year R B
Final dividends proposed after the
balance sheet date RERAR B

The Board of Directors proposed final dividends of
RMB51,185,000 (RMB4.97 cents per ordinary share) in
respect of the year ended 31 December 2008 at the
meeting held on 23 April 2009, which was approved by
the Annual General Meeting on 5 June 2009 and paid on
12 June 2009, and has been reflected as an appropriation
of retained earnings for the year ended 31 December
2009.

The Board of Directors resolved to propose dividends of
RMB30,326,000 (RMB2.95 cents per ordinary share) in
respect of the six months ended 30 June 2009. The
dividends were paid on 30 September 2009 and have
been reflected as an appropriation of retained earnings for
the year ended 31 December 2009.

The Board of Directors has resolved to propose cash
dividends of RMB56,402,000 (RMB5.5 cents per ordinary
share) in respect of the year ended 31 December 2009 and
a bonus share issue of 1 bonus share for every 40 existing
shares held. The cash dividends and bonus shares
proposed after the balance sheet date have not been
reflected as a liability or share capital at the balance sheet
date.

17. B &

FREERRIKRMNZ
BE M BFERY

FAEEIRMEMNZ

BEERBRAREIK

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

2009
—BRAF

2008
—EENF
RMB’000
ARB T

RMB’000
AR®TR

149,549

51,185

BRE-_ZTAFNA-_T+=ZARTH
EFEe EECeERRNEBEE=-ZZ
NF+ZA=Z+—"BLEFEHRER
B A& AR #51,185,0007c (& i & 8 %
AR¥497D) ER T ALFRA
FEHBRBTHREBFASHETR =
TEENFAA+T-_HD KR T ERE
E_TTNAF+_A=Z+—HBLEE
B 1R B i Al o B R B o

EESERARERRBE-ZETLF
NAZTBHBEAEARMEBE AR
30,326,000 T (& fx & @ Ik A R #2.95
D) HEBRBEER -_ETAENAA=
THERMN XERBEZE_ZFTTNF+
ZA=t+t-"BLEFEHNRBER DB
R B o

EEZSCRARERHBE=-ZTNEF
+TZA=Z+T—BLEFERNEEKE
A K #56,402,000 (R EBR AR
oS )R BRHRBIORRERD &
TIRAKR EEEBBEXRABBRIKERN
ReBRERABRTRAREEARBRA
REAEEBEHBRAE-



Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
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18. EARNINGS PER SHARE
(a) Basic earnings per share
The calculation of basic earnings per share for the year
ended 31 December 2009 was based on the profit
attributable to equity holders of the Company of
RMB678,520,000 (2008: RMB151,499,000) and the
weighted average number of ordinary shares of
1,027,611,923 (2008: 1,036,606,306) in issue during the
year, calculated as follows:

Weighted average number of ordinary shares

Ordinary share issued at 1 January 2009

18. EREA

(a)

R-ZEZNF-A-HNEBTERR

EREXEF
HE_ZTZZNF+_A=+—
BEFESEREABZFNDEAR
NEIRER A ABIE SRR AR
678,520,000 L(ZZTEZENF: AR
#151,499,00070) & F A B B 1T E
MR < N ¥ 15 #01,027,611,923
(= Z Z )\ £F : 1,036,606,306 %)
HECHEOT:

EBERMEFIH

1,030,115,000

Effect of shares repurchased (note 38) 08 B Ity 2 52 2 (Pt 5238) (2,503,077)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares RZZZEAF+ZA=+—HHK

at 31 December 2009 BN 2 1,027,611,923
Weighted average number of ordinary shares R-—BEN\E+-A=+—A1

at 31 December 2008

H) & BRI T 19 K

1,036,606,306

(b) Diluted earnings per share

The calculation of diluted earnings per share for the year
ended 31 December 2009 was based on the profit
attributable to equity holders of the Company of
RMB618,232,000 (2008: RMB151,499,000) and the
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding
after adjustment for the effect of all dilutive potential
ordinary shares of 1,151,901,717 (2008: 1,036,606,306),
calculated as follows:

() Weighted average number of ordinary
shares (diluted)

(b)

BEREESER
RBEE-_ZTETAF+=_A=1+—
BEFEESERESRFDIEAR
AREREAEBGLHEN AR
618,232,000t (ZEZENF: A K
¥ 151,499,000 7T) & 7 78 B % & 3@
BROFMBEBEEREEYERBET
I3 AR & b0 #E 19 #01,151,901,717
B (= Z Z )\ £ : 1,036,606,306 %)
HECHEOT:

(i) =B8R0 F 9 B (EE)

Weighted average number of I I 0 T
ordinary shares (basic) (E7)

Effect of conversion of convertible 3, 3 7] & ¥ (5 4 &)
bonds (note 35) 5 2 (Mt 5235)

1,036,606,306

Weighted average number of
ordinary shares (diluted)

(#8)

at 31 December

R+tZR=+—B#&
BRI

1,036,606,306

BEHUsEE—




w
bl
1]
-
)
S
o
_
X
=}
=
5
Q
w
o
[
3
=
o
o

6007 Hoday [enuuy

166

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
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1 (4%8)

18. EARNINGS PER SHARE (Continued)
(b) Diluted earnings per share (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Weighted average number of ordinary
shares (diluted) (Continued)

The average market value of the Company’s
ordinary shares for the purpose of calculating the
dilutive effect of share options was based on quoted
market prices for the year in which the options were
outstanding. For the year ended 31 December 2009,
the exercise price of these options was higher than
the average market price of the Company'’s shares.
These options had no dilutive effect and therefore
were not considered in the calculation of the diluted
earnings per share.

Profit attributable to ordinary equity
holders of the Company (diluted)

18. R EF(E)
(b) SRBFRFNE)

() ZBERMNEFYEHEE
(%)
ARBANGFERRERE
FENTBRTFADEIR
BRERBRERETED
FEMBzTEFE-BE
—EFRAFEt+-_HA=+—H
HFE ZEEREZITRE
BRARA KRN ZFHME
RE - REBREYLEEE
TR WAEEAEERE
SBEM -

i) "2 EERRERFSE
A FE 465 I (3 58)

2009 2008
—ETAF ZETNF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T ARETTT
Profit attributable to ordinary LTEBRBEERAB A
equity holders (basic) J& 15 & A (B 7 151,499
Effect of effective interest A ﬁii} BmEHFBELND
on the liability component BB TR
of convertible bonds (note 35) (Bﬁ 5£35) —
Effect of gain recognised RERATEBES
on repurchase FrigE R I o 1) 2 2
of convertible bonds (note 35) (Fff 5£35) —
Effect of gain recognised MAEBESITERS
on the derivative component 1 B T 58 UL 2= 1Y
of convertible bonds (note 35) 2 2 (K §£35) —
Profit attributable to ordinary TR ERE AR
equity holders (diluted) 16 A (8 58) 151,499
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19. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 19. ME-BERSZHE
Fixtures,
Leasehold Motor fittings &
In RMB'000 Buildings improvements  vehicles equipment
®8 -
HE RER
AR¥ TR Ly E S &E
Cost: R
Balance at 1 January 2008 —ZEEN\F—A—H
RS 222,257 24,083 33,690 62,604 342,634
Acquisitions BE 17,548 5,855 1,503 6,677 31,583
Acquired on acquisition of subsidiary AU B A BB EES — — 1,027 621 1,648
Disposals (L4 — — (3,742) (13) (3,755
Balance at 31 December 2008 —EENE+=A
=t+— AWt 239,805 29,938 32,478 69,889 372,110
Acquisitions BE — 1,320 1,709 6,914 9,943
Disposals ok (962) 8) (4,965) (12,834)  (18,769)
Balance at 31 December 2009 —EFEhhE+=A
=+— AW 238,843 31,250 29,222 63,969 363,284
Depreciation: E .
Balance at 1 January 2008 —EENEFE—-A—H
B & ER 23,555 20353 18,454 34,233 96,595
Charge for the year FRINE 13,312 670 4,852 7,064 25,898
Disposals Bl — — (3,129) (10) (3,139)
Balance at 31 December 2008 —EENEFE+=A
=t+—AmEeR 36,867 21,023 20,177 41,287 119,354
Charge for the year FERE 13,982 2,168 3,997 5,369 25,516
Disposals (6 (933) (B) 4381 (12,413) (17,730
Balance at 31 December 2009 —EFEhhE+=A
=t+— AW 49,916 23,188 19,793 34,243 127,140
Carrying amounts: IRMEIE :
At 31 December 2009 R-ZEZh&E+=A
=+-—H 188,927 8,062 9,429 29,726 236,144
At 31 December 2008 R=-BENE+=A
=+—H 202,938 8,915 12,301 28,602 252,756
(i)  All buildings owned by the Group are located in the PRC. () AEEREENMEEFHURS
o
(i)  Asat 31 December 2009, buildings with a total carrying (i RZEZAF+=_A=+—8"
value of RMB131,179,000 (2008: RMB133,859,000) were AEBEEBRE@DAEBEARE

131,179,000 L (ZZEENFE: A B
#133,859,000 L) M IEFE AR &
EfEEMEBL-

pledged as collateral for the Group's borrowings.
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20. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 200 B EE

Contractor
qualification

AEBHER

RMB’000
ARETR

Cost: o4
Balance at 1 January 2008 and 31 December 2008

wn
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BT\ E-A-AR-FENE
+-A=+—HH&EH%
Acquisitions I i
Balance at 31 December 2009 RZZBEENF+_A=+—HN%E

Amortisation:

8
Balance at 1 January 2008 and 31 December 2008 HR-_ZEZENF—HA—BE =TT NF
—RA=

+—BMEH
Amortisation charge for the year FAEBERAX
| Balanceat31 December2009 R=ZFNFT-_A=T—A0&HR

Carrying amounts: BREE :
=1 At 31 December 2009 R_ZTEAE+-A=+—8H
z At 31 December 2008 R-—ZEENE+-HA=+—8
(o]
8 21. LAND USE RIGHTS 21. & i fF AR

2009 2008
—2ThE —TENF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%F T ARET T

Cost: R
Balance at 1 January B—A—BH&sH% 86,862 69,822
Additions 8840 2,419 17,040
Transfer to properties under ERERERYE

development (note 24) (fF5E24) (6,076) —
Balance at 31 December R+ZRA=+—H&&E 83,205 86,862
Amortisation: By
Balance at 1 January m—A— B 5,649
Amortisation charge for the year FRBHEAS 1,713
Transfer to properties under ERTHRPYE

development (note 24) (HI5E24) —
Balance at 31 December Rt+—A=+—HB8#%& 7,362
Carrying amounts: FRMEE :
Balance at 31 December R+ A=+—B0#&s 74,192 79,500
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21. LAND USE RIGHTS (Continued) 21. T ERAEGE)

Land use rights represent lease prepayments for acquiring rights T FE A EEKE PR ED - %lguf
to use land, which is all located in the PRC, for own use WERENNEEENTE ZE + %
properties. HREE B - %

=
As at 31 December 2009, land use rights with a total carrying R-_EZNF+_A=+—"H && af
value of RMB53,717,000 (2008: RMB54,947,000) were pledged OB 43 A R #53,717,000 7T §§
as collateral for the Group's borrowings. ZETZENF: AR ®54,947,0007T) & =

THEREERASBEENER RS-

22. OTHERINVESTMENTS 22. Hfb R &
2009 2008
—EThEF ZETENF
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR¥T ARETTT
Available-for-sale financial assets AL ESREE —
Equity securities held for trading BEXZENNEZES 856
As at 31 December 2009, available-for-sale financial assets RZZEZTAF+_RAR=+—8"
represent the Group’s 3.4% equity investment in XDM AHEEEREEREA S ERXOM
Resources Inc, which is incorporated in Canada and is engaged Resources INcK)3.4% & # & & » & 2 7]
in minerals exploration and development. RMERTME LI REBRERKR
BRER-
23. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 23. REWR

2009 2008
—BTNE —zENF

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARBTT

Completed investment properties 3 {EBRENFE & 80 & A%

held to earn rentals or for B EA EmtE Az

capital appreciation or both MEERIEEME (a) 723,000
Investment properties under FlER R AINE

construction or development LIIES (b) —

Balance at 31 December R+ A=+—HBr%&&% 723,000
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23. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 23. BREWEE)
§ (a) Completed investment properties held to earn (@ HIEREFEL£IEAREEDNMEU
n rentals or for capital appreciation or both tRERERNEERRENSE
[
g 2009 2008
3 —eEnE —ET )\
‘;’_ RMB’000 RMB’000
% AR#TT ARBTT
o
Balance at 1 January R—A—BM%H 698,000
Transfer from completed properties ERADERSEME
held for sale (note 25) (Pf¥#¥25) —
Fair value adjustments: NABERE
Transfer to profit or loss EER AR 25,000
Balance at 31 December R+-_A=+—BH&% 723,000
(b) Investment properties under construction or b) EHEPIBEDHREWEHE

development

1
= 2009 2008
7 —EEAE ZETENF
= RMB’000 RMB'000
N e 7
S AR¥T ARET T
Balance at 1 January R—A—BM&ER —
Transfer from properties under BRAERPYE
development (note 24) (Pff5E24) —
Fair value adjustments: NRBERE
Transfer to profit or loss EER AR —
Balance at 31 December R+t A=+—H84& —

All the Group's investment properties are stated at fair REBRMEBEREMENR_ZSZENF+ A
value at 31 December 2009. The fair values were arrived at =t+—HYUULRABEAK - AREET
based on valuations carried out by DTZ Debenham Tie BEHERZTARARNETHNFEAMETE
Leung Limited. The valuations, which conform to the ZEHEREELSINEME2 BN X
Valuation Standards (First Edition 2005) on Valuation of HEEZECETZTRFFE—RET LE2E
Properties published by the Hong Kong Institute of REEER (BB RBEWATFSE
Surveyors, have been determined by reference to BEAREMEE EfKREETASFNIEZ
comparable sales evidence and, where appropriate, by WEME BMERXEEELRERZ®%
capitalisation of net income. The revaluation gains have EREZLEWEMELESE W BB E
been credited to profit or loss of the respective year, or, in STARER -
the case of revaluation gains arising on transfer of an item
of property, plant and equipment to investment properties

170 following a change in use, to equity directly.
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23. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 23.
(b) Investment properties under construction or
development (Continued)
As at 31 December 2009, investment properties with a
total carrying value of RMB521,935,000 (2008:
RMB517,000,000) were pledged as collateral for the

Group's borrowings.

24. PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT 24.

Properties under development expected

TEEAS O A T BAR AR

REWMEHE)
b BERPRBEBRFOREYWE(E)

R_ZZEZENFEF+_A=+—8"
FTEBEEREEDREARYE
521,935000 c(Z T ZENE: AR
¥ 517,000,0007T) K &% B ¥ ¥ 1E B
AEEBENERR-

BRBPYE

2009
—sENE

2008
—ET)\F

RMB'000
ARETT

RMB’000
AR®T R

to be completed: okgetesky/E
— within twelve months —+=Z@AAW 2,963,347 1,800,902
— beyond twelve months —+-@A®% 4,235,962 2,558,728

Balance at 1 January
Cost capitalised
Acquired on acquisition of subsidiary
Transfer from land use rights (note 21)
Transfer to investment properties
(note 23)
Transfer to completed properties held
for sale (note 25)

R—A—BM&Es
¥ N-V.N |4
RIS T AR ER
I E 1 b AR (T EE21)
BREREYE

(M$3E23)
EREDERGEME
(KtsE25)

2009
—BBhE
RMB’000
ARF 5

2008
ZET)\F

RMB'000
ARETT

Balance at 31 December

Rt A=t—B&#

Interest capitalisation included in
the above:
Balance at 1 January
Cost capitalised (note 13)
Acquired on acquisition of subsidiary
Transfer to investment properties
Transfer to completed properties

held for sale

Bt ALAIBE WWER(L
B
R—A— B
RAE AL (HF3E13)
R R RIRES
BEERENE
HRECERGFEDE

Balance at 31 December

Rt-A=1t—Br#&Ee

4,359,630 2,999,051
4,860,061 1,580,384
— 740,000
5,955 —
(250,688) —
(1,775,649) (959,805)
7,199,309 4,359,630
116,808 69,915
194,943 87,041
— 5,853
(9.514) —
(95,311) (46,001)
206,926 116,808

=4

g
=
B
==
)\13
af
o
P
5
|
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24. PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT (Continued) 24, BRAPYEE)

§ The properties under development are located in the PRC. ERABPYEAM RN H R -

=

3

& The weighted average capitalisation rate of borrowings is 5.03% HE2_ZEZTZhF+_A=+—HI#

g for the year ended 31 December 2009 (2008: 6.93%). & fEE 8N T8 LA *E B5.03%

g' (ZZEZNF:6.93%) °

% As at 31 December 2009, properties under development of RZEENF+_A=+—"H K&

= approximately RMB3,918,502,000 (2008: RMB2,214,436,000) B EMEEEYARK3918,502,000
were pledged as collateral for the Group’s borrowings. T(ZEZEN\F : AR#2,214,436,0007T)

MEBERTVRE/RAKEBERE TR -

25. COMPLETED PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE 5. ERRIFEYHE
2009 2008
—EBNEF =T NF
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARET T AREBT T
Balance at 1 January Rn—A—BM&H 253,976
z Transfer from properties under HEREERTYE
?_, development (note 24) (K3E24) 959,805
2 Transfer to cost of sales R E B AR (703,920)
% Transfer to investment properties EERSICEYE
8 (note 23) (FM$3E23) —
Balance at 31 December R+ A=+—H8&% 509,861
Impairment loss provision included T A LA B 8 RE
in the above: EstE R
Balance at 1 January W—A— B8R (1,503)
Reversal upon sales of properties S Y SE R B () 1,503
Balance at 31 December R+ A=+—Bi4eR —
All completed properties held for sale are located in the PRC. FBEERKEEMEHAUNDE-

As at 31 December 2009, completed properties held for sale of RZZBEENRGEF+ZA=+—H XxKEBE

approximately RMB25,592,000 (2008: RMB22,451,000) were HHEEE L AR 2559200 (ZFZE N

pledged as collateral for the Group’s borrowings. F: AR¥22451000)WE ZEKFEME
ERAEEEENEKF R -
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26. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 26. BEE N TAER
i3
i
2008 g
—2BhE “TI)\F =
RMB’000 RMB’000 %
AR%T T AREBT T Pl
P
Shanghai ZhongXin Asset LERBEEKE E
Management Co., Ltd. BRAR (a) 65,739
The Peninsula Shanghai Waitan RN BRI
Hotel Company Limited BRAF] (b) 857,438
923,177
(a) Shanghai ZhongXin Asset Management Co., @ LtEBRBEEKERTRAF
Ltd. (“Shanghai ZhongXin") TEEBRE)
2009 2008
—EThF ZTENF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARBFIT
Cost of investment - N 26,933
Goodwill on acquisition WEEENEE 2,794
Share of post-acquisition profit o8 WS 18 s 3,012
Loan BEX 33,000
65,739
The share of post-acquisition profit of Shanghai ZhongXin BE-_FTZAF+ZA=1—H
for the year ended 31 December 2009 was attributable to LEFEENIELBREREREF
the revaluation gain on Shanghai ZhongXin's investment RKELBERBREMESH RS -
properties.
The loan to Shanghai ZhongXin of RMB33,000,000 MEEBRERENERARE
represents the Group’s proportional share of a 33,000,000 7T (Bl A< £ B A {5 BX R
shareholders’ loan, which is unsecured, interest free and EXRHBDAEER 2ELE

has no fixed terms of repayment. E & E o
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26. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 26. BENTIRERE)
(b) The Peninsula Shanghai Waitan Hotel Company b) EEHNBEEEEFTRA T

Limited (“Peninsula Waitan”)

(M #E+51

2009 2008

—BBNF —ETNF

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARET T ARETTT

Cost of investment AR 867,013
Additional investment in paid-in capital & INE A Z K E 13,665
Share of post-acquisition losses MU IZ BB (23,240)
857,438

Peninsula Waitan is 50% owned by the Group, and is
engaged in development, operation and management of
The Peninsula Shanghai Waitan Hotel.

The share of post-acquisition losses of Peninsula Waitan
for the year ended 31 December 2009 was mainly
attributable to the losses on soft opening.

(c) Summary of financial information relating to (c)
the associates, not adjusted for the percentage

of ownership held by the Group, is as follows:

31 December 2009

5184 & ph 7K 9 B 5 50% IR
TREHE EERER LG
L B I -

RE-TTAE+-A=+-8
L2 8 5N B R 5 S O
EERAREORE

TXHEINBEQIIANHY
BERBEEARBARH
FE 45 % %5 M 38 &

—gerE+t=A=t-8

Shareholders’

loans and
equity Revenue Profit/(loss)
BRREX Rl
R W (F#8)

Other
In RMB'000 Assets liabilities
ARET T BE HihEE
Shanghai ZhongXin LERa
Peninsula Waitan NEXE

31 December 2008

—22NF+t=A=t+-8

Shareholders’
loans and

equity Revenue Profit/(loss)

Other
In RMB'000 liabilities
ARETR 3 HihBE
Shanghai ZhongXin rERE 446,229 227,231
Peninsula Waitan GNEEE 3,004,136 1,264,375

BRER R/
Rz L6 (B8)
218,998 3,071 693
1,739,761 — (14,607)
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27. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES - COMPANY 27. FRAIERE —AXRF

=)

2008
ZTTN\F

s
&
B

RMB’000

ARMET 5 %
Unlisted shares, at cost FELETRAD - KA 3,914,405 3,650,820 at
Cumulative fair value of share options B3 F N allE B/ ERLE §§
granted to employees of subsidiaries MEEAREE 20,687 19,935 al
3,935,092 3,670,755
The Company's major operating subsidiaries are as follows: AARMEELEEFARAMT :
Percentage of equity
attributable to the
Company
/NG 3y s
B
Place and date of
Name of company incorporation Direct  Indirect  Registered capital Principal activities
YNIEL Ealipave: 4= )i i AMER FRER
%
SPG Investment Ltd. British Virgin Islands, 100% — USD1  Investment holding
2 March 2004 1= REER
EBRLHS
ZZEME=AH
Delta Link Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands, 100% — USD100 Investment holding
6 May 2004 100%T RAER
EBRLHS
ZZTMER ARHA
Shanghai Cambridge (Group) Co., Ltd. the PRC, —  98.24% USD67,670,000 Property development,
PEREYE (RE)BRRA) 25 August 1998 67,670,000%7C  sales and lease

RE - FERS  HELRE
“AANENRZTERH

Shanghai New Independence House Property the PRC, —  8842% RMB5,000,000 Property management services
Management Co., Ltd. 17 January 2001 ARHES000000t MEEERB
R ERMEERERAR e
—EE-F-A+tR
Shanghai Cambridge Country Club Co., Ltd the PRC, —  97.26% RMB5,000,000 Clubhouse operation
22 November 2001 ARES0000007 EFTEE
FEREFEANELBERAF M
“E2E-F+-A-+CH
Shanghai SPG Land Property Development the PRC, —  98.14% RMB10,000,000 Property development,
Co., Ltd. 14 August 2002 ARH100000007  lease and management
HERSENEHEERERAF e FERE HERER
i S AV R =
Shanghai SPG Hotel Development Co., Ltd. the PRC, 1 December 2006 — 98.24%  RMB405,500,000 Property development,
LEESEEERERAR R AR#4055000007  sales and lease
“EERET-A-H FERE  HEREE
Shanghai Sipo Education Development Co., the PRC, 9 October 2001 — 65.96%  RMB70,000,000 Investment holding
Ltd. (“Sipo Education”) FE] - ARET0,000,0007 HEZR

HERBHERRERAR “TR-FtANA
([BBHE])




w
bl
(9}
[
)
S
o
_
T
o
=
5
Q
J
o
(=
3
=
]
o

6007 Hoday [enuuy

176

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

2r‘1

nn

27.

B B |R M)

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES - COMPANY

(Continued)

Name of company
NGIER

Shanghai Sipo Polytechnic
HEBERITER

Shanghai Sipo Vocational Technical
Training Centre

BB BB ERITE L

Shanghai Oriental Cambridge
Property Development Co., Ltd.
FERARERHEERAERAF

Shanghai Lishui Greenery Ecology
Engineering Co., Ltd.
BRI TIRERAR

Shanghai Cambridge Construction
Consulting Co., Ltd.
HERRFEREXABRAR

Shanghai Shikang Property
Consulting Co., Ltd.
et EEERRARA

Shanghai Zhuxi Investment Enterprise Co. Ltd.
TEREERREBRAF

Huangshan Taiping Lake Resort Hotel
Development Co., Ltd.
BLAFHEREERREERDLF

Huangshan Cambridge Property
Development Co., Ltd.
HLEBEERMERRERLA

Huangshan SPG Land Development Co., Ltd.
BLRREMERERRT

Huangshan Shengyuan Hotel
Development Co., Ltd.
BLRRBEERERRA

Place and date of
incorporation

FEMAR Izt % K H A

the PRC,
15 April 2003

HE -
ZTE=FNA+RA

the PRC,

14 October 2003
FE

=

the PRC,

26 September 2002
M

“ZZFARZTRA

the PRC,
7 November2003

FE
ZTE=F+—-Rt E

the PRC,

29 April 2004

hE
ZEEMFNA=TAR

the PRC,

7 January 2003
g

F—RA+H

—ZT=
the PRC,
2 December 2003

FE -
F+-AZ=A

—EE=

—==T =

the PRC,

7 January 2004

FE
—ZTMFE-A+H

the PRC,
22 July 2004

FE
“EENFELA=+=H

the PRC,

16 August 2007

HE
“EREENATRA

the PRC,

17 August 2007

e
“EEHFENAATER

27. ¥FRAEIRER —AXDEE)

Percentage of equity
attributable to the
Company
AREIEGES
B
Direct  Indirect
B &
% %
—  65.96%
—  65.96%
— 100%
— 51%
— 100%
— 100%
—  98.14%
— 100%
— 100%
— 100%
— 100%

Registered capital
HER

RMB5,000,000
AR H50000007C

RMB200,000
AR #2000007C

RMB650,000,000
=
650,000,0007T

RMB10,000,000
AR H10000,0007C

RMB500,000
AR#500,0007C

USD140,000
140,000 7T

RMB30,000,000
AKH300000007T

RMB120,000,000
AR
120,000,0007T

RMB50,000,000
AR H£50,0000007C

RMB100,000,000
N:
100,000,007

RMB 150,000,000
AR
150,000,0007T

Principal activities
TREK

College education

ERHUE

Technical training
and technology consultancy

BrE R

Property development,
sales and lease

FHERE  HEREE

Landscape construction project

EEEE

Project management,
consulting and services
BEER  FARRS

Property agency and
consulting

MERE LKA

Industry investment,
management and
business consulting

BXRE BER
Bl

Hotel development
and operation

BIERE RS

Property development,
sales and lease

FERS  HELRE

Property development,
sales and lease

FHERE  HEREE

Hotel development
and operation

BIEREREE
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INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES - COMPANY

27. FRRER A D AE)

(Continued)

Name of company
NGIE

Huangshan Shengzhi Hotel
Development Co., Ltd.
112953 /EJE%EE R0

Huangshan Shengdi Real Estate
Development Co., Ltd.
BRI EHEERERAT

Huangshan Shengde Real Estate
Development Co., Ltd.
BREEHELRERAT

Huangshan Shengjie Real Estate
Development Co., Ltd.
HiBE7 Eﬂﬂé?‘!ﬁﬁ Ra

Huangshan Shengwei Real Estate
Development Co., Ltd.
BREFHELRERAT

Huangshan Shengheng Real Estate
Development Co., Ltd.
BLEEEEERERAA

Huangshan Hiddentigger Club
Management Co., Ltd.
HLBEERERERAT

Kunming SPG Land Development Co., Ltd.

ERRRENERER AR

Kunming SPG Grand City
Development Co., Ltd

RRARSANEHERRARAF

Shanghai Zhujia Cambridge Property
Development Co., Ltd.
PERERELEEHEREERAF

Suzhou Runjian Property Co., Ltd.
HFMEREXBRAA

Suzhou SPG Property Management Co., Ltd.

FNRENERBER QA

Place and date of
incorporation

FEAR Iz B 2 H HA

the PRC,
17 August 2007

E
“ERHENAATLH

the PRC,

16 August 2007

B
AV R WA=

the PRC,
16 August 2007

R
it AV R AN E

the PRC,

11 June 2009

HE
ZETNERAT—H

the PRC,

11 June 2009

HE -
ZTTAFSA+R

the PRC,

11 June 2009

HE
ZETNESRATH

the PRC,
7 July 2009

FE
“ETAFLALH

the PRC,
9 November 2006

the PRC,

15 June 2007

FE -
ZTZ+FA+HA

the PRC,

24 September 2003
HE -

=FNAAZ+IEA

the PRC, 28 September 2007
R -
“ZTHEAAZT\R
the PRC, 5 March 2009

FE
“ZTHNFE=ARA

—EBE=

—==

Percentage of equity
attributable to the
Company
AR EEGER
BAl

Direct  Indirect
% itz
% %

— 100%

— 100%

— 100%

— 100%

— 100%

— 100%

— 100%

— 1%

— 1%

— 1%

— 100%

— 100%

Registered capital
AR

RMB150,000,000

150,000,0007T

RMB150,000,000
N
150,000,0007T

RMB150,000,000

150,000,0007T

RMB150,000,000
N
150,000,0007T

RMB150,000,000

150,000,0007T

RMB34,000,000
AR®
340000007T

RMB1 ,OO0,0QO
AEHE
1,000,0007C

RMB142,500,000
ARE
142,500,0007T

Usb40,000,000
40,000,000% 7T

RMB280,000,000
AR
280,000,0007T

RMB550,000,000
ARE
550,000,0007T
RMB500,000

ARE
500,0007T

=)

=) WE

Principal activities
FEREK

==
)\13
a
il
5
all

Hotel development and
operation
BB REE

Property development,
sales and lease

FHERT  #ELEE

Property development,
sales and lease
FHERSE HEREE

Property development,
sales and lease

FHERT  #ELEE

Property development,
sales and lease
FHERSE  HEREE

Property development,
sales and lease

FHERT  #ELEE

Property management services

B EHEEERYE

Property development,
sales and lease

FHERT  #ELEE

Property development,
sales and lease

FHERS  HELRE

Property development
and sales

FHERENEE

Property development, sales
and lease

FHERS  HELRE

Property management services

WEERRY
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27. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES - COMPANY 27. FTREEE—ARRQTE)
§ (Continued)
=
3 Percentage of equity
= attributable to the
E Company
g—. AREIEGES
Q BOl
= Place and date of
E Name of company incorporation Direct  Indirect  Registered capital Principal activities
F NGIER B ai ek 4=k B iz AMER FEEB
o % %
Suzhou Runjian Property Management the PRC, 8 December 2009 — 100% RMB500,000 Property management services
Co,, Ltd. g ARES500,000T WEEERS
BN ERERGEERAR) —ZETNFTZANR
Wuxi Guosheng Property Development the PRC, 2 November 2007 — 100%  HKD425,000,000 Property development,
Co., Ltd. FE 425,000,0007%87C  sales and lease
ESERFEEREARAR = FHERE  HEREE
Wauxi Shenglian Property Development the PRC, 2 November 2007 — 100%  HKD425,000,000 Property development,
Co., Ltd. R 425,000,000%7C  salesand lease
EHRMEEREARAR “ET+F+—AZA FHERE  HEREE
o Hainan Jiangiao Property Management the PRC, 4 January 2008 —  8342% RMB1,000,000 Property management services
3 Co., ltd. R - ARME1,0000007T V1% EERY
g BRERENEERERAR —EZ\F—AME
-
S Wauxi Xishuidong Advertising Culture the PRC, 9 June 2009 — 100% RMB500,000 Advertisement services
S Media Co., Ltd. HE ARH500,000T % RS
© BHRKRESUCEFEARAF ZZTNERANA
Hubei Huazhong Constructing Co Ltd. the PRC, 21 May 2009 — 100%  RMB20,052,000 Construction and decoration
MtERRERAEREAN R - ARH20050007C  services
“ZTNAFERA-+-H BEREERS
Changshu SPG Land Development Co., Ltd. the PRC, 12 July 2007 — 100%  RMB200,000,000 Property development,
PARSREREERAR R AR®  salesand lease
“ERAFELATCH 200,000,0007T FiERRE « HEREE
Changshu SPG Real Estate Development the PRC, 24 October 2007 — 100%  RMB350,000,000 Property development,
Co., Ltd. FE - AR®  salesand lease
RAMMERARAR “ERLETAZTEA 350,000,000 FEHERE - HENEE
Wuxi SPG Land Information Consulting the PRC, 5 June 2007 — 100% USD20,000,000 Project management,
Co., Ltd. R 20,000,0005%7C  consulting and services
EHRRESFAFRAR ZRTAERARH BREE  FARRE
Shanxi SPG Land Development Co., Ltd. the PRC, 27 August 2009 — 100% USD20,000,000 Property development,
LEEEENEREERAF R 20,000,000357C  sales and lease
ZETAFENAZTLH FHERE  HEREE
All these entities are controlled subsidiaries as defined under FTEZSERABME3ROAR TN
note 3(a)(i) and have been consolidated into the consolidated XIEHFRBKRE A R AL S BT TSR
financial statements. x e

178
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28. TRADE, OTHER RECEIVABLES AND ADVANCE
DEPOSITS

—sEnE

RM

ARBTR

EWRIEAL

Receivables due from related

parties: FNIA
— Subsidiaries — TN a]

28. B W Bk
B&

HttEWRR AN

Group
3 3
2009

Company
AT
2009
= L3
RMB’000
AR%T T

2008
—EFE)N\F
RMB’000
AREBFT

2008
—ET)N\F
RMB’000
ARBT T

B’000

184,255 241,315

— Other related parties — HAbREE
(note 44()) At
(FM5E440) 32
184,287 241,347
Trade receivables due from ERE=HE
third parties 2 Z MR 5,381 . —
Advance payments to
contractors TR FEEHRIE 65,265 . —
Advance deposits for U B + Hb {5 FR 4
acquisition of land IERRE
use rights 457,767 1,087,303 166,297 429,882
Non-trade receivables E i B R 149,203 66,705 — —
Tax prepayments SEE RN 183,211 126,126 = —
Total &=t 864,878 1,340,466 350,584 671,229
The receivables due from related parties are unsecured, non- EREEATHREBEAERR RER
interest bearing and repayable on demand. BARERIFERE-
Non-trade receivable balances, deposits and advances to third EmERFEBEES FTekBHE=
parties are expected to be settled or recovered within one year. FTHRIBERAR -—FRBFELKE -
Tax prepayments mainly represent prepayment of business tax BABAREEZREABEE TER+TY

during the presale stage of certain properties under
development.

EMBEHHEER -

BhH Y EET
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28. TRADE, OTHER RECEIVABLES AND ADVANCE 28. EWER AR -HMBEURR KR AN
2 DEPOSITS (Continued) RE(E
o) The ageing analysis of trade receivables at each balance sheet EWETNZSEEBNEREDITAOT
,3; date is as follows:
E
=3
2 Group
% rEE
2 2009 2008
8 —BEhE —EE)\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBFIT
Within 90 days 90H K 5,236
Over 90 days and within 180 days 90H £180H 335
Over 180 days and within 365 days 180 H 365 H 369
Over 365 days 3650 A = 27
5,967
29. RESTRICTED CASH 29. IRFRE
> Pursuant to relevant regulations, certain subsidiaries of the BEBBAR AEBEE TR EYHER
= Group which engage in property development have restrictions RO FRAAEBREERITERS, DRI
T% on their ability to draw cash from specified bank loan accounts RetERBEEREMBRERINEBY
S for uses other than the purchase of construction materials and ¥BEEERKAUIINGAZ - AXEHR
S payment of development costs relating to the relevant property fle RZZEZENF+_HA=+—8" &
= projects. As at 31 December 2009, the bank account balances BTZERBNBOTLOLBRAARKE
subject to these restrictions amounted to RMB1,578,673,000 1,578,673,000t ( ZZTZE)\F : AR
(2008: RMB539,771,000). 539,771,000 7T °)
Furthermore, as at 31 December 2009, cash at bank of certain N RZEZEAF+_A=+—8"
subsidiaries of the Group of RMB830,075,000 (2008: nil) was REBEETFRARMNBRITERABARE
security for loans of certain of its subsidiaries. 830,075,000 L (ZEZ)N\F : T) » AH

ETFRABERE R -

180



Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

e B S R R I R (&)

30. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
An analysis of the balance of cash and cash equivalents is set out
below:

—BBhE
RMB’000
ARBF 5

5,447,693

Cash atbankand cashinhand $R{TGEZEEE

B ZRHIIRE
(F15£29)

Less: restricted cash (note 29)

Cash at bank and cash in hand is denominated in:

RMB AR 5,341,673 816,533 —
usD =T 90,313 45,033 110
AUD BT 7 5 —
HKD T 15,700 81,731

RMB is not a freely convertible currency and the remittance of
funds out of the PRC is subject to exchange restrictions imposed
by the PRC government.

31. TAXPAYABLE/DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/
(LIABILITIES)
(i) Current taxation in the consolidated balance
sheets represents:

PRC income tax

RS

Balance brought forward AP

30, Re R BREEEY

Group
3 3

2009 2008 2009 2008

(2,408,748)

3,038,945 403,531

5,447,693 943,302

.
b

BehReEBYNEHRITOT:

=

Company

ESN

g
=
B
==
)\13
af
o
P
5
|

—EE)NF
RMB'000
AREBTT
10,852

—2BhE
RMB’000
ARBF T

2,070

—ET)N\F

RMB'000
ARETT
943,302

(539,771)

ARBWIIFEALHEE  KHEED
AR BE T BB HIRT RO E LR -

3. ENFMA/H BEHEEE
(& &)
() REEEEBERNETBHE
Bt 15

2009 2008
=FFNEF

TN\F
RMB'000
ARETT

RMB’000
AR®T R

3,227

Acquired on acquisition of subsidiary AU F A TR EE1S 700
Provision for PRC enterprise income tax  4F e B PS5 54 B 1

for the year (note 14) (K$3E14) 228,047 71,290
PRC income tax paid B BEIATER (153,269) (128,184)
Balance carried forward 4 ph it 78,005 3,227
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31. TAX PAYABLE/DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/ . BRFBH BEEREEE
(LIABILITIES) (Continued) (B &) &)
(i) Current taxation in the consolidated balance (i) ZREEEEERNEBFRE
sheets represents (Continued): B (&)

2009 2008
—B2RhE —TT)E

PRC land appreciation tax RMB’000 RMB’000
iR (E B AR®T T ARBFIT

wn
bl
(1}
-
)
S
o
_
T
o
=
5
Q
w
o
(=
3
=
o
o

SRR 320,329 273,000

Balance brought forward

Acquired on acquisition of subsidiary ~ RAUEE T A RIRES 643
Provision for PRC land appreciation tax 4 A1 #) H1 [B + Mo 32 {E 5
for the year (note 14) B fE (M5E14) 214,032 102,338
PRC land appreciation tax paid O R B 4 s (E F (45,703) (55,652)
Balance carried forward MEERGETS 488,658 320,329
(i) Deferred tax assets recognised: (i) ERAELEHBEE:
> The components of deferred tax assets recognised in the PEEGEEEABRERNEL
Qg_) consolidated balance sheets and the movements during HEEEXOERBE_ZZA
Z the year ended 31 December 2009 were as follows: F+-_A=+—HILEFENZH
S W
N
o
3

Temporary
difference Land
onrevenue appreciation

recognition taxand

and related other
cost of sales accruals  Tax losses
W ERERR
BHHE LEEH
B REf
ERER  ESEB HBEE &3t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETRT AR¥TR AR®TR ARET:R

At 1 January 2008 “EENF-A—H 1,234 69,915 2,579 73,728
Additions 240 — 24,931 10,916 35,847
Charged to profit or loss FEZNR® (1,234) (11,986) (8,206) (21,426)
At 31 December 2008 —ZENE+=-A=+—H — 82,860 5,289 88,149
Additions #m 70,880 45,746 25,583 142,209
Charged to profit or loss EBRENR — (2,922) (14,467) (17,389)
At 31 December 2009 ZZEANETZA=T—H 70,880 125,684 16,405 212,969
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31. TAXPAYABLE/DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/
(LIABILITIES) (Continued)
(ii) Deferred tax assets recognised: (Continued):

1. B8R, EEHBEE
(BB #E)
(i) EMAEEHRBEEE : (&)

As at 31 December 2009, the Group had unused tax losses
of RMB146,280,000 (2008: RMB97,767,000) available to
offset against future profits. Deferred tax assets have been
recognised in respect of the tax losses of RMB65,616,000
(2008: RMB26,424,000) at the applicable income tax rates
of the respective subsidiaries as at 31 December 2009. No
deferred tax assets have been recognised in respect of the
remaining tax losses of RMB80,664,000 (2008:
RMB71,343,000) due to the unpredictability of future
taxable profit streams of the individual subsidiaries
concerned as at 31 December 2009. The unrecognised tax
losses for the year ended 31 December 2009 will expire in
the following years ending 31 December:

N

B Ik 4 B ¢ -

=+

2009 2008 jﬂ

—BBhE —TE)\F &
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T AREFTT
2009 —EETNF 11,023
2010 —E—ZF 17,908
2011 —E——£ 11,187
2012 —E—F 14,495
2013 —E—= 16,730
2014 —E— U _

RZZEEAF+ZR=+—
H: A& B0 A KREHEREKE
MO RBRATBEEEAARE
146,280,000L(Z B )\ F: A B
#97,767,000L) c R =T E N &
+ZA=+—H HRBEBEBEBERR
BRI FARER 2 MERRNE
EFHIEEE R ARYG65616,0007T
(ZZEZEN\F: AR ¥26,424,000
T HARTEEREEBEEEE
B2 1Y R R FE R B R B 2R K OB B
BE ALERZZZTNLF+ = A
STt HUYRBEBBBEEBEEA
R #80,664,0007t( = T & N\ F :
A R #71,343,0007T ) 7 R IE & 7
BEE-REBEE-_ZTTALFE+ =
A=+ BLEFEMNABRBE
EEERULTHZ+=ZA=+—

71,343
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31. TAX PAYABLE/DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/ 3. BNFBH ELEHEEE
8 (LIABILITIES) (Continued) (B fE) (&)
o (iii) Deferred tax liabilities recognised (i) CEIPECLHEBERS
?; The components of deferred tax liabilities recognised in EEGEEEABRERNEL
g the consolidated balance sheets and the movements MEAaESMEREBEE_ZEZE N
3 during the year ended 31 December 2009 were as follows: F+-_A=1+—HILEFENEZH
= mE
3
& Revaluation

of
Withholding investment Fair value
tax properties adjustments Total

REM=E ANRfEE
FEHAES Bl AR &t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000  RMB’000
ARBTRE AR®BTR AR®TRT AR®TR

At 1 January 2008 —ZEENF—H—H — 104,159 109,840 213,999

Arising from acquisition U BT R BIEL
of subsidiary — 124,218 124,218
Charged to profitorloss  7E4Bz5 40 7,880 12,054 24,334
Realisation for the year FERNEIE — (11,516)  (11,516)
z
3 At 31 December 2008 —ETN\F
2—; +=—HA=+—H 4,400 112,039 234,596 351,035
3 Charged to profitorloss  7E1Bz5 40k 14,000 123,770 — 137,770
S Realisation for the year FEERNEIR — — (27,303) (27,303)
o
o
= At 31 December 2009 —ETNF
+=-—HA=+—H 18,400 235,809 207,293 461,502
32. INTEREST-BEARING LOANS 32. FEREX

2009 2008
—EENE —EFENF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT T ARMTTE

Current 55 HA
Secured bank loans BEBRITEK 695,747 50,000
Unsecured bank loans IR RIRITE R = 5,000
Unsecured loans from related parties K E RE A TR ER T
(note 44(c)) B (M1 5F440) 800,000 200,000
Current portion of non-current secured BEBIRITREERD
bank loans BNEAER 1 640,000 325,000
2,135,747 580,000
Non-current R
Secured bank loans BEEMRITERK 3,791,292 1,466,860
Less: current portion of non-current B BEARTRIER
secured bank loans BNEAEB (D (640,000) (325,000)

3,151,292 1,141,860
184
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32. INTEREST-BEARING LOANS (Continued)
The secured bank loans as at 31 December 2009 were secured
by the Group’s properties and land use rights with a total
carrying amount of RMB4,650,925,000 (2008:
RMB2,941,693,000) (notes 19, 21, 23, 24 and 25).

The Group’s non-current bank loans were repayable as follows:

32. FEERE)

RZEZENE+_A=+—HWEIK
RAETEFRUNAEEE@DMBEASA
R #4,650,925000c( = F T )\ F: A
R #2,941,693,00070) &) ¥ 3 & £ #b {F
BREE BT IFE(H 5192123 24K
25) °

AEENRHBTEREANULTHE

8 & :

2009
—EBBNEF —ETNF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R ARETTT
Within 1 year —F R 325,000
Over 1 year but less than 2 years BBE—FEMFENA 250,000
Over 2 years but less than 5 years BB _FERFA 511,860
Over 5 years BidAREFUE 380,000
1,466,860

The effective interest rate of the year ended 31 December 2009
was as follows:

REZ-ZZNF+=_A=+—HL
FEMEBRFEMOT

Bank loans RITER

The carrying amounts of current and non-current bank loans
approximate their fair value.

RHLEHRTERNEEEERAARE
B -

=)

g
=
157
==
):‘a
o
pzii]
5
Il
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33. TRADE, OTHER PAYABLES AND ADVANCE 3. ERNERAR - EMERAKEEAENK
RECEIPTS ;IE

Group Company
rEH PN
2009 2008 2009 2008

—2EAE  —TI/\F C—BBAE ~TT)\F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTE ARMTT ARMTRT ARETE
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EEEAL

Payables due to related

parties: KIA
Trade related (note 44(c)) B HEMIRK
(B 5T440) -
Non-trade related: H A0 FERTR
— Dividends payable — ERRE
(note 44(c)) (BiEE440) : . o —
— Subsidiaries — FAa] 797,572 689,819
— Other related parties — HfbEgE AL
(note 44(c)) (B E440) 12,762
g 21,935 31,694 797,572 689,819
=
8 Trade payables FE R 1,118,601 652,355 —
N Advance receipts from TEWE P RIE
8 customers 3,578,948 1,036,776 —
Other taxes payable HEiETRTE 85,005 13,026 —
Dividends payable FERTIZ B, 96 77 77
Non-trade payables and H b JE A5 0D
accrued expenses TEIRE A 788,291 161,200 8,143 44,585
Total &t 5,592,876 805,811 734,481
The payables due to related parties are unsecured, non-interest ENEEATHZELEERB. 285
bearing and repayable on demand. BARERFFEE-
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33. TRADE, OTHER PAYABLES AND ADVANCE 3B ENRAR - HEMEARKEEAR
RECEIPTS (Continued) I (&) %Eu%}
The ageing analysis of trade payables at each balance sheet date ENEFNSEEANERSTOT : g
is as follows: g

B
iz

Group
3 3

;,'é
ot
Pl
5
2009 2008 al

—BBNF —TE)\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMF T ARSF

Within 90 days 90H A 661,539 384,815
Over 90 days and within 180 days Hi#E90H £180H A 261,862 116,754
Over 180 days and within 365 days Hi#E180H £365H A 153,659 92,707
Over 365 days and within 3 years B35 E3F A 41,541 69,999

1,118,601 664,275

34. LONG-TERM PAYABLE 3. REENR

Group

rE
Initial Cost 2009 2008
e A =ZBFBAF TZNF
RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARBTT AR%®TR ARETET

Long-term payable RHEEMS R 15 years , 51,301
Less: Long-term payable B — R H A 154

due within 1 year & HAFE 1 3% (6,000)
Long-term payable due —F &I KBS

after 1 year XN 45,301

The amount is repayable S L/( THEHEED

as follows: IR :
Within 1 year —F R 6,000
Over 1 year and within BRA-—FEMFNA
2 years 5,613
Over 2 years and within BEMFERFR
5 years 14,757
After 5 years AFLE 24,931
51,301
Long-term payable represents construction cost payable to a EHENZEEN —R2EmNgsEk
contractor. The amount is non-interest bearing and repayable in Ko BEHEARGLS RA-_ZEN\£E
15 annual instalments of RMB6,000,000 each, starting from 1 A —BEDISEHESE SHARK

September 2008. 6,000,0007T °
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
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35. CONVERTIBLE BONDS

On 27 April 2007, the Company issued USD Settled Zero
Coupon Convertible Bonds due in April 2012 in the aggregate
principal amount of RMB1,158,000,000. The subscription
amount payable in respect of each unit of the Convertible Bonds
is RMB100,000 (approximately USD12,952). The Convertible
Bonds are listed on Singapore Exchange Securities Trading
Limited. The details of the principal terms of the Convertible
Bonds are set out in the Company’s 2007 annual report.

On 29 December 2008, the Company repurchased 1,000 units
of Convertible Bonds with a total principal amount of
RMB100,000,000. The bonds were repurchased with a total
consideration of USD5,858,946, equivalent to RMB40,000,000.
These bonds were cancelled upon repurchase.

On 25 February 2009 and 19 May 2009, the Company
repurchased 540 and 1,144 units of Convertible Bonds with
total principal amounts of RMB54,000,000 and
RMB114,400,000 respectively. The bonds were repurchased
with total considerations, including transaction costs, of
Usb4,079,508 and USD14,2 21,425, equivalent to
RMB27,864,000 and R\MB97,084,000 respectively. These bonds
were cancelled upon repurchase. The gain of RMB49,394,000 in
relation to the liability component was recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year
ended 31 December 2009.

35.

AERE S
RZZEE+EWMA-++H AR T
BT & B %A AR 1,158000,000
TR T ——_FNABEEHHUET
BENOZTENERES FHUTER
BEHHNRELTEARARK100,0007T(49
512,952 70) o A IR E H R MK
BERXGHAERAR LM -BHEIE
RESFHEEGRROTBEHRAEARA]
—_EELFEFR

R—ZTEENF+_A=-+AILB &Q
A B E1,0000 AT IR EHF(R RS E
A A B #100,000,0007T) © & @ % % (&
% B 48 R (B 55,858,946 Jt 0 A E N
A R #40,000000t - ZEEHRE D

R-_EEZNF_A-_+HB K -Z
TAFRATAB ARAFALFED
5400 k1,144 fp Al B E S (B KN & 58
2 Bl A A R #54,000,0007T K& A R #
114,400,0007T) - EE Bl 2 EEH W AR
B(RERX S KAR)D 5l /4,079,508
JC 8 14,221,425% 0 2 Rl HER AR
# 27,864,000 7T & A K ¥ 97,084,000 7T °
ZEBLFRBRHEIH FHABED
B E Uz A R #49,394,000t E R E =
—EEANF+ A=+ —BLEFEEN
RAEZEFNBRAMER-
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35. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued) 35. JEBESH(E)

The fair value of the embedded derivative of the Convertible
Bonds was calculated using certain valuation models. The major
inputs used in the models as at 31 December 2009 and 31
December 2008 were as follows:

Stock price % &

Exercise price THEE
Risk-free rate g e
Expected life & & B W F H
Volatility 1R

The stock prices were as at 31 December 2009 and 31 December
2008 respectively. The risk-free rates were determined with
reference to the Hong Kong Exchange Fund Notes Yields as
extracted from Bloomberg. The expected life was the remaining
life of the Convertible Bonds. The volatilities were determined
based on the historical price volatility of the Company.

Any changes in the major inputs used in the model will result in
changesin the fair value of the embedded derivative. The
variables and assumptions used in calculating the fair value of
the embedded derivative are based on the directors’ best
estimates.

RS2 AR ETET AR
BEGE AT AR S
ThEt-A=t-AR-%
ToAZt—A REERHE
EBHBEMT -

H%B
[l
il

1A
|

Redemption option of the Company
DR EEE

31 December

31 December

2009
—EENE
+=A
=+—H

HKDO0.99 T

HKD7.7777T

0.871%

40 monthsf{& A

82.85%

BRESBAR_-_ZZAFEF+_RA=T
—BR-ZFEENFL+_A=1+—HBH
TS -BRARBRANEE2REB
SEESFBRUEEIHHREZB)R
BT - B EARFHNIAIEBERESD
BRTFH - REARBARANESL
1B 1% K 08 M B8 o

MZEANETERRLREFMEEH -
BREERRAXTETANQIAEBE
HREH - FERAATELANR
REERAERANEHEEBRRITER
E=EMREMG-
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35. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued)
The movement of the liability component, the embedded
derivative and the equity component of the Convertible Bonds

35. WEBER(E)
FR-ATHEBREFHNEERD  RA
ATETAUNREZENNESHBER

(%)
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for the year is set out below:

As at 1 January 2008

R TIp N

Redemption

Liability option of the

component

s &G
RMB’000

AR¥TR

Company
AT
L
RMB’000
ARBTT

Equity
component

)
RMB’000

AR¥®TR

Total

att
RMB’000
AR¥TR

1,080,189 (46,171) 110,623 1,144,641
Interest charged during REE-_ZZTN\F
the year ended +-A=+—8H
31 December 2008 IEFEAPTET R
R B — 46,319
> Changes in fair value RREEES 42,495 42,495
g Derecognised due to REEE AR b
) redemption FER (97,281) 294 (1,459) (98.446)
o
s R-BENGF
= As at 31 December 2008 +=ZA=+—8 1,029,227 109,164 1,135,009
Interest charged during REBEZZTNGF
the year ended +=—A=+—8H
31 December 2009 (note 13) |- E AFTEHE
BIF S (BEE13) 39,369 39,369
Changes in fair value (note 13) QA EBEZEF)
(Pi7E13) (50,263) (50,263)
Derecognised due to H g B A% 1
redemption (i) TR0 (165,954) 2,154 (10,542) (174,342)
As at 31 December 2009 RZZBEENE
+=—A=+—H 902,642 (51,491) 98,622 949,773
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35. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued)
No conversion of the Convertible Bonds has occurred up to 31
December 2009.

The changes in the fair value of the embedded derivative from
31 December 2008 to 31 December 2009 resulted in a fair value
gain of RMB50,263,000, which has been recorded as “Fair value
changes on financial derivatives” in profit or loss for the year
ended 31 December 2009.

(i)  The allocation of consideration paid and transaction costs
for the redemption and calculation of resulting gain or loss
is as follows:

35. A ERES(E)
RE-FFAF+-A=+—AL
WA HRESESR

RARTETIEAENAABER-_ZZ
NEFEF+ZA=+—HE=-ZEZTNF T
ZA=Zt—BFEXANEHER AR
& 8% # A K 50,263,000t - 515
REWIABE_TTAFEF+=A=
T+T—HALEFEMNBEAGENTES
MIANARBEZE] -

() BEBEOSHENKERSSRE
BB R B E A B E A
m -

Carrying value Fair value Difference

BRMEE AREE =5

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T ARBF T ARBT R

Liability component BEHD 165,954 116,560 49,394
Issuer's redemption option %% 17 A &Y B& [0l & (2,154) (2,154) —
Equity component 1 25 2B 17,375 10,542 6,833
Total & & 181,175 124,948 56,227

36. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS

As stipulated by the regulations of the PRC, the Group
participates in various defined contribution retirement plans
organised by municipal and provincial government authorities
for its employees. The Group is required to make contributions
to the retirement plans at rates ranging from 20% to 22 % of
the salaries, wages, bonuses and certain allowances of the
employees. The local government authorities are responsible for
the entire pension obligations payable to retired employees.

The Group has no other obligations for the payment of pension
benefits associated with those schemes and other post-
retirement benefits beyond the annual contributions described
above.

36. EERKER

REFBEEIRAAT A5EAEESR
S E S E M\ kA RERFEP R
RERFEKRBMEE - NEE AR
BEWNF B TETARETERY
M20% £ 22% (A R 4K &1 8] 1 5K - & 1t
HRFHFMFEERNCRRRE XN 28
BIRE -

B FEHRKIN AKREYEE M
BERAZFmE REMERRRENOE
KREH-KEE-

BEHUsEE—
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37. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS 37. B X
§ On 30 October 2009, the Company granted 9,000,000 share NR_ZEENF+A=F+H'XRQalMm
§ options to one newly joined senior employee of the Group. The —ZHFMANAKEBREFREERFLE
2 options shall vest in the manner detailed in the following table. 9,000,000 BE X 2 - :Z S BB IR FE 1Y 8%
g No options may be exercised until after the expiry of 12 months EARAHFINR TR - REBHH%+
3 after the date of vesting. ZEAE Mm% 5 AI{T1E B -
2 (@) The terms and conditions of the grants are as () BHEENWBKIARKEHDT
g follows, whereby all options are settled by MAMEERENEBEEEXR
physical delivery of shares: TR EE:
Number of
shares involved Contractual
in the option Vesting condition life of options
WIS R FBIRER
HRGOEE BERG EHHER
Options granted to directors:
BRYESNBERE
—on 19 September 2006 7,500,000 (i) 25% on the date of grant at an exercisable price of HKD3.824 per 10 years

share; (ii) 25% on each of the first, second and third anniversary of the
date of grant at an exercisable price of HKD4.302 per share

g —RZETREAATNE R EEE H25%0 2T k3.8248 L& 1T £ E 104
= BE WA RLBHENE- B_LE=ZBABEFHH
;g BEH2% AU RERAZETHITEERE
=L
§ — on 3 December 2007 10,000,000 25% on the date of grant and on each of the first, second and third 5 years
= anniversary of the date of grant at an exercisable price of HKD6.526
per share
—RZZEE+F+R=H RELEALRBELBSHNE - F-_RE=ZEA 54
FHH DR EB25% K E A ETK65268 T
WITEE R B
Options granted to employees:
BT REEMNERE
—on 19 September 2006 11,040,000 (i) 25% on the date of grant at an exercisable price of HKD3.824 per 10 years

share; (i) 25% on each of the first, second and third anniversary of the

date of grant at an exercisable price of HKD4.302 per share
—RZZETRFNATNA ORELEBE25%]ZTR3SABTHITHEERE 104F

(IWWELBESEMNE— F_RE-HAAFRAHSH

25% Al IR B ARA302B T M ITHFEEF B

—on 10 October 2007 640,000 30% on the date of grant, 30% and 40% on the first and second 5 years
anniversary of the date of grant at an exercisable price of HKD6.3 per
share

—RZZE+F+ATH 30% R IE L E BB M30% &40% 5 Bl i A Ef 5%
WE-—RE_FBFHEBRATRGR63IEFETHITEE
5B
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37. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued) 37. R X (&)
(@) The terms and conditions of the grants are as () BRHEENKIAREHEDT - %?uf
follows, whereby all options are settled by METEBREHERAEER g
physical delivery of shares: (Continued) TRBEE: (&) i

bz
a

Number of

shares involved Contractual

==
)i‘a
at
i
5
all

in the option Vesting condition life of options
RBIREATS & MR AERY
WIRDBE HEFMS SRR

— on 30 October 2009 9,000,000 (i) 1/3 on the date of grant at an exercisable price of HKD4.59 per 5 years
share; (i) 1/3 before the first anniversary of the date of grant as and
when the average of the closing prices of the shares as stated in the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet for the past 10
consecutive business days immediately preceding the date is higher
than HKD8 at an exercisable price of HKD8.00 per share; (iii) 1/3
before the second anniversary of the date of grant as and when the
average of the closing prices of the shares as stated in the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet for the past 10 consecutive
business days immediately preceding the date is higher than HKD12 at

an exercisable price of HKD12.00 per share

—RIZEThF N1BREHE B AIEERAOETHITEESE () 54
+A=+H MBREHARNE-BABEFEHRIERNERZAA

ERXEBTEACXRCEEAB NS BARERM
5l 79 S 15 % 1 Uk T (B = FA 8 T B AT IR R 8.00% T
WITEERE (N 1B3RKXEHBANE ZERF A H
AMERREEZBAERAEBETACEXREE AN
XEERERMAINFAROETESRN12E T
B Al R T 1R 12.00%8 T 1T (B 5 B

Total share options

MR SIS FT 38,180,000
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37. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)

37. BB X (&)

(b) Fair value of shares involved in the options and
assumptions
The fair value of services received in return for share
options granted is measured by reference to the fair value
of share options granted. The estimate of the fair value of
the share options granted is measured based on a binomial
model. The contractual life of the share option is used as
an input into this model. Expectations of early exercise are
incorporated into the binomial model. For the share
options granted during the year, the inputs used in the
measurement of the fair values at grant date are as
follows:

b BREIRNKRONDAE
BEEEBR
VA #% B8 A 1 @ 3 AT e YRR 75
MARBEDNKS2EMRENE
BEMAABEFELFTE AR
HHWBRENAABENMGEET
B_nRAFE-BRENGH
HReEWBELEANRE &
HRFTRDIRFTAZTEN
REAMBRENBERENS A
EFERREAHNAAEBEN
HEWT

Granted in

October 2009

Fair value at grant date

REHAHNAAEE

R-BZENFT AR

HKD12,192,017%8 7T

Share price % & HKD4.477%& 7T
Exercise price THREE HKD4.59~HKD12.003# 7T
Expected volatility 8 HA % &) 79.36%
Option life B AR 4 B R 5 years*F
Risk-free interest rate (based on mE e X (RSB INE

Hong Kong Exchange Fund Notes Rate) AL ZEERMNXR) 1.73%
Expected Dividend Yield FE B R BomE R 2.01%

The expected volatility is determined with reference to the
historical volatilities of the share prices of the Company.
Expected dividend yield was determined with reference to
the historical dividend payment records of the Company.
Changesin the subjective input assumptions could
materially affect the fair value estimate.

The share options were granted under a service condition
and 2/3 of the share options were also granted under
market conditions. The market conditions have been taken
into account in the grant date fair value measurement of
the services received while the service condition has not
been taken into account.

BEHRPHIE2ERARATREBR
EWEIMETE - RHKRSE R
T2 E R R A B ENR B
THEMEE THHERINE
BREEHAABEAGTEKRE

By B
o

ZEBBRETDBRBRBGEERL
mmE P23 8B K #E TR 5 R
MEL-HRE LB HKERB
MAAEBENGFEDZS ETER
S IR G K AR B AR A
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37. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued) 37. R X

(c) The number and weighted average exercise (c)
price of share options are as follows:

Year ended
31 December 2009
BE_ZTNF
TA=T—HILFE
Number of
Weighted shares Weighted Number of

BREZCHEERNERESET
FEEWT :

Year ended
31 December 2008
BE_TT)\F
TZA=T—RHIEFE

average involvedinthe averageexercise  sharesinvolved

exercise price options price in the options
TR FERE

IEF P K #y ¥ FT% )
1T g 4E 17618 iEnE &

Outstanding at A

1 January WARTTE HKDA4.273%& 7t L HKDS.03278 T 29,180,000
Granted BEH HKD8.1973% T 9,000,000 — —
Exercised [REpREd — ~ HKD3.824/&7T (80,000)
Lapsed BRK HKDA4.5653% T (2435 000) NI OLYEE) Vv (16,315,000)
Outstanding at B+=A

31 December =+—H

WARTTE HKD6.0617% T U HKDA.2738TT 12,785,000

Exercisable at R+=A

31 December =+—H

{7 HKD4.1383& 7T AL HKDA12678 T 7,162,000

The options outstanding at 31 December 2009 have an
exercise price in the range of HKD3.824 to HKD12.00 and
a weighted average remaining contractual life of 5.76
years (2008: 7.46 years).

Mainly due to the newly granted 9,000,000 share options
to one senior employee during the year, an expense of
RMB6.5 million (2008: a net credit of RMBO0.6 million) is
charged to administrative expenses in profit or loss.

R-BEAF+=-A=+—AH
RITE2EREZTEEN T
3.8248 T £12.008 v 2 & - M &
BRIniEFHELERASTF (=
T NF:7465F)

* Z BN F A X 19,000,000
BERET - REXEE FAXA
R %6,500,000C(= & T )\ F : &
B E 5 ¥ %8 AR ¥%6000005T)E
REZRNTHRER —ENR-

=)

=) WE

==
)\13
af
i
5
all
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38. SHARE CAPITAL 38. | &
§ (a) Authorised and issued share capital (@) ZEREBHITRA
&
2 At 31 December 2009 and 2008
z R-ZEAFER-ZENEF
§ +-A=+—8~
@ The Group and the Company
5 AEBREAF
g No. of shares Amount
iz 1n £ B T
(thousand) HKD'000
(F &%) FA T
Authorised: ETE
Ordinary shares of HKDO.1 each FlREEIB TH @K 10,000,000 1,000,000

2009
—BBAF
No. of
shares of
nominal No. of shares
value of Nominal of nominal Nominal

HKDO.1 value of value of value of
each shares HKDO.1 each shares
EREE0.1 BRmEEO.1
A ITH PETTHY
RGEER B4 EE RIDEE BRI EE
(thousand) RMB’000 (thousand) RMB’000
TR AR%¥Tx T AREFT

>
S
>
=
[<9)
20
[}
o
o
=k
N
o
Q
©

gEThkfR:

Issued and fully paid:
At 1 January (i) »—HA—H) 1,030,115 104,818 1,037,500 105,571

Issuance of ordinary shares 17 1F B8 % 4

upon exercise of share BTEBER
options (note 37) (Fff 5£37) 80 7
Shares repurchased and e KRFHE
cancelled (b) A% 15 (b) (4,624) (CYA)] (7,465) (760)
m+=A
At 31 December =+—H 1,025,491 104,347 1,030,115 104,818
() Immediately after the completion of a global (i) BEEKEBEEN_ZTZTF
offering on 19 September 2006 and up to the NATHABE TKE REIEZ
beginning of 2008, the total number of issued ZEENFY BETRHE
shares was 1,037,500,000, of which an aggregate 27 51,037,500,0000% * HA &
of 287,500,000 shares were held by public $£287,500,000 % & 15 BB A &
shareholders, representing approximately 28% of fEERFHA  HERMDEHD
196 total number of shares. Each share has a par value of 28% > B AR W E 1B &0.1

HKDO.1. BT ©
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38. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued) 38. BRA (&)

(b) Repurchase of own shares (b) BE KWK HG %]%}
During the year ended 31 December 2009, the Company BE T hE+—_A=+—8I Im
repurchased its own ordinary shares on the Stock EE AR REEBASSHE H%
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited as follows: BRAFBOERSHEBRAT : =

o
Number of Highestprice Lowest price ;:'ﬁ
shares paid per paid per Aggregate =
Month/year repurchased share share price paid
XER XER
B/ & BOROEA BEE BEE - XNRER
Note HKD HKD RMB'000
By £ BT BT AREBTZR
June 2009 —ETAFERA ) 2,695,000 2.65 2.38 6,045
June 2009 ZEZENFARA ) 1,929,000 2.80 2.55 4,680
4,624,000 10,725
(i) Therepurchased shares were cancelled and (i) BOZKRMHE FAFEHE M

accordingly the issued share capital of the Company
was reduced by the nominal value of these shares.
Pursuant to section 37(4) of the Companies Law
(2007 Revision) of the Cayman Islands, an amount
equivalent to the par value of the shares cancelled of
RMB471,000 was transferred from retained profits
to the capital redemption reserve. The premium paid
on the repurchase of the shares of RMB10,254,000
was charged to share premium.

ZERNMz2EEREARAFLD
BIOIRAFREK - -BREFRAE
BHERBE(—ZETLEE
) E37NE - MERZED
HEBROMEEZEBEARE
471,000 7T E B & 88 & ) 85 &
BABERRE - BORG K
Fr 2 s B A R % 10,254,000
TERBRG=EEFR R -
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39. SHARE PREMIUM AND RESERVES

39, R R ERHE

§ (a) The Company (a) &2 F
&
2 Capital reserves
? (undistributable)
g EX@E (FISR)
3 Retained
,E_’ Capital - convertible profits/
5 Share  redemption Contributed bondsequity -employee (accumulated
g premium reserve surplus  component share option losses)
— &R
BAEE &% -fE8 RE&RH/
R EE 51 B4EH ERH2 BRE (RAEB) fi
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000
ARETRT  ARMTr ARMTR ARBTRT AREBTR AR®TRE ARBTrR
(note39(b))  (note 39(c) (note (i) (note 35) (note 37)
(M3E39(0)  (M&E39() (CiE0) (Mi&E35) (M&37)
At 1 January 2008 R-BEENE-A-H 2,084,437 - 308,439 110,623 35,918 (84,289) 2,455,128
Issue of shares 5840
—share option scheme —BERETE 456 - - - (177) - 279
Equity-settled share-based R &5 &) IR (7
transactions THR5 - - - - (568) - (568)
Repurchase of convertible 5 2] 7] & %
% bonds (note 35) &% (B 335) - - - (1,459) - - (1,459)
3 Purchase and cancellationof BB KT HE 5
s own shares (note 38): B 17 (B 5%38) :
z — premium paid —BREE (3,309) - - - - - (3,309)
§ — transfer between —GEHER
N Teserves - 760 - - - (760) -
3 Dividends declared to equity 2 [ R 5 B A
holders EN¥) - - - - - (149,549)  (149,549)
Profit for the year EREM - - - - - 187,170 187,170
At 31 December 2008 R-BENE+ZA
and 1 January 2009 =t-8K
ZE2AE-A-H 2081584 760 308,439 109,164 35,173 (47428) 2,487,692
Equity-settled share-based 1 E £ E & K 17
transactions YRR 5 - - - - 6,467 - 6,467
Repurchase of convertible  B§ [0 /] & 42
bonds (note 35) &% (M 335) - - - (10,542) - - (10,542)
Purchaseand cancellation  EBEERF#HEH
of ownshares (note 38): & 3 (ff 5%38) :
— premium paid —BEHEE (10,254) - - - - - (10,254)
— transfer between —HEEEH
reserves - an - - - (47 -
Dividends declared o BEREESEA
equity holders RS - - - - - (81,511) (81,511)
Profit for the year EERF - - - - - 134,585 134,585
At31 December 2009 RZZENE
+-A=t+-H 2,071,330 1,231 308,439 98,622 41,640 5175 2,526,437
Note (i): The excess of the consolidated net assets represented by BEaE() - & FEE (BATINE T

ARRNBBARARRE
AR BT AR ZER
MHEZEZH) ERERN
NG R RSB N RS
BBk -

the shares of the subsidiaries acquired over nominal value
of the shares issued by the Company in exchange under
the Reorganisation was transferred to the contributed
surplus account in the Company’s financial statements.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

PN & E X0

39. SHARE PREMIUM AND RESERVES (Continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Share premium

The application of the share premium account is governed
by the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands. Under the
Companies Law of the Cayman Islands (2007 Revision),
the funds in the share premium account of the Company
are distributable to the shareholders of the Company
provided that immediately following the date on which
the dividend is proposed to be distributed, the Company
will be in a position to pay off its debts as they fall due in
the ordinary course of the business.

Capital redemption reserve
Capital redemption reserve represents the nominal value
of the shares repurchased which has been paid out of the
Company’s distributable reserves.

Merger reserves

The merger reserves represent the difference between the
Company’s share of the nominal value of the paid-up
capital of the subsidiaries acquired over the nominal value
of the ordinary shares issued by the Company.

Revaluation reserve

The revaluation reserve relates to property reclassified
from owner-occupied to investment properties. For such
reclassifications, the cumulative increase in the fair value
of the property at the date of reclassification in excess of
any previous impairment losses isincluded in the
revaluation reserve.

3. RO aEBERBEHE)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

IR 10 % B

BEhaBERNDAXIAEHE R
REFTRE - RERSBESEARA
—EFTEFEIAN) ARAK
MEERNESA 2K TARBRKR
R-HERBEIRREEBRR AR
RINARRNEEREEBTHNE
HIETS -

EXEO @B
BEARBEDFEEEAARR A HD IR
R zERRHEE -

R
EHFEEERKBARAFARN
BEBRAEERZARRETHER
BEEMNEE -

EMfRE
EfERHERENOBRREMEN
BERYEER R EFEFOEM
EOUMERABEREFSEAEH
B 2 51 3 1R R 78 B 1E BB B 18 A K
Bt AEHEHE -

BEHUsEE—
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

RE MWK EEGE

39. SHARE PREMIUM AND RESERVES (Continued)

(f) PRCstatutory reserves
Transfers from retained earnings to PRC statutory reserves
were made in accordance with the relevant PRC rules and
regulations and the articles of association of the
Company’s subsidiaries incorporated in the PRC and were
approved by the respective boards of directors. The
statutory reserves consist of:

(i) General reserve fund
Transfers from retained earnings to the general
reserve fund were made in accordance with the
articles of association of the Company'’s subsidiaries
and were approved by the respective boards of
directors.

For the entity concerned, the general reserve fund
can be used to cover previous years’ losses, if any,
and may be converted into capital in proportion to
equity holders’ existing equity holdings, provided
that the balance after such conversion is not less
than 25% of their registered capital.

(ii) Enterprise expansion fund
Transfers from retained earnings to the enterprise
expansion fund were made in accordance with the
articles of association of the Company’s subsidiaries
and were approved by the respective boards of
directors.

For the entity concerned, the enterprise expansion
fund can be used for business development
purposes and for working capital purpose. This fund
is non-distributable other than upon liquidation.
Transfers to this fund must be made before
distribution of dividends to the equity holders.

(g) Translation reserve
The translation reserve comprises all foreign currency
differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of foreign operations. The reserve is dealt with
in accordance with the accounting policy set out in note

3(b)(ii).

39. 10 B R & & (4F)
(H HEEEHE
B R B ) 8 8 = oh BOR S 4R T
RIEA B B G RAGIEARF
EREFEMRIFARANERAA
BT UEEAEEGHE - AT
BB e

() ZEBBLIESE
HEREAEMNBREEAERS
AREIREARA T QA
MERMAET XRZA
EFEEME-

REBNARME  AER
BRABTURERBALFE
EBR(WE)  TARRERS
BARBNFREM LIRS
A ELBRREHRTIED
REMEARN25% °

(i) EEBXRES
HMARBENBRECEHER
EEeDRBARAFRAN
ERAUNET XBREE
=gk -

SREBMARME  BEH
RECAREXZHERLE
BES BARN ZER
ANk - AREREAD
&R B & TR REEF
BREZES -

(90 EXFE
EXFEREERMAERBRERINES
M BEREMELNINEEZE - %
ERFE D REBEWMEONFEN S
ABURBE R ©



Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

RE MWK EEGE

39. SHARE PREMIUM AND RESERVES (Continued)
(h) Distributable reserve

39. W1 m B R ()
(h) & 7k f# &

As at 31 December 2009, the aggregate amount of
reserves available for distribution to equity shareholders of
the Company was RMB2,386,175,000 (2008:
RMB2,343,355,000).

Capital management

The Group’s primary objective in managing capital is to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, so that it can continue to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, by
pricing products and services commensurate with the level
of risks and by securing access to finance at a reasonable
cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its
capital structure to maintain a balance between the higher
shareholders returns that might be possible with higher
levels of borrowing and the advantages and security
afforded by a sound capital position, and makes
adjustments to the capital structure in light of changes in
economic conditions.

Consistent with industry practice, the Group monitors its
capital structure on the basis of a net debt-to-adjusted
equity ratio. For this purpose the Group defines net debt
as total debt (including interest-bearing loans, convertible
bonds, long-term payable, trade, other payables and
advance receipts) plus unaccrued proposed dividends, less
cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash. Adjusted
capital comprises all components of equity less unaccrued
proposed dividends.

The net debt-to-adjusted equity ratio as at 31 December
2009 was 159% (2008: 100%). There were no changes in
the Group's approach to capital management during the
year.

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are subject
to externally imposed capital requirements.

RZBEZAE+-_RA=+—8H "7
ARTARABRENEHERBRER
A R #2,386,175,000 ¢ ( — T T )\
F : AR#¥2,343,3550007C) °

EXER
AEBEREAZERZARDRE
AEERPHEERBFELERE
g femiE s EERK R R
ZEMMREEEBARERSEERK
AHBE  FESKRREERDRK
REMANmBEE SRS -

AREEBEE R EMNEEARBET
BEMERE  LWERSBRRE®RIS
MTARFHEZRESEEKFEE
i B0 & A AR R 4 R AR IR 2
REGE - WEAEKERENE
EHEARBELRHE -

REBTEED  AEEFEENG
AR RIEREEEARRE
MEE - DIt ANEERTEFER
REER(BEFEER AJE#R
B5 REEMK  BAERER A
i, F& 5 SRR R FEURRIR) IR E A&
ZRKBEBRERERAEEEY
REZRHRAE KRB BREE
;2B R R A R E A 2 R AR

B o

oy

R—ZZhFE+-_A=+—8 %
BEMCHEEREER159% (=
ZENEF - 100%) - FA - AEH
LEREBT AN ERE o
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

RE MWK EEGE

40. FINANCIAL GUARANTEES

41.

The Group has arranged mortgage loan facilities for certain
purchasers of property units and provided financial guarantees
to secure obligations of such purchasers for repayments. The
outstanding guarantees amounted to RMB948,420,000 as at 31
December 2009 (2008: RMB298,117,000). Such guarantees
terminate upon the earlier of (i) the issuance of the real estate
ownership certificate which will generally be available within six
months after the buyer takes possession of the relevant
properties; and (ii) the satisfaction of the mortgaged loan by the
buyer of the properties.

In the opinion of directors of the Company, the fair values of the
financial guarantee contracts of the Group are insignificant at
initial recognition and the directors consider the possibility of
default by the parties involved to be remote. Accordingly, no
value has been recognised in the balance sheet as at 31
December 2009.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Group conducts its operations in the PRC and accordingly is
subject to special considerations and significant risks. These
include risks associated with, among others, the political,
economic and legal environment, influence of national
authorities over pricing regulation and competition in the
industry.

The Group has exposure to the following risks from its use of
financial instruments:

. credit risk

° liquidity risk

° market risk (including interest rate risk, currency risk and
equity price risk)

40.

41.

B 3% 1B R
AEBERIOMEELNE FIRHEIR
BEN UHZEEFTNERETREHG
MBER RZZEZNF+A=+—
H: BEELOEREAR48,420,000
T(ZZTZENF: AR ®298,117,000
TL) o ZEERPRUATEREHELRIE : ()
BYEWEMAEFE(—REEHE
EFEBMERANEARANEL) R Kii)
MEBHEERBERE -

ARBEERAR  AEBEHBERE D
REXABEREOHNAABERE ME
ERBEABIHNNTENNREERN - B
- YER_FEAFT_A=1+—H
MEERBEXRTHERTMER-
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AEBEFHRKLERT  HAXBFER
ERBERARREE  ERFBEBA &
BRABIRE  BREBERERE
MEERTEHRFFAR -
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

RE MWK EEGE

41.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

This note presents information about the Group’s exposure to
each of the above risks, and the Group's objectives, policies and
processes for measuring and managing risk.

Management has overall responsibility for the establishment and
oversight of the Group’s risk management framework.
Management establishes policies to identify and analyse the risks
faced by the Group, to set up appropriate risk limits and
controls, and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk
management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to
reflect changes in market conditions and the Group’s activities.
Through training and management standards and procedures,
management aims to develop a disciplined and constructive
control environment in which all employees understand their
roles and obligations.

(a) Creditrisk
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if a
customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to
meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally from
the Group’s trade and other receivables and investments.

The Group’s management has a credit policy in place and
exposure to credit risk is monitored on an ongoing basis.

The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to trade,
other receivables and advance deposits. In respect of trade
and other receivables, individual credit evaluations are
performed on each new customer. The Group’s review
includes external ratings, when available, and in some
cases bank references. These evaluations focus on the
customer’s liquidity to make payments when due and
current ability to pay, and take into account information
specific to the customer as well as pertaining to the
economic environment in which the customer operates.
Customers are generally required to transact with the
Group on a prepayment basis. The Group generally offers
no credit terms to customers and does not usually obtain
collateral from customers.

41.
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RE MWK EEGE

41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 41. €@ IT H(E)
(@) Credit risk (Continued) ) EERME)
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The Group's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by
the individual characteristics of each customer. The default
risk of the industry and country in which customers
operate also has influences on credit risk, but to a lesser
extent. At the balance sheet date, the Group had a certain
concentration of credit at 53% (2008: 81%) of the total
trade, other receivables and advance deposits arising from
the Group’s deposits for land acquisition. These deposits
will be transferred to the cost of properties under
development upon the Group obtaining the relevant land
use rights.

The maximum exposure to credit risk without taking
account of any collateral held is represented by the
carrying amount of each financial asset, including
derivative financial instruments, in the balance sheet after
deducting any impairment allowance. Except for the
financial guarantees given by the Group as set out in note
40, the Group does not provide any other guarantees
which would expose the Group or the Company to credit
risk. The maximum exposure to credit risk in respect of
these financial guarantees at the balance sheet date is
disclosed in note 40.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from trade, other receivables
and advance deposits are set out in note 28.

Cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash are placed
with a group of banks and financial institutions which
management considers have good credit ratings.
Investments are normally only in liquid securities quoted
on a recognised stock exchange and management does
not expect any investment counterparty to fail to meet its
obligations.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to
meet its financial obligations as they fall due. The Group’s
policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity requirements and
its compliance with lending covenants, to ensure that it
maintains sufficient reserves of cash and adequate
committed lines of funding from banks to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and longer term.

AEBENEERRIEXSERPH
BREBRMEE BFPEETER
BROENRREEERRITE R
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
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41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 4. €M I AE)

(b) Liquidity risk (Continued) (b) FEMERE) %?u‘}
The following table details the remaining contractual T 3% 2 it A *MEI$§EK@3E’0T$$ m
maturities at the balance sheet of the Group’s non- BmEEETAYRENDHES H%
derivative financial liabilities, which are based on TR B e H K Eiﬁiﬁﬁ,,wi(@ﬁ =
contractual undiscounted cash flows (including interest BAENFES (HBEH) L& ot
payments computed using contractual rates or, if floating, wHMRFENF BN BA % ’;g
based on rates current at the balance sheet date) and the BRgcEZENSHNEE A A 2
earliest date the Group can be required to pay: EY -

Undiscounted Within 1year Within 2 Within 5
Carrying  contractual oron years but years but

31 December 2009 amount cash flow demand  over1year over2years Over5years
RERETH —FRZ MEA AERA

ZE2EAFT-A=1-H fREfE BeRE REX  A-FUE EREUL RERE

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AR%TR AR%TRE AR¥TrT AR®Tn AR®TR ARET:R

Trade, other payables and AR Ef
advance receipts excluding JE A 3B R B M

advance receipts from REETEE

customers BWMEFRA 2,013,928 (2,013,928)  (1,972,387) (41,541) - -
Secured interest-bearing loans BREANEER 4,487,039 (5102,132)  (1,512,946)  (1,187,486)  (1,743,858) (657,842)
Unsecured interest-bearing loans £ 4 # 3t 8 5 7t 800,000 (860,607) (860,607) - - -
Long-term payable RHERR 51,301 (78,000) (6,000) (6,000 (18,000  (48,000)
Convertible bonds EBRES 902,642 (951,362) - (951,362) -

8,254,910 (9,006,029)  (4,351,940)  (1,235,027)  (2,713,220) (705,842)

Undiscounted Within 2 years  Within 5 years
Carrying contractual ~ Within 1 year but over 1 but over 2
31 December 2008 amount cash flow oron demand year years  Over 5 years
B AT 4) —FR% EFR RENR
FZ\F+-A=1—H RHE ; BER  BA-FME  ERFENME AFNAE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT \RETT ARBTT ARETT ARETT ARET:
Trade, other payables and ERRF At
advance receipts excluding JE A 3 R B M
advance receipts from REETEE
customers BhEPHE 858,352 (858,352) (788,353) (69,999) - -
Secured interest-bearing loans ~ HE A B ER 1,516,860 (1,695,756) (412,919) (571,558) (481,830) (229,449)
Unsecured interest-bearing loans 3% 3B 5t 8 § % 205,000 212,073)  (212,073) - - -
Long-term payable REEMAR 55,013 (84,000) (6,000) (6,000) (18,000) (54,000)
Convertible bonds MEHES 1029227 (1,183,239) - - (1,183,235 -

3,664,452 (4,033,416)  (1,419,345) (647,557)  (1,683,065) (283,449)
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

VAAN
w7

41.

B 7% ¥R R MY R (8

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(9]

Interest rate risk

The Group's interest rate risk arises primarily from interest-
bearing loans, convertible bonds, cash and cash
equivalents and restricted cash.

Cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash comprise
mainly cash at bank, with an interest rate of 0.36% per
annum as at 31 December 2009 (2008: 0.36 % per
annum). Pledged bank deposits and time deposits
maturing after three months are not held for speculative
purposes but are placed to satisfy conditions for borrowing
facilities granted to the Group and for higher yield returns
than cash at bank.

The Group's variable rate borrowings are exposed to a risk
of change in cash flows due to changes in interest rates.
The interest rates and terms of repayment of the interest-
bearing loans and convertible bonds are disclosed in notes
32 and 35.

The Group manages the net exposure to interest rate risks
by maintaining sufficient lines of credit to obtain
acceptable lending costs and by monitoring the exposure
to such risks on an ongoing basis. Management does not
enter into interest rate hedging transactions since it is
considered that the cost of such instruments outweigh the
potential risk of interest rate fluctuation.

41. €I A(E)

(c)

A = =@ b
AEEMFNERBREEZEREAEE
RoAERES ReRRASEE
MEZRFRE
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HRITERR =M A LA EH
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B ARAETHEILRITERR
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
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41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 4. eI AE)
(c) Interest rate risk (Continued) () F =& AEZE)
(i) Interest rate profile i) ANBBHER
The following table details the interest rate profile of TEHMNEEAEENST AR
the Group's interest-bearing borrowings at the HF RN o

balance sheet date.

2009 2008
ZEENE —TENF
Effective Effective
interest rate interest rate

BN ZE EER &
% RMB’000 % RMB'000
ARBT R ARETTT

Fixed rate borrowings ERNEER
Secured interest-bearing A 1K 3R 5t &

loans =5 2.01% 691,747 6.81% 250,000
Unsecured interest- mI T B

bearing loans B 6.52% 800,000 7.59% 200,000
Convertible bonds AEBRES 4.24% 902,642 4.24% 1,029,227

2,394,389 1,479,227

Variable rate borrowings 7 % F| = {& &
Secured interest-bearing B I B

=

loans = ] 3,795,292 6.85% 1,266,860
Unsecured interest-bearing 4 & #f & &,
loans B® 6.63% 5,000
3,795,292 1,271,860
Total borrowings EEBE 6,189,681 2,751,087
Fixed rate borrowingsasa [ & | & (& &
percentage of total 1518 E 1B
borrowings BaoL 54%
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41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 41. €@ T A(E)

(c) Interest rate risk (Continued) (0 FERKE)
(i) Sensitivity analysis (i) BRE DN
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The Group does not account for any fixed rate
financial assets and liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss and equity. Therefore, a change in
interest rates at the reporting date would not affect
profit or loss and equity.

A change of 100 basis pointsin interest rates
applicable to variable rate instruments at the
reporting date would have increased/(decreased)
equity and profit or loss by the amounts shown

AEBYEFTARRAEE
SRR A 18 2 N 4 o5 B 72 AV (&
ENEemEERAR-
It R E B B AR R &

reREEa LS -

RBEAHAENXTAEEA
28 ) = & 2100 & £ B 5 18 40
SO EaRER 8
IIRTR - "D BRERAE

below. This analysis assumes that all other variables,
in particular foreign currency rates, remain constant.
The analysis is performed on the same basis as in
2008.

Hr#EE(LERINEE
K)RFTE - _TTN\FH
DITIRIAR BT o

Profit or (loss) Equity

A = (5 18) xR

100 bp 100 bp 100 bp
increase decrease increase
WA 10018  1ZHN1001E

100 bp
decrease
B 10018

#411001E
HE HE 2 HE
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RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTE ARETE ARETT ARETRE

31 December 2009 —EZAE
+t=ZA=+-—-8

Variable rate

instruments AR ETA
31 December 2008 —EENE
+t=RAR=+—-H

Variable rate

instruments A NR T A (9,539) 9,539 (9,539) 9,539

208
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41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(d) Currency risk

Renminbi is not freely convertible into foreign currencies.
All foreign exchange transactions involving Renminbi must
take place through the People’s Bank of China or other
institutions authorised to buy and sell foreign exchange.
The exchange rates adopted for the foreign exchange
transactions are the rates of exchange quoted by the
People’s Bank of China and are determined largely by
supply and demand.

The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk primarily
through borrowings that are denominated in a currency
other than the functional currency of the operations to
which they relate. The currencies in which these
transactions primarily are denominated are Hong Kong
Dollars (HKD) and United States Dollars (USD).

In respect of the monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies, the Group ensures
that the net exposures to this risk is kept to an acceptable
level by buying or selling foreign currencies at spot rates
where necessary to address short-term imbalances. The
currencies primarily giving rise to this risk are USD and
HKD. Management does not enter into currency hedging
transactions since it considers that the cost of such
instruments outweighs the potential risk of exchange rate
fluctuations.

41. €I A(E)

(d)

B E R
ARBEIABRABRING - TE
BRARBHINER ZREBERTE
ARBITREMERBETINEER
BENRBET IEXSHRMANE
RNHFBEARRITAHROER (X
BRHEKEE) °

AREBEAZIERRE - EZ2EBIA
EBNEEREAIINNEE (R
ERERFENER - ZEXH
TR ENEERETRRET -

BRANIIEAENEEEERE
B AKERBVERIUREER
BEEINE  BREFEABRRTER
BEREOKF - UEREHT T -
EEZRBHNERTEZRETR
BT BEEUEBETEEH TR
7 RAEAREEEBRS/EETAN
RABRE R RS EERR

BEHUsEE—




Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
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41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(d) Currency risk (Continued)
(i) Exposure to currency risk
The following table details the Group’s exposure at
the balance sheet date to currency risk arising from
recognised assets or liabilities denominated in a
currency other than the functional currency of the
entity based on notional amounts.

w
bl
(9}
[
)
S
o
_
T
o
=
5
Q
J
o
(=
3
=
]
o

31 December 2009

41. €I A(E)

(d)

EWERGE)
() E¥ER

TERALAEEREERE
ERERRBRBRERERBE N
ERDESENINEEF
BENEEXRENEYRR -

—EB2RAF+=-A=+—H

Trade, other receivables and fE W BR B H M
advance deposits JE W I A R
ERiEe
Cash and cash equivalents RehBESEEY
Interest-bearing borrowings SFEE R
Overall exposure 4R b

6007 Hoday [enuuy

31 December 2008

“EEAF+-A=+-A

Trade, other receivables and EUBR R E
advance deposits FE U SR TE A &
ICRNE 52 4,474
Cash and cash equivalents HeNBELEEY 91,637 6,589
Trade, other payables and JE S BR B E h E S BB
advance receipts LA K 78 U 5% 3B (110) (5,881)
Overall exposure 423 91,579 5,182
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41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 41. €@ T AE)

during the year:

Average rates

(d) Currency risk (Continued) d) E¥EEE)
The following significant exchange rates applied WTAERNEANEBEER

Reporting date spot rate

FiIER BEAWPREER
2009 2008 2009 2008
—EBNE —“TIT\F ZBEAE —TT)N\F
HKD 1 148 7T 0.8919 0.8819
usb 1 1% 7T 6.9451 6.8346
(ii) Sensitivity analysis (i) MREDW
The following table indicates the approximate TEBBR MARBHEUT

change in the Group's profit and other components
of consolidated equity in response toa 5%
strengthening of the RMB against the foreign
currencies to which the Group had exposure at the
balance sheet date. This analysis assumes that the
reasonably possible change in foreign exchange
rates had occurred at the balance sheet date and
had been applied to each for the Group entities’
exposure to currency risk for financial instruments in
existence at that date, and that all other variables, in
particular interest rates, remain constant. The
analysis is performed on the same basis for 2008.

HKD
usb

A 5% weakening of the RMB against the above
currencies at 31 December would have had the
equal but opposite effect on the above currencies to
the amounts shown above, on the basis that all
other variables remain constant.

AEEREE BB AR
BIHES%  AEBE N R
AR mEMEy RO E
B ADMBRERZEEH
BAEAREARENINEE X
B IEFEAEERER
RZBAGFENERTAER
R BFAEMAIERER
(RERME)RFEAE - —
TEENFNONMLZEREE
HEAT o

Profit or (loss)

% ) % 5 #8)
2009 2008
—ETNE —EENF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARMF T ARET T
(3,029)
(1,328)

MARSR+=-A=+—8
BT E5% ¢ Bk
REEEAEER LR HE
BARFANEE  BRA
EEMTEEERETE -
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41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 4. €I AEE)
(e) Equity price risk () REEXER
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The Group is exposed to equity price risk arising from
changes in the Company’s own share price to the extent
that the Company’s own equity instruments underlie the
fair values of financial derivatives of the Group. As at the
balance sheet date the Group is exposed to this risk
through the redemption rights attached to the Convertible
Bonds issued by the Company as disclosed in note 35.

Fair values
(i) Financial instruments carried at fair value

The following table presents the carrying value of
financial instruments measured at fair value at the
balance sheet date across the three levels of the fair
value hierarchy defined in IFRS 7, Financial
Instruments: Disclosure, with the fair value of each
financial instrument categorised in its entirety based
on the lowest level of input that is significant to that
fair value measurement. The levels are defined as
follows:

. Level 1 (highest level): fair values measured
using quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical financial instruments.

° Level 2: fair values measured using quoted
prices in active markets for similar financial
instruments, or using valuation techniques in
which all significant inputs are directly or
indirectly based on observable market data.

. Level 3 (lowest level): fair values measured
using valuation techniques in which any
significant input is not based on observable
market data.

AEBAIKEARNRAANT REZ
BmMELNERERRAR  HEURX
RAAGEGTAERNAEEITE
EMITARABETERR - RN
R AEEEBARARETHA
BHES (R E3SPRE) PAH
EHEOREAZZAR -

NREE
() A2RBEEIRZER
TA

TREIRNEEBEBERY
BREERNETFIB TR
BEIMREZAABE=
ERBH HAnBEME
ZEMTAZERE M
TRTEZAABENREZ
MhEBEEFEBERZ&E
BX@ A \BEMERBIE-
IR EZBRIAT :

- HE-EREBEER:
WEA S BT ARE
BB 45 F % 8 1 (R 40

BB R EE-

e FER:NEMUTE
TEREEM S HRE -
3 DA B BT (H & pr
BEERBGABEIE
EXEEATEED
LHEEBERA)GFERR
EfE-

s FZERERERER:
REERMEFMA
ERGABEIDYLF
AEEMSHEERAK)

GHEAREE
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41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(f) Fair values (Continued)
(i) Financial instruments carried at fair value
(Continued)
2009

Level 1

F—BR
RMB’000
AR®TR

Assets EE

Equity securitiesheld i {EE & &)
for trading g 7N 7% %

Financial derivatives TEemMIA

41. €I EH(E)
f) DAEEGE)

=)

() A2ABEIRZEH
TAGE)
—

The Group
KM

Level 2

EFZER

RMB’000

AR¥T T

g
=
B
==
)\13
af
o
P
5
all

Total

et
RMB’000
AR%T T

Level 3
E=EBIR
RMB’000

AR%T T

- 1,228
51,491 51,491

51,491

LY A L)

The Company
VNN
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E—BIX EEIX E=BIR 4t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR AR®TR AR¥Trx AR%¥Trx
Assets =
Financial derivatives MTESmITA - 51,491 - 51,491
- 51,491 - 51,491

During the year there were no significant transfers
between instruments in Level 1 and Level 2.

F-EBREEF_ERZIA
ZEEFALEERER-
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41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 41. M IT BE(E)

§ (f) Fair values (Continued) f DREEE)

5 (i) Fair values of financial instruments carried (i) YHEAXABEIEZZ
2 at other than fair value MTEZAREE

g The fair values of financial instruments carried at N-ZEETNEFER_EZENEF
2 cost or amortised cost as at 31 December 2009 and + = B =1 B LARK 7 3t # 85
‘;"_ 2008, together with the carrying amounts shown in KAFNERGEBEARES
% the consolidated balance sheet, are as follows: e TAEZAABEALEE
= HEMT :

2009 2008
—2ENF —TTNF
Carrying Carrying

amount Fair value amount Fair value
FREE AREE AREE NREBE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARTR AR¥TR ARETT AR%ETT

Available-for-sale Al E SR
financial assets & E - -

> Trade, other receivables & U BE 7% -

gg_, and advance deposits H b fE U 3K

ot REMZES 1,340,466 1,340,466
% Cash and cash Re kB2

% equivalents EEY 943,302 943,302

Trade, other payables  J& <t BE 3% -
and advance receipts H b fE 1 3K

K 38 W 5K IR (1,895,128)  (1,895,128)
Interest-bearing loans &t B & 3 (1,721,860)  (1,721,860)
Long-term payable £ B & 5P R (55,013) (55,013)
Convertible bonds Al 8 R E % (1,029,227)  (1,029,227)
(g) Estimation of fair values (90 2AEEMG
Fair value estimates are made at a specific point in time NREEGEEE—(EE TR
and based on relevant market information and information HHEETMEEREEEZeRmT A
about the financial instrument. These estimates are HEARMEY - AN ZEGSAE
subjective in nature and involve uncertainties and matters FTBXE BSRTHBAEZEA
of significant judgment and therefore cannot be EARREEMABLHE  WERER—
determined with precision. Changes in assumptions could FTDER o IRBR e
significantly affect the estimates. HAt e YEHEA T AZE -
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41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(g) Estimation of fair values (Continued)
The following methods and assumptions were used to

estimate the fair value for each class of financial

instruments:

0]

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

Cash and cash equivalents, restricted cash,
trade, other receivables and advance
deposits and trade, other payables and
advance receipts

The carrying values approximate fair value because
of the short maturities of these instruments.

Equity securities held for trading

Fair value is based on quoted market prices at the
balance sheet date without any deduction for
transaction costs.

Interest-bearing loans

The carrying amounts of bank loans approximate
their fair value based on the borrowing rate currently
available for bank loans with similar terms and
maturity.

Long-term payable

The fair value of long-term payable is estimated as
the present value of future cash flows, discounted at
the market rate of interest at the reporting date.

Convertible bonds

An external independent valuation company, with
appropriate recognised professional qualifications,
values the Company’s convertible bonds at each
balance sheet date. Appropriate valuation methods
and assumptions with reference to market
conditions existing at each balance sheet date to
determine the fair value of the embedded financial
derivative of the convertible bonds that is separated
from the host debt contract are adopted. The basis
for determining the fair value is disclosed in note 35.

SRITAE)

(90 2AEEMTE)
HHEENLRIAED AL BEBE
AUTHERBS
i) REeRBELEEY -ZR

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

HRE - EBRER Hit
EURERANRE B
NEFR HEMEENRER
A&
HMRZETAHEEHANE
H-HEEEREAALEEM
T o

BEXZENHNESZES

NABENDBERGLEEB A
BWE(TMNBEAR S K
K)FHE -

it R E X

AR 4% 3R B A] 2% BB R R &% B
HHEI?FE“EI’J%E TERNEER
M= R ITE A R (E E
’Aﬁfﬂﬁ*ﬁ

= B K
EHEMNFTNAIABEER

KRERENREETH
X BRNRERBHOTS

R o

WEBRE s
REBEERBXRA > —HI
ﬁM%i}ﬁlJ%Eﬂi”_(EZiﬁlJéﬁﬂiﬁ
BEEEEERAZEXER)

BARQ R R A B ERETT
e RRARREEBILR
TEBAONATERESDN
BRAATEEMTANAAR
BEEM2BRRIEEAER
AMBETHRRRAEE G
BEREAERB&R -BEAAE
B EERM EISWE -

BHHUEsE—




Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

e B S R R I R (&)

41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 41. @I EE)
§ (g) Estimation of fair values (Continued) (9) 2AEEME)
5 (vi) Financial guarantees (v) MEER
o The fairvalue of financial guarantees issued is BRYHEERONALEE
g determined by reference to fees charged in arms’ Ty 2 BBk A F E B a5E R
2 length transaction for similar services, when such W B EmEE (e
‘;"_ information is obtainable, or is otherwise estimated HAEHZER) 2B =X
% by reference to interest rate differentials, by EEMEBET EEE AL
= comparing the actual rates charged by lenders when HIEMREB T BT 8B R
the guarantee is made available with the estimated MZE . B EEREREBER
rates that lenders would have charged, had the T B Uk B &9 FI) 2= 4E B R R
guarantees not been available, where reliable e B RE R EL T &MY
estimates of such information can be made. The H) o EEARBEMEER
basis for determining the fair value is disclosed in MsT40 E -
note 40.
(vii) Interest rates used for determining fair i) B EEELACAEE 2 A
value b3
The interest rates used to discount estimated cash RABREABRSRE (KB
flows, when applicable, are based on the ) Wi BR®E B E 8 BT
government yield curve at the reporting date plus an ZEHENEEEHNEE B
adequate credit spread, and were as follows: EREENHFRMT

>
o}
=)
=
Q
=
(15}
°
o]
=
N
o
o
©

Long-term payable & 2 & 3K 6.90%
Interest-bearing loans TR EX 5.67% —8.316%
Convertible bonds FTERES 4.243%
42. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 42. REHEEAE
(i) Leases as lessee (i) EEAEZRBANEE
Non-cancellable operating lease rentals are payable as OB ELFE AR U TR Y
follows: WAL mT :
2009 2008
—EENF —ETNEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBFIT
Less than one year —E R 8,775
Between one and five years —FERF 550
Total a5t 9,325
The leases, in respect of office rental charges, run for a EPFAEHeRAXARNEELER
period within five years. FARREM -
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42. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS (Continued) 42. REHEERIEE)

(ii) Leases as lessor (i) EALBANES %?uf
The Group leases out its properties, which include AEBRERKLHEELAYE & m
investment properties and completed properties held for I AELTREYHANDERE H%
sale leased out on a temporary basis, under operating EYE . BIETANEESEARE =
leases. The future minimum lease payments under non- R THBESNB B RERES Pl
cancellable leases are as follows: HINE : g

]

2009 2008

—EEAF —TT)N\F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T R AREFIT

Less than one year —F R 26,074

Between one and five years —FERF 100,168

More than five years HBiE A F 264,216

Total & & 390,458
For the year ended 31 December 2009, RMB27,271,000 BErE—_EZEZENAEF+_HA=+—8H
(2008: RMB26,920,000) was recognised as rental income IFEE O EMETERER
in respect of investment properties in profit or loss. W& WA R A K27,271,000 7T
ZZTENEF A K 26,920,000

JC) °
43. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 43. E R K IE

2009 2008

—EENF —EENF

RMB’000 RMB’'000

AR¥T AREFIT

Property development activities: MEBREY
— Contracted but not provided for —BERTHEREE 3,281,935
— Authorised but not contracted for —BEEBEERETY 4,369,492

Total & & 7,651,427
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44. RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS 4. BEANLT X F

= Particulars of significant transactions between the Group and AREBHETHEAT(AQTBEEHK

a certain related parties in which a director or shareholder of the BHEAIUEFEEASEEZ ) NEAR

%’_ Company is in a position to exercise significant influence are as SEHBWNT

= follows:

<

§' (@)  During the year ended 31 December 2009, transactions @) REBE-—_ZZAF+=-_A=+—H

'!'_f with the following parties were considered as related- HEE EUTATETHRZSE

= party transactions: BEEBEALRS :

(0]

= Name of party Relationship
BRALEE %
— Mr Wang Weixian The founding equity holder and Chairman of

B the Company; Controlling shareholder

of the Company’s ultimate holding company
AABEIMBEREARIE
RARKGREZER A AR FERR R

— Starwaly Properties (Group) Pty Ltd. ("SPG") Controlled by Mr. Wang Weixian
HERBELAEES
— Shanghai ZhongXin An associate of the Company
— LBRE ZANVNESTR: D) RN
>
§ — Shanghai Yunjie Real Estate Consultancy Controlled by a director of various operating
2—; Company Limited (“Shanghai Yunjie") subsidiaries
3 — tBEARNFHEZABRAA (N LEBENR]) HEREEFTARN —(LEETES
p=1A
N
% — Shenzhen Huibo Investment Development A minority equity holder of Sipo Education
Company Limited (“Huibo") BEHENLBREREA

—FYTEBREERBERAR ([EF])

— Peninsula Waitan 50% indirectly owned by Delta Link
—HNEFE FA Delta Link [ % # 5 50%
— Shanghai Sendao Xinxing Men Chuang Co., Ltd Controlled by a close family member of

("Sendao”) Mr. Wang Weixian
— bEREHUMEARAR(THRSE]) B2 B 5 4 60 iR
— Wuxi Guolian Former minority equity holder of Wuxi Guosheng and
— 5 [ Bt Wuxi Shenglian

EHBEERESBRBORDBRERAA

— Prestige Glory Enterprises Limited (" Prestige Glory"”) Equity holder of the Company and owned by
Mr. Wang Weixian
RAGHREFREARBIEEREES

— Boom Rich Investment Limited (“Boom Rich”) Equity holder of the Company  and owned by
Ms. Wang Xuling
RAABIREHFAEARBEIRZLLIHAR

— SPG Investment Holdings Limited (“SPG Investment") Equity holder of the Company and owned by
Ms. Wang Xuling
ARARIREFEBEARBTERZELZLHE
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44. RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 4. BEALTR B (E)
(b) Recurring transactions b) BREXS

2009 2008
—ETAEF —ETNF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARETT

Construction cost: J 45 KA
Sendao HE 11,994

Sales commission expense: HEMESRX:

Shanghai Yunjie EBER 8,000

Sales of service: R 75 86 & -
Peninsula Waitan NEF S 11,784

Consulting expense: BRER:
Shanghai Zhongxin LERE 941

Construction cost, sales commission expense and sales of FEERA  HERAESHE I REERBERAR
services were charged based on the services rendered by BERABEAITRMASEBERENRE NG @iz
the related parties to the Group and in accordance with TR ER -

the terms of the underlying agreements.

The directors of the Company are of the opinion that the ARAEERELNBEALIRSEZ KA
above related-party transactions were conducted on FIERFHET WREBFEBKBREREREM
normal commercial terms and were priced with reference BETEER-

to prevailing market prices, and in the ordinary course of
business.
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44. RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 4. BEATXR 5 (E)
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(c) Balance with related parties (0 EHEBMEALTHER
As at the end of 2009, the Group had the following BE_TTNFE AEEHEHEE
balances with related parties: AT BT &4 :

Trade balances due from related parties

2009 2008
—sENE

—EENF
RMB’'000
ARETIT

RMB’000
AR®T

FE U A= A £ SRR A R

(note 28): (Kt 7x28) -
Peninsula Waitan INEEE S 982
Non-trade balances due from related fEUFEE A+ E b E
parties (note 28): W FK 48 4 (B 51 28) -
Mr. Wang Weixian and his close FTRELEERALIRN
family members -
Prestige Glory Prestige Glory 8
Boom Rich Boom Rich 4
SPG Investment SPG Investment 12
1
g 1,006
ig Trade balances due to related parties JE B A T FRIE 4 5
g (note 33): (Kt 7E33) -
3 Sendao RE 11,920
Non-trade balances due to related JERTRRE A+ E b &
parties (note 33): R4S 88 (M 5233) -
SPG SPG
— dividends payable — R R B 9,173
— other payables — H fh & 1 ;IR 4,051
Huibo fE 8 6,550
Unsecured loans from related parties KB EE AT EIE R
(note 32) B (Mt 5E32)
Wuxi Guolian = 9 B B 800,000 200,000
821,935 231,694

Trade and non-trade balances due from/to related parties
are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.
The unsecured loans borrowed from Wuxi Guolian are
subjecttointerest rate of 6.52% per annum and are

repayable within one year.

U FERNEEE AT RIEREA
U ENREHRERR 28
RERBREER - ARG
MEEMERARFNKR6S2ER
B YR —FREE-
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44. RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
(d) Key management personnel remuneration

Remuneration for key management personnel, including
amounts paid to the Company’s directors as disclosed in
note 15 and five of the highest paid to employees as
disclosed in note 16, was as follows:

Salaries and other emoluments

45. POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

0]

(ii)

Acquisition of land

On 29 January 2010, the Group formed a joint venture
company (“JV Company”) with Wuxi Investment
Company. The Group holds 60% equity interests of the JV
Company. On 8 February 2010, the JV Company made a
successful bid for a land site in Wuxi City, Jiangsu Province
with a total consideration of approximately RMB3.53
billion. The multi purpose project has a total site area of
approximately 272,329 square metres. The Group has
made an advance deposit of RMB330 million. The sales
and purchase agreement is pending for signing.

Dividends

Pursuant to a resolution passed at the Board of Directors
meeting held on 5 Mach 2010, final dividends comprising
the followings were declared for the year ended 31
December 2009:

(@) Payment of cash dividends of RMB56,402,000
(RMB5.5 cents per ordinary share); and

(b)  Bonus issue of shares on the basis of 1 share for
every 40 existing shares then held.

TE& & HAH M

4. BEATXF(E)
d BEESEAESFHH

s EEABRFH  BREEMES
PR EE S T AR A E E A A
EffZiehBEXNTFTRELES
FHEESFMET

2009
—gehE

2008
—ET)\F

RMB'000
ARETT

RMB’000
AR®BT T

22,596

45, EHREE

0]

(ii)

W g + b
RZE—ZTF—-—A=Z+hLB " &K
SEBEEHREARNEKR —RE
ERNR([EERAR]) AEEH
BEERA0% B AR - R
—ZEZF_ANHB ' AERRKE
KEHAREISIRIT  KIHIEE
AIHEAEGM B ZIBS
% I8 B 4 88 |18 4 %272,329
ERHK e AEBBEMRESARE
330,000,0007C © E & W& B 5 &
%o

R B
RER-_Z-—FTF=-AABARAN
EFCERBBNRER  ARQFA
RBERBE_FTZTNF+ A
ST -HALEFENREBETIZ
I8

@ X IR BB AR
56,402,000 7T ( & & & @ i
R#555): &

%
A

by REREESRFBORRERN
BE IRBRMDASEERITA
%D

BEHUsEE—
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Summary of Consolidated Financial Information

R MBERBE

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
SE2ENER

Revenue

Cost of sales HERNK

Gross profit EX

Other income H it e A

Selling and marketing costs HERTIGHBENA
Administrative expenses THER

Other operating expenses Efg 2R

Net gain on acquisition of subsidiaries BWEFRANKSFE

Net gain on disposal of equity interest in
subsidiaries
Net gain on repurchase of convertible bonds

HEFRARENREFR
BROgnErc RaFg

Results from operating activities

REEEZEHNEA

Finance income BEKA

Finance expenses BEKAE

Fair value changes on finance derivatives TESRIANRAEERD

Net finance (expenses)/income BEMA)/ WAFE

Share of profits/{losses) of associates EHEBEARNEN/ (BB

Profit before revaluation gains on RARENEERRERK
investment properties and income tax BHRAEN

Revaluation gains on investment properties REMEER N E

Profit before income tax BRATEBARR

Income tax expense MERRZ

Total comprehensive income fortheyear FE2HBUAAE

Total comprehensive income attributableto: M FA Lt EEFEE L E

WABE:

Equity holders of the Company KARBRERBA
Minority interests LERRESR

Total comprehensive income fortheyear FEZHUAAE

Earnings per share SREM

Basic earnings per share (RMB) SEREABAANRY)

Diluted earnings per share (RMB) EREFEBANARY)

Year ended
31 Dec2009
BZ

RMB'000
ARBTT

3,065,441

(2,151,003)
914,438

5,020
(116,507)
(154,183)

(4,994)

49,394
693,168

16,914
(86,771)
50,263

(19,594)
66,645

740,219
517,254
1,257,473
(427,726)
829,747

678,520
151,227

829,747

Year ended
31 Dec 2008

RMB'000
AREFT

1,394,993

Year ended
31 Dec 2007

RMB'000
AREFT

(Restated)

Year ended
31 Dec 2006

LFE
RMB'000
ARBTT

1,887,458

Year ended
31 Dec 2005

RMB'000
ARBTT

1,169,176

(853,196)  (1,072,298) (1,307,483)  (681,655)
541,797 642209 579,975 487,521
3,289 9,237 15,858 14,512
(69.484) (65592  (28,281)  (45,042)
(157,982)  (151,743)  (81,546)  (70,497)
(7,129) (9,115) 13 (12,730)
48,216 - - -
61,140 193,112 - -
58,252 - - -
478099 618108 485793 373764
14,199 46,359 23,092 6,786
(102,056)  (152729)  (36,640) (6,191)
(42495 20,725 - -
(130,352 (85645  (13,548) 595
(12,717) (8.239) (318) 1,047
335,030 524,224 471927 375406
25000 269,626 39,882 41,752
360,030 793850 511,809 417,158
(172,025 (251,580)  (112,799)  (155,662)
188,005 542270 399010 261,49
151,499 517,614 390818 262,201
36,506 24,65 8,192 (705)
188,005 542270 399010 261,49
0.146 0.499 0.480 0.350
0.146 0.462 0.479 0.350




Summary of Consolidated Financial Information (continued)

me M BERREGE

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
GRAERRR

31 December
2008

31 December
2009

=L e
+25
=t-A

+ZA
o =
RMB'000
ARETT

RMB'000
ARBTR

31 December
2007
ZTTLE
+ZA
==
RMB'000
ARETT
(Restated)
(=7

31 December

31 December
2005
ZTTRE
+ZA
=
RMB'000
ARETT

Assets BE
Property, plant and equipment ER & 236,144 252,756 246,039 226,856 183,279
Intangible assets EWEE 1,655 - - - -
Land use rights T AR 74,192 79,500 64,173 74,280 75,767
Other investment H g Y EXIEY - - - -
Properties under development BREMYE .\ hLclh 2558728 2,356,458 758,434 966,068
Investment properties REME 1,640,500 723,000 698,000 333,700 259,700
Investment properties under development ~ #E R K E N E - - - 40,907 35,250
Investments in associates 2 NERE 989,822 923,177 982,507 944,134 63,774
Financial derivatives TE2BIA 51,491 3,382 46,171 - -
Deferred tax assets EEWEEE 212,969 88,149 73,728 64,148 126,207
Total non-current assets FRBEELE bl 4628692 4,467,076 2,442,459 1,710,045
Properties under development BERWE SR 1,800,902 642,593 505290 1,319,501
Completed properties held for sales BEREGENE 235,635 509,861 253,976 387,533 187,214
Other investments Hip K& 1,228 856 730 3,319 6,386
Trade, other receivables and advance B U B 70 E A e M

deposits REMES S 1340466 1,079,564 650,009 360,444
Restricted cash TRHBEL 2,408,748 539,771 241,593 841,717 55,083
Cash and cash equivalents BeRBLEZEEY 3,038,945 403,531 863,237 818,974 52,734
Total current assets RBEEAE Siliin 4595387 0 3,081,693 3,206,842 1,981,362
Total assets BEAE COCio 9224079 7548769 5,649,301 3,691,407
Equity E#
Share capital g 104,347 104,818 105,571 105,571 455,474
Share premium 1% E L cEin 2,081,584 2,084,437 2,084,437 -
Reserves B 721,498 689,460 685,931 549,831 76,974
Retained earnings/(accumulated losses) REEF /(2 ER) 865,426 447,989 451,772 (65233)  (365,065)
Total Equity attributable to equity ARAREBBEAERS

holders of the Company EHeE Colvion 3323851 3327711 2,674,606 167,383
Minority interests PERRER 343,924 524,409 304,577 15,830 22,638
Total equity -y | Ul 3848260 3,632,288 2,690,436 190,021

iz AT+ e




Summary of Consolidated Financial Information (continued)
mEMBKERBEGE)

31December 31December 31 December 31 December 31 December

(%)
3 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
] “PRAE CTRNE CFRLF CERAEF CREES
T +=A +-4 +-A +-8
= =t- = =t-B  =t-8 =t+-H
@ RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000
e AR¥ETR ARBTT ARETT AR%Tr ARETRT
& CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS (Continued) (Restated)
o 5 - /
GREERER () (&350
Liabilities g6
Interest bearing loans FEEX 2,135,747 580,000 372,400 1,111,390 727,339
Trade, other payables and advance receipt B BR 50 E th B 3 R B It
HIE ol 1895128 1,238,662 848,026 2,199,017
Tax payable BN E 566,663 323,556 332,421 185,934 165,039
Long-term payable within one year —FRIAHREHENT 6,000 6,000 — — —
Total current liabilities RBEBAR SN 2,804,684 1,943,483 2145350 3,091,395
Interest bearing loans FEER Sl 1,141,860 678,810 789,470 397,000
> Long-term payable REBEMAR 45,301 49,013 — — —
5 Convertible bonds EARES L 1029227 1,080,189 - -
% Deferred tax liabilities EEREERE 461,502 351,035 213,999 24,045 12,991
i)
o
< Total non-current liabilities FRBERAR RS 257135 1,972,998 813515 409,991
o
o
(o)
Total liabilities EEAE hooiiel 5375819 3916481 2,958,865 3,501,386
Total equity and liabilities BnRBEAH QOCo 9224079 7,548,769 5,649,301 3,691,407
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